Public Document Pack

Penallta House, Ty Penalita, ‘
Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,
¥strad Mynach, Ystrad Mynach, c A E R pﬂl '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG ENNGOR BWRDEISTIREE SINGL
www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk
For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Sharon Kauczok
(Tel: 01443 864243 Email: kauczs@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Date: 26th November 2014
Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Health Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee will be held in the Sirhowy
Room, Penallta House, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Tuesday, 2nd December, 2014 at 5.30 pm to
consider the matters contained in the following agenda.

Yours faithfully,

Chris Burns
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA

1 To receive apologies for absence.

2 Declarations of Interest.
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest (s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’'s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for
both Councillors and Officers.

To approve and sign the following minutes: -

3 Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee held on 21st October 2014 (minute nos.

1-12)
4 Consideration of any matter referred to this Committee in accordance with the call-in procedure.
5 To receive a verbal report from the Cabinet Member for Social Services.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

|I |||lI|II|||m____




To receive and consider the following Cabinet reports*: -

6 Charging for Telecare Services. (Cabinet 12/11/14).
*If a Member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for the above Cabinet report to be brought
forward for discussion at the meeting please contact Sharon Kauczok, Committee Services
Officer, Tel no. 01443 846243 by 10.00am on Monday, 1st December 2014.

To receive and consider the following Scrutiny reports: -

7 CSSIW Annual Performance Evaluation for 2013-2014.

8 Shopping Service.

9 Draft Savings Proposals 2015/16.

10 Performance Management 2014/15.

11 Deprivation of Liberty.

12 To record any requests for an item to be included on the next available agenda.

To receive and note the following information items™: -

13 Annual Report for Mental Health.

14 Summary of Members' Attendance - Quarter 2 - 1st July 2014 - 30th September 2014.
*If a Member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above information items to be

brought forward for discussion at the meeting please contact Sharon Kauczok, Committee
Services Officer, Tel. No. 01443 864243, by 10.00 am on Monday, 1st December 2014.

Circulation:

Councillors: L. Ackerman (Chair), Mrs E.M. Aldworth, A. Angel, G. Bevan, L.J. Binding, Mrs P. Cook (Vice
Chair), Mrs J. Gale, L. Gardiner, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs P. A. Griffiths, G. J. Hughes, A. Lewis,

S. Morgan, J.A. Pritchard and A. Rees

Users and Carers: Mr C. Luke, Mrs J. Morgan, Miss L. Price and Mrs M. Veater

Aneurin Bevan Health Board: Mrs B. Bolt (Divisional Director Primary Care and Networks)

And Appropriate Officers



enda ltem 3

Health, Social Care & Wellbeing Scrgny Committee - 21.10.2014

A
CAERPHILLY

CUINTY BORODIIGH COUNCIL
CYINGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, TREDOMEN,
YSTRAD MYNACH ON TUESDAY, 21ST OCTOBER 2014 AT 5.30 P.M.

PRESENT:
Councillor L. Ackerman - Chair
Councillor Mrs P. Cook - Vice Chair
Councillors:
Mrs E.M. Aldworth, A.P. Angel, Mrs J. Gale, N. George, C. Gordon, Mrs P. A. Giriffiths,
G.J. Hughes, S. Morgan, J.A. Pritchard, A. Rees.
Together with:
D. Street (Corporate Director Social Services), G. Jenkins (Assistant Director Children
Services), J. Williams (Assistant Director Adult Services), M. Jones (Finance Manager),
J. Jones (Democratic Services Manager), S.M. Kauczok (Committee Services Officer).
Users & Carers: Mr C. Luke, Miss L. Price and Mrs M. Veater MBE.
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board: Mrs S. Crane.
WELCOME
The Chair welcomed representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Torfaen County Borough
Council and Newport City Council to the meeting.
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Mrs G. Bevan, L. Binding,
L. Gardiner and R. Woodyatt; Mrs B. Bolt (ABUHB), Mrs J. Morgan (Users and Carers).
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor L. Ackerman declared an interest in agenda items 6 and 9 in that her mother is in
receipt of care.

Councillors Mrs P. Cook, C. Gordon and Mrs E.M. Aldworth declared an interest in agenda

item 10 as they have relatives who receive the Telecare service. Mrs M. Veater also declared
an interest in agenda item 10 as she receives the service herself.

Page 1



Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee — 21.10.14
MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meeting be approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman: -

1. Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee held on
9th September 2014 (minute nos. 1-12).

CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALL-IN PROCEDURE

There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-in
procedure.

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER

Councillor R. Woodyatt, Cabinet Member for Social Services, had tendered his apologies for
the meeting. There was therefore no Cabinet Member's report on this occasion.

SCRUTINY REPORTS

Consideration was given to the following: -

PRESENTATION - ABUHB STROKE SERVICE REDESIGN UPDATE

The Chair welcomed Michelle Graham, Martin Lane and Alison Shakeshaft, representing the
ABUHB Stroke Service Redesign Project Team, who had been invited to give an update on
the implementation of the stroke service redesign project.

It was noted that stroke is the leading cause of adult disability in Wales and the third most
common cause of death after cancer and heart disease. Approximately 900 strokes occur
every year in the ABUHB area. ABUHB's vision is to help people minimise the risk of having a
stroke and where stroke does occur, to provide the best quality care and support to maximise
survival and return to independence as quickly as possible.

The key features of the ABUHB new model for stroke services in Gwent are: an increased
focus on prevention; a centre of excellence for hyper-acute care and early rehabilitation;
community based Early Supported Discharge services; fewer inpatient stroke rehabilitation
units providing specialist rehabilitation; ongoing general rehabilitation, complex care planning
and palliative care in a local hospital or home setting as appropriate and multi-agency support
for life after stroke and secondary prevention.

It is proposed that stroke patients will receive specialist care in a centre of excellence that
meets clinical standards. Access to specialist care will be more equitable and consistent and
stroke patients will be able to return home sooner with Early Supported Discharge which
improves outcomes and patient/carer satisfaction.

Following a scoping and feasibility study, which commenced in February 2013, the preferred
model was approved by ABUHB on 28th May 2014. The proposed outline model consists of
one hyper-acute stroke unit, a community Neuro Rehab Team and specialist stroke
rehabilitation units. General rehabilitation/complex care management would be undertaken at
local hospitals and there would be greater emphasis on primary and secondary prevention.

Page 2



Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee — 21.10.14

Moving towards the implementation phase, questionnaires had been circulated to 500
residents in Gwent outlining the proposed changes. A Community Neuro Rehab Team had
been established and there is ongoing engagement with CHC's, local authority scrutiny
committees, the Frailty Programme, NCN's, the public, staff, 3rd sector groups and Powys
HB. The next steps include the development of a stroke website, commencement of ESD via
the Community Neuro-rehabilitation Service, ongoing engagement/appraisal of the preferred
interim model and a move towards implementation of the preferred interim option, early 2015.

The Chair thanked the officers for their informative presentation and during the course of the
ensuing discussion matters were raised in relation to the following: -

A Member queried whether thrombolysis (a very effective treatment if a patient is seen quickly
as it can break down and disperse a clot that is preventing blood from reaching the brain)
could be rolled out to other hospitals. Officers responded that as the stroke patient needs to
be seen by a clinician quickly and have a scan, the number of places where the treatment
could be administered is limited.

Arising from questions raised in relation to staffing levels within stroke units and Welsh
Ambulance Service targets, it was noted that work with the Welsh Ambulance Service was
ongoing and a decision had recently been taken to ring fence stroke beds at the Royal Gwent
and Nevill Hall Hospitals. Much work had been undertaken in terms of the future bed model
and the intention was that there would be stroke wards in the right place with more staff
available.

Members were advised that stroke passports would be drawn up with patients and their
families. The interactive document is designed to help stroke patients feel fully informed and
engaged in their recovery and to link information provided by NHS, social and voluntary
services, especially after they are discharged from hospital. The passport would cover the
different stages of the stroke journey, early (hospital) treatment, rehabilitation and life after a
stroke.

The Chair thanked Michelle, Alison and Martin for their attendance and contribution to the
meeting.

BUDGET MONITORING REPORT (MONTH 5)

The report summarises the projected financial position for the Social Services Directorate
based on information available as at month 5 of the 2014/15 financial year. The report also
identifies the 2014/15 savings targets that have been achieved by the Directorate and the
progress that has been made towards delivering the targeted savings that have not yet been
achieved.

Members were advised that the projected underspend must be viewed in the context of an
anticipated cut in WG funding for the forthcoming financial year which is likely to restrict the
amount of additional funding available to meet demographic pressures in 2015/16 and require
budget cuts within the directorate.

The 2014/15 revenue budget settlement for Social Services included targeted savings of
£2.062m. The projected overspends and underspends take account of these savings targets.
Progress made against the individual savings targets included in the £2.062m is summarised
in paragraph 4.7.2 of the report.

Of the £2.062m directorate savings target for 2014/15, £1.848m will be delivered in 2014/15
with a further £0.184m delivered in 2015/16 as a result of actions already taken. This leaves
just £30k of savings to be identified within the direct care management structure. It was noted
that although the actual savings delivered in 2014/15 fall short of the £2.062m target, there
will be no need to draw upon service reserves as other underspends are anticipated in
2014/15.

Page 3



Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee — 21.10.14

In response to questions raised by Members in relation to the savings targets set out in the
table at paragraph 4.7.1, Officers explained that it had been possible to identify certain posts
for deletion following a review of services. Where underspends had been identified in certain
areas these would help to deal with any additional demand on services, for example, during a
hard winter. In terms of the reference in SS25 to the Woodland Day Project, which ended on
31st July, Officers advised that this had been a small project in Wattsville used by residents of
Torfaen. The service users had since been re-located.

Sam Crane, ABUHB, indicated that she would like to report back to the Scrutiny Committee in
the future on the good work that is taking place around integrated working.

Reference was made to the projected underspend of £334k under Fostering and Adoption
and a Member queried whether the support offered to families through the Special
Guardianship and Residence Orders could be sustained in the event of the increasing
financial challenges.

It was moved and seconded that the recommendations contained in the report be approved.
By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

Members noted the projected underspend of £2,131k for 2014/15 together with the progress
made against the savings targets included in the 2014/15 budget settlement for the
Directorate.

DEPRIVATION OF LIBERTY SAFEGUARDS

This report was requested at a previous meeting of the Scrutiny Committee by
Councillor L. Binding. Due to unforeseen circumstances Councillor Binding was unable to
attend the meeting and it was therefore agreed to defer the report to the next meeting of the
Scrutiny Committee.

EXTERNAL REVIEW OF THE GWENT FRAILTY PROGRAMME

Members received a presentation on an independent review undertaken of the Gwent Frailty
Programme. In order to obtain an external perspective on the effectiveness of the Frailty
programme the Gwent Frailty Joint Committee agreed to commission an external review
which, following a tendering exercise, was undertaken by Cordis Bright Ltd. The report
summarises the key findings and recommendations of the review and explains how the
recommendations have been considered and will be implemented.

The Assistant Director highlighted the key issues from the review which evaluated whether the
Gwent Frailty Programme is delivering the objectives set out in the original business case and
whether they are still fit for purpose i.e. is the service provision effective; what is the impact on
other systems; is it going in the right direction and does it have the correct information for
decision-making and service planning.

A copy of the full report is attached as an appendix to the report. The report is very thorough
in its examination of the impact of the Gwent Frailty Programme and provides a series of
recommendations. The summary provided in pages 6-20 of the review outlines the 20 main
recommendations identified by Cordis Bright. Following receipt of the draft report these
recommendations were considered by both the Frailty Joint Committee and the Operation Co-
ordinating Group and the responses from both groups are recorded in column 3 of the table.
In addition a more detailed explanation of the recommendations and responses are contained
in paragraphs 6.11.1 to 6.11.36.

Page 4



10.

Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee — 21.10.14

Particularly significant recommendations are to appoint a senior leader for the programme; to
review the governance structure, including terms of reference and membership of the joint
committee / OCG and to ensure that all areas are providing a consistent service with a similar
skill mix (although the posts do not have to be identical) and available at a minimum at the
times set out in the core standards (in particular until 7pm). Clearly the appointment of the
senior leader will be key in ensuring the recommendations of the review are implemented.
The implementation will also be overseen by the revised governance structure.

The Chair thanked the Assistant Director for the informative presentation. During the course
of the ensuing discussion, a Member queried whether the term 'frailty' could be perceived as
being negative and contradicts what is actually being achieved. It was noted that some
service users are put off by the 'frailty' label and dislike being referred to as frail.

Several Members sought further information with regard to the tendering exercise and the
cost to undertake the review. Officers confirmed that the tender exercise, which had been
undertaken by the Procurement Service, had attracted no interest from public sector
organisations. The cost of the review (£33k) had been jointly funded by the Frailty
Programme through the participating Authorities and the Programme itself is supported by
repayable Welsh Government Invest to Save funding of £7.3 million which is being used to
"pump prime" the development of services.

Reference was made to the eligibility criteria for referral, which differs across the Gwent
Authorities. A Member felt that the description in paragraph 3.4.6 was too general and that
there should be more emphasis on falls and their prevention. In this context, reference was
made to a valuable screening service which had been provided in the past for the over 75's,
which had ceased when the funding from Welsh Government had come to an end.

In terms of future scrutiny, Members were advised that the appointment of a senior leader for
the programme employed by ABUHB, will be key in ensuring the recommendations of the
review are implemented. The implementation will also be overseen by the revised
governance structure and fed back into existing scrutiny arrangements.

A Member expressed concern with regard to the reference in Recommendation 4, to
implement the Medical Model across all local authority areas and stressed the need for there
to be more emphasis on how people are going to be looked after in the community. The
Assistant Director advised that there is currently inconsistency of service across Gwent and
that reference to the Medical Model was more to do with clinical governance.

Another Member referred to the excellent Community Resource Team (CRT) initiative and
queried how public awareness of it could be raised. Officers agreed that more work was
needed on the promotional aspect of this initiative.

The Chair thanked Members and Officers for their contributions to the debate. It was agreed
that an update report would be presented to the Scrutiny Committee in due course.

CHARGING FOR TELECARE SERVICES

Councillors P. Cook, E. M. Aldworth and C. Gordon declared an interest and left the meeting
during consideration of this item. Mrs M. Veater also declared an interest in this matter.

The report proposed a charging policy for Telecare services that would ensure the service is
financially sustainable, whilst minimising the impact upon service users.

During 2013/14, Housing Services began a programme of decommissioning the hardwired
Telecare equipment based in group housing schemes. On removal of the hardwired
equipment, service users have the option to transfer to a lifeline arrangement (dispersed unit)
with Social Services. However, many of the hardwired units are located in properties

Page 5



1.

Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee — 21.10.14

occupied by less vulnerable people who are unlikely to choose to receive a replacement
dispersed unit. This will lead to a reduction in contributions from service users and in the
service level agreement charge receivable from Housing Services. This in turn will lead to a
budgetary shortfall for the 2014/15 financial year and beyond.

Existing service users living in private accommodation currently pay a maximum of £4.30 per
week for their dispersed units. Whereas, existing service users accommodated in group
housing schemes currently pay a maximum of £3.10 per week for their hardwired alarms.
When these hardwired systems are replaced with dispersed units, service users in public
housing group schemes will be paying less than those in private accommodation for what will
then be the same service.

Where service users are in receipt of Council Tax Benefit or Housing Benefit they are entitled
to a subsidy from the Supporting People Team, which currently stands at £2.48 per week.
This is significantly higher than other Welsh Authorities and has been challenged by the
Supporting people Regional Collaborative Committee. If this subsidy is reduced it will add to
the budgetary pressure within the Telecare service.

The issues highlighted in paragraphs 4.2, 4.3 and 4.4 of the report create a financial pressure
for the Telecare Service of around £88k. However, at the same time, a surplus of £65k will be
created within the Adult Social Services Supporting People budget as result of the proposed
reduction in the Supporting People subsidy to £1.50. It is proposed that this surplus should be
vired into the Telecare Service leaving a net shortfall of around £23k.

An inflationary increase of 3% with indefinite protection for existing service users would only
raise around £5k in additional income and would not address the inequity between private and
public sector service user charges. It is therefore proposed to implement a 3% inflationary
increase on the 2013/14 charges but to limit the protection offered to existing service users so
that they will only experience a maximum increase of 50p per week each year until they reach
parity with new service users.

During the course of the ensuing discussion Members sought details of the rental costs of the
Telecare Service which is based at Parc Penrhos, Caerphilly together with information on how
the system operates.

It was moved and seconded that the recommendations in the report be approved. By a show
of hands they were unanimously agreed. It was therefore recommended to Cabinet that: -

1. The charges identified in the table in paragraph 4.9.1 be implemented with effect from
1st January 2015 in order to maximise income while allowing a reasonable lead in
time.

2. The Supporting People Team pay £1.50 per dispersed unit towards the weekly charge
for service users in receipt of council tax benefit through the 2014/15 financial year.
This will be reviewed for the 2015/16 financial year.

3. £65k be vired on a permanent basis from the Adult Services Supporting People budget
into the Telecare Services budget.

4, Existing service users' charges continue to increase by £0.50 per week each year until
they reach parity with charges for new service users.

REQUESTS FOR ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED ON THE NEXT AVAILABLE AGENDA

The following requests were received.

Page 6



12

Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee — 21.10.14

1. Councillor Gale referred to a previous request she had made for information relating to
a private hospital in her ward. Due to the sensitive nature of the information
requested, it was agreed that the Corporate Director Social Services would arrange to
discuss the matter with Councillor Gale on a one to one basis.

2. A request was made for an update on the feasibility of Members making rota visits to
private care homes.

3. Mrs Veater requested a progress report on the Carers' Strategy with particular
reference to how the funding is being used. It was agreed that the Corporate Director
Social Services would discuss this matter with ABUHB with a view to a report being
prepared for a future meeting.

The Democratic Services Manager informed Members that the draft Forward Work

Programme for the Scrutiny Committee was on the Council's website for consultation. The

work programme for the next 3 months would be formalised following consideration at the

Scrutiny Leadership Group on 29th October 2014.

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

The following item was received and noted without discussion.

1. Rota Visits by Members to Social Services Establishments: 1st April 2014 to
30th September 2014.

The meeting closed at 19.35 pm.

Approved as a correct record subject to any amendments agreed and recorded in the minutes
of the meeting held on 2nd December 2014.

CHAIR

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda ltem 7

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COLFNCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
2ND DECEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: CSSIW ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FOR 2013-14

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise elected Members of the Annual Performance Evaluation Report for 2013/14, which
has been completed by the Care and Social Services Inspectorate (CSSIW) as part of the
Inspectorate’s response to the Annual Council Reporting Framework.

2, SUMMARY

2.1 As Members will be aware from previous reports, in June 2009 the then Welsh Assembly
Government issued Statutory Guidance on the Role and Accountabilities of the Director of
Social Services. The Guidance sets out a requirement for the Director of Social Services to
report annually to the Council on the performance of Social Services functions and plans for
further improvement.

2.2 The Annual Council Reporting Framework, which governs the production of the Annual
Director’s Report, requires CSSIW to review each local authority and provide an analysis of
the Annual Director’'s Report and its supporting evidence.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 Statutory Guidance on the Role and Accountabilities of the Director of Social Services (Welsh
Assembly Government, June 2009).

3.2 Annual Council Reporting Framework (Social Services Improvement Agency 2009).

3.3 Local Authority Social Services Inspection, Evaluation and Review Framework (Care and
Social Services Inspectorate, April 2009).

4, THE REPORT

4.1 The introduction of the Annual Council Reporting Framework placed a responsibility on local
authorities to analyse the effectiveness of the Social Services that they provide. In order to do
s0, it is an expectation of the Framework that CSSIW will review and analyse each local
authority’s Annual Report and its supporting evidence.

4.2 CSSIW have produced the appended Annual Performance Evaluation Report to summarise
the conclusions that the Inspectorate has reached following analysis of the Annual Director’s
Report produced by Caerphilly County Borough Council for 2013/14. Within the report,
CSSIW has identified what it believes are the key areas for improvement and areas for
improvement for the local authority.

Page 9



4.3 The areas for improvement in the report will be included in the respective Service Delivery
Plans for 2014/15 and progress will be reported to Scrutiny committee as part of our
performance management updates.

5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The are no equalities implications arising from this report.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The Annual Performance Evaluation Report 2013/14 does not have any specific financial
implications for the local authority.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

71 There are no specific personnel implications arising from the Annual Performance Evaluation
Report 2013/14.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1 All consultation feedback was incorporated into our response to the Draft Performance Annual
Evaluation Report.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Elected Members are requested to note the contents of the Annual Performance Evaluation
Report 2013/14.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  Statutory guidance requires the Director to present the Annual Performance Assessment
Report to Elected Members.

1. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Statutory Guidance on the Role and Accountabilities of the Director of Social Services (WAG
June 2009).

Author: Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services

Consultees: Social Services Senior Management Team

Appendices:

Appendix 1 Annual Performance Evaluation Report 2013/14

Page 10



Annual Review and Evaluation of Performance 2013 - 2014
Local Authority: Caerphilly County Borough Council

This report sets out the key areas of progress and areas for
improvement in Caerphilly County Borough Council Social Services for
the year 2013- 14

Summary

In 2013-2014 Caerphilly Social Services built on its previous good performance
and explored opportunities to further develop services to reflect local need and
respond to national legislative change.

There were new appointments to the senior management team and the council
achieved permanent appointments to the posts of director and assistant director for
both children’s and adult services. This has provided a more secure platform on
which the department can make progress and develop services.

The director's report provides a comprehensive picture of the current status of
social services in Caerphilly. This includes reflection on the previous year's
priorities and achievements and areas for development in the year ahead. The
report sets out how priorities within the council’s single integrated plan align with
the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and describes how the council
will continue to develop its services to meet the requirements of the Act. This is
reflected in the priorities identified for the coming year.

A review of services has started and there has been a focus on beginning to make
the transition to new working arrangements. This included exploration of new ways
of working to meet demographic change, future legislative requirements and
financial challenges. There is continuing commitment to consolidating and
improving the quality of current provision.

Consultation about change and development has been undertaken and the council
continues to develop methods for seeking people’s views regarding services.

The report outlines plans for integration of health and social care services in
relation to services for older people with complex needs in a general context, as
well as specific areas of collaboration highlighted for further development.

Links to the corporate policy to support equality and the Welsh language are
provided within the report and there is evidence of progress towards meeting the

Page 11



requirements of “More than Just Words", the Welsh Government's strategic
Framework for Welsh Language Services in Health and Social Care.

The director reports that social services managed to end 2013-14 with an under
spend of £1.9m and is planning for further savings of 2.06m in 2014-15. The
council reports that these savings will be achieved through efficiency savings and a
review of discretionary services.

Response to last year's areas of improvement

Area for improvement Progress

Continue to develop awareness with | Inspection of the adult placement
practitioners of the options available service provided evidence that this
for use of the shared lives project. service was being extended to
include people with a range of needs.
This included people outside the
traditional learning disability services
including older people and sessional

support.
Continue to seek out and develop The council has continued to develop
methods to identify and engage methods for engaging with carers
carers. although performance indicators

demonstrate a slight dip in persons
offered an assessment. There has
however been an increase in young
carers provided with a service.

Identify and collate resources for staff | The council has commenced
to signpost and continue to develop compilation of resources for
citizen centred care signposting and appointments
secured to drive this forward.

Ensure statutory visits to looked after | Performance indicators demonstrate
children take place as required that the percentage of statutory visits
that have taken place within statutory
timescales increased from 74% to
95.5%.

Secure a permanent appointment to A permanent appointment was made
the post of director of social services | in Autumn 2013

Visits and inspections undertaken during the year

o National Review of Commissioning for Social Care in Wales 2013.

o National Inspection of Safeguarding and Care Planning of Looked after
Children and Care Leavers who exhibit vulnerable or risky behaviours 2014,
(‘looked after children inspection’).

Page 12



° CSSIW met with senior officers via quarterly engagement meetings to review
performance and progress against areas identified in the 2012/13 ACRF
evaluation.

Site visit to the Joint Workforce Development Team.

Site visit to the Childrens Contact and Referral Team.

Meeting with carers groups.

Attendance at provider meetings.

Observation of scrutiny and corporate parenting meetings.

Areas for follow up by CSSIW next year

Review progress on the development of new systems, teams and structures.
Mechanisms for quality and audit and monitoring outcomes

Integration and joint initiatives with health

CSSIW will contribute to a WAO led review to examine whether councils are
effectively supporting older people to live independently, including through
joined up working across health and social care.

e e e e

Performance
Shaping services

The council has developed a single integrated plan ‘Caerphilly Delivers 2013 -
2017" in conjunction with local and regional partners. This includes analysis of
current and projected needs within the borough and sets out a range of strategies
for improving and developing services.

The development of signposting for people to alternative support and advice has
continued. Additional resources have been secured for a limited period (a year)
which have been used to appoint two community connector posts to develop
neighbourhood networks. This should strengthen local knowledge and resources
and the director indicates that this will contribute to development of the council
website to provide wider public information.

Adults

In line with local and national strategies there has been a focus on reviewing
services to ensure that people are supported to maximise their independence and
a drive to ensure that people are enabled to remain within their own community.
This has included a regional approach with strategies being developed by health
and social care partners to meet the needs of people with a learning disability and
those with mental health issues. This has identified the need for specialist support
and education to improve care provision. The analysis highlights the specialist
needs of the aging population of persons with learning disability. The need for

Page 13



additional support and education is highlighted to ensure these needs can be met
locally. Progress with implementation of these strategies has been slow. However,
a joint systems review of mental health services across the Gwent area was
undertaken to explore how this agenda can be taken forward. Discussion with
partners across health and social care in Gwent continue about the potential for
integration and a pilot for this has started in Caerphilly. The results of this will be
monitored through CSSIW’s engagement meetings and site visits.

While there are commissioning strategies in place for mental health, learning
disability and physical and sensory impairment services, the council's self
assessment for CSSIWs' national review of commissioning advised that there is
not a similar strategy in place for older people’s services.

The authority has however, included provision for older people as part of a wider
systems review undertaken early in the year. This has resulted in the
establishment of a locally based multi disciplinary team with close links to health.
The inclusion of a community connector within this team has resulted in
development of local networks to promote independence. Early anecdotal
evidence about the impact of this development is positive. This has also included
exploring new ways of working with independent providers to provide flexible user
led service. The successful initial pilot is being extended for a further 6 months and
the team is to become part of the wider locality team for older person services.

The decrease in older people supported in the community from 151.7 to 121 per
1000 of the population may indicate early success of promoting independence.

The recent development of an integrated health and social care centre in Rhymney
for both health and council staff will provide an opportunity to continue to build on
and develop integrated working. Measures should be put in place to monitor the
success of this.

Children

The year 2013-2014 saw the continued development of children’s services. This
included the co location of preventative services alongside the contact and referral
team. Staff reported this to be a positive move for communication between teams
during CSSIW's site visit.

Restructuring of children’s services has seen the development of a 16 plus team to
improve the focus of work with care leavers. This included strengthening
relationships with housing and third sector partners. CSSIW'’S inspection of looked
after children found that young people found this to have been a positive step in
supporting them. The council will need to monitor the outcomes achieved.

The council’s children’s residential home was moved to a, purpose built building
which provides a semi independent flat enabling young people to be supported

4

Page 14



towards becoming independent. CSSIW’s regulatory inspection of this service was
positive.

Work continued throughout the year to take forward the development of the new
regional adoption service (hosted by Blaenau Gwent) which came to fruition in
March 2014. The council will need to work closely with the regional partners to
review and develop the service provided.

The council set targets to increase the number of foster carers recruited to the in-
house fostering service. Whilst there was success in this ongoing campaign the
target wasn'’t fully achieved.

Areas of progress

o The council has successfully worked with others to implement the regional
adoption service.
o Commencing pilot of mental health strategy.

Areas for improvement

e  The council should develop the commissioning strategy for older people.

Getting help

The council's website provides a wide range of information regarding social
services and provides links for additional advice and support including clear
contact details.

The five authorities within the region (previously Gwent) have in conjunction with
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board developed a carer’s strategy and this has
included producing carer’s information packs for each council. These were readily
available at events within the borough and adult carers have used services and
advice from this resource. The council had also developed a carer identity card in
case of emergency, although assessment of the effectiveness of this had not yet
been undertaken. A designated support worker for carers was employed and has
worked with social work teams to improve carer awareness. The director’s report is
clear in setting out the department’s goals in recognising and continuing to develop
support carers in their roles.

Adults

Arrangements for getting help from adult services are clearly set out on the
council’s website. This includes an outline of the range of services provided. The
director’s report indicates that development of the local resources for this site is
underway to reflect development of neighbourhood networks.

Page 15



Work has been undertaken in the last year to review the structure and systems
within adult services including referral and assessment. The review has resulted in
the new local service (referenced previously). This team is using new rationalised
methods of referral and assessment. This is being kept under close review to
inform service and system development.

The council has maintained the previous years performance in terms of
assessment and review, adult care plan reviews slightly decreased in number, but
remains above the national average.

The numbers of delayed transfers of care due to social care reasons has increased
and the council remains in the lower quartile in Wales. The reasons for this have
been discussed in engagement meetings and include the challenge of having to
liaise with several different acute hospitals. While closer working relationships with
the health service have been forged to provide community based services, further
consideration of how to improve performance in the timely discharge of people
from hospital should be undertaken. A task and finish group with representatives
from health and social services has recently been set up to examine this and
develop communication between discharging hospitals and social services.

Children

The way to get help from children’s services is clear- with a single point of access.
CSSIW's site visit to the contact and referral team found clear systems and
processes for referral to locally based teams. Staff had identified options for
signposting people for alternative advice and support. The co-location of
preventative services offered potential to further develop mechanisms for support.

Childrens services have seen continued strong performance in assessment and
plans for permanence (100% performance maintained from the previous year). The
year 2013-2014 saw a drop in performance in relation to statutory visits undertaken
to looked after children, there has been good progress made in improving this to
99.2% completed within timescales. While there has been an overall decrease in
referrals to children’s services those that proceed to allocation for initial
assessment have increased from 67.1% to 79.9%. In addition, the number of open
cases allocated to someone other than a social worker has decreased significantly
form 32% to 19.9%. Case management oversight by qualified staff may be having
an impact on re-referals as these have decreased by 2.5%.

CSSIW's review of loocked after children’s services found that care and pathway
planning was positive and inclusive of children and young people as well as a
range of professionals involved in their support. This in turn contributed to the
development of an outcomes based approach for this group.

Page 16



Areas of progress

The council has:

° improved performance in undertaking statutory reviews of looked after
children within timescales; and

o Developed a 16 plus team to provide a focus on longer term outcomes for
young people leaving care services.

Areas for improvement
The council should:

o Interrogate the reasons for delayed discharge and put in place strategies to
monitor and improve the progress of this.

The services provided

The council retains a number of in house services for children and adults as well
commissioning services from external providers.

The director’s report references the drive to collaborate with a range of partners to
develop current services and explore new ways of working.

A clear policy and procedure for complaint management is in place and this is
reported departmentally and at corporate level. Good quality of complaint
investigation was illustrated by two referrals to the Ombudsman that were not
progressed as the council was viewed to have investigated appropriately.

The council has strategies in place to support people to receive services in their
language of need. Staff training and support for Welsh learners is available and
this was evident at CSSIW's site visit to the joint learning development team. .

Adults

Quality of internal and commissioned services is monitored closely by the contracts
monitoring team and regular meetings for service providers are facilitated. These
have provided an opportunity to share new service developments and provide a
platform to improve quality of provision for example continued roll out of education
regarding dementia care.

Regulatory inspections of the council's own services has been generally positive,
notably the provision of dementia care and the aduilt placement service (Shared

Lives) which the council hosts on behalf of the wider Gwent region. Inspection of
commissioned services for older persons — particularly for those requiring nursing

7

Page 17



care has illustrated some areas of poor quality. This is monitored closely by the
commissioners via their provider performance process and the council has taken
strong action where services have failed to improve.

While there is a decrease in the numbers of people receiving care within care
home settings the council retains some internal care provision including care
homes for older people the director is clearly sighted on the increasingly complex
needs of older people. The lack of specialist provision is an area which has been
considered more widely with both health and regional local authority partners.

Children

The council maintains nursery provision providing Flying Start services, regulatory
inspection of these services provided positive feedback regarding the quality of the
services provided and support available from the council to develop this.

The council recognises the valuable role played by carers. The director's report
references collaborative work undertaken to raise awareness of carers resulting
additional young carers being identified. A review of support for young carers had
been undertaken and this year saw an increase of assessments offered to young
carers, back to 100% from a dip last year at 96.9%. In addition to this, the number
of carers provided with a service has increased. Maintaining this performance will
assist in maintaining peoples independence while recognising the need for
supporting for young carers in their own right.

Performance indicators demonstrate that the number of placement changes for
children and young people looked after by the council has increased and CSSIW's
inspection of looked after children’s services also identified this as an area for
improvement. This was an area that social services had already noted for priority in
2013-2014. CSSIW’s inspection found that, although there was a range of foster
placements, the carers did not always have the skills to effectively safeguard the
young people who exhibit vulnerable and risky behaviours. The council has made
the continued recruitment of foster carers as a priority, including consideration of a
regional marketing strategy led by South East Wales improvement Collaborative.
The council need to consider methods to support and enhance the skills of carers
to meet the needs of this small but complex group.

Areas of progress

The council has:

o Put in place measure to identify carers and improve carer support
mechanisms.

Page 18



Areas for improvement
The council should:

° Continue to develop methods for supporting and developing skills of foster
carers.

Effect on people’s lives
Adults

Local arrangements for adult safeguarding are well established with clear
pathways for referral. The addition of a permanent appointment of registered nurse
to the team has increased capacity for investigation of referrals which include
health care concerns (there has previously been delay in this).

The council falls in to the lower quartile for of referrals where risk has been
managed and the council needs to explore, understand and respond to the
reasons for this performance. Oversight of adult safeguarding has moved into
regional arrangements. The Gwent Wide Adult Safeguarding Board includes five
regional authorities aligned to the health board footprint and a broad range of
partners and this is currently chaired by the council.

The current sub groups of the board have provided a drive for training staff across
five local authorities as well as independent sector providers. The Board has
undertaken a review of its terms of reference, structures and membership and
recently appointed a development officer to support progress with this. Making
progress with the actions arising from this review should be made a priority. This
should provide a firm foundation to support new safeguarding legislation from
Welsh Government and drive forward the development of new opportunities for
shared learning between partners and promote consistency in determining
thresholds and management of risk.

Contract monitoring has been developed to include consideration of the outcomes
for people using services. Ongoing development of methods for collating and
measuring outcomes for people receiving new services is an area which will need
to evolve alongside the development of new provision.

Children
In children’s services there is a commitment to improvement of the quality of
safeguarding and services provided to support children and young people.

Oversight of children’s safeguarding has moved into new regional arrangements.
The South East Wales Children Safeguarding Board has now been established for

9

Page 19



over a year. The board has a comprehensive strategic plan in place along with the
structure to support this. Locally this includes learning and development groups.
The last year has seen the council improve performance in its response to
safeguarding with group meetings held increasing from 95% to 98 %.

There has been a significant rise in the number of children on the child protection
register from 167 last year to 216 in 2013-14. Review of the contributory factors to
this should be undertaken.

CSSIW's inspection of looked after children established that structures were in
place to support safeguarding and staff were skilled and aware of their
responsibilities.

The council has focussed and been successful in enhancing educational
achievement for young people although there was a slight dip in school attendance
for secondary school pupils. Evidence that there is a longer term strategy to
continue to drive up achievement was demonstrated by increased numbers of and
young people with personal education plan in place (up by 10% from the previous
year).

Areas of progress

The council has:

° continued to improve educational progress for children and has strategies in
place to maintain this; and

° Developed methods for assessing outcomes for older people.

Areas for improvement

The council should:

e  examine factors contributing to the rise in children placed on the register; and
o Continue to develop outcome measure for new services.

Capacity
Delivering Social Services

The director’s report provides clear information regarding departmental finances
and the implications for future service provision.

The report describes the 2013-14 underspend of 1.9m and puts this in the context
of future changes in that this provides a basis of a better position for future

savings. This includes the need for continued savings set out for the current year
(2014-2015) at 2.06m.

10

Page 20



Reconfiguring services and exploration of new ways of working to deliver social
services has started to reflect national and local strategies. The director has
identified potential areas for savings in the future and provides clear direction in his
report regarding this.

The establishment of the joint workforce development team with Blaenau Gwent
has provided an opportunity to build a platform for staff learning and development
for the full range of staff employed by social services, as well as providing support
to the independent sector. CSSIW received positive feedback from social work
staff and external employees that we met during our reviews and regulatory
inspection regarding access to ongoing education and training. Ongoing
development of the service based on a training needs analysis was evident from
site visits and provider meetings we attended. The director highlights the need for
ongoing review and workforce development within his report.

Recruitment to key positions to underpin new strategies supporting the prevention
agenda had been undertaken and successful bids for additional funding sought to
pursue this further.

CSSIW's inspection of looked after children found that staff were well motivated,
skilled and well supported by the management structure to deliver the service.

The inspection found that quality assurance arrangements could be improved to
fully capture learning from independent reviews. The director reflects this as an
area for continued improvement in his report.

Areas of progress

The council has:

° commenced reconfiguration of services in line with national strategies; and
° Implemented the joint workforce development team.

Areas for improvement

° The council should continue to develop method/frameworks for quality
review.

Providing direction

The permanent appointment to director and assistant director posts has brought

stability to the department’s senior management team. Internal appointments to

cover these posts in the interim provided a level of consistency through what could
potentially have been an unstable period.

11

Page 21



CSSIW'’s looked after children inspection and other site visits have found that in
general there is clarity regarding roles and responsibilities at all levels within social
services.

In addition, there is evidence of clear lines of communication between education
and social services with staff on the ground and at director level.

The wider need to make progress with integrated working between health and
social care is reflected at a corporate level with a joint scrutiny committee for health
and social care.

There is corporate commitment towards social services. This is demonstrated by
the regular attendance of the member at engagement meetings with the CSSIW.
Performance management systems are in place; these include regular reporting to
scrutiny committee and council. Work has been undertaken to drive up the
challenge and participation within scrutiny meetings and to strengthen corporate
parenting.

The findings of CSSIW'’s inspection of looked after children indicated that while at a
corporate level there was oversight and commitment to children and young people,
additional work should be undertaken to collate a specific profile of those with risky
behaviours.

The corporate parenting panel includes representation from a range of internal and
external partners. This commitment, alongside the newly formed Childrens and
Families partnership board (led by health and including education), should provide
a strengthened approach to managing information for all partners in meeting
children and young people’s needs.

Social services work constructively with the regulator and responded constructively
to the verbal feedback from the inspection of looked after children -putting in place
measures for improvement prior to the report being issued.

Areas of progress

° The council has responded positively to recommendations from inspection.
Areas for improvement:

o The council should continue to develop mechanisms to improve corporate
oversight.

12

Page 22



- Agenda Iltem 8
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL]Y
>

HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
2ND DECEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: SHOPPING SERVICE

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To provide members with additional information on the discretionary shopping service, as part
of the agreed budget strategy for 2015/2016.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The report provides an update on the option of ceasing provision of the shopping service
unless there are exceptional circumstances. By identifying and developing a range of low and
no cost community options to which individuals can be sign posted to meet their needs. At a
previous special scrutiny committee held on 16™ October 2014 members requested additional
specific information on the shopping service. This information is for members to consider
prior to a report being presented to Council. The report also provided information on the
survey, which has been re-run and sent to users of the shopping service only.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The budget strategy agreed by Council in February 2014 required estimated savings of £6.5m
for the 2015/16 financial year and £6.9m for 2016/17. This estimate has since been revised
following advice from the Minister for Local Government that Local Authorities should model
scenarios based on a cut in Welsh Government funding of up to 4.5%, rather than the
previously notified indicative cut of 1.5%. This has the potential to increase the savings
requirement to £15.1m for 2015/16 and £15.0m for 2016/17.

4, THE REPORT

4.1 At a previous special scrutiny held on the 16"™ October 2014 members indicated they wished
to receive further information on the option of developing a range of no and low cost options to
meet peoples needs for a shopping service by promoting their independence and giving them
choice and control over where their provisions are purchased and how they are delivered.
Members also wished to consider an option of tendering for a specific shopping service.

4.2 Since the original special scrutiny in July, work has been done to validate the number of
people in receipt of a shopping service. Information taken from the SWIFT IT data base
indicates that 124 people have an identified need of shopping met by a commissioned
service.

Page 23



4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

One FTE member of staff has successfully been appointed to fixed term engagement officer
post until 31% March 2015. This post will develop knowledge of local communities and
services available from local shops, large supermarkets, local eateries who deliver meals,
independent agencies who provide shopping services, alternatives such as milk and more to
provide individuals with a range of options to meet their needs. This information will also be
provided to assessment care Management staff who undertaken assessment and reviews.

Care providers currently undertake the shopping service for individuals, with this service
primarily being commissioned from the independent sector at a cost of circa £13.50 per hour.
In 12 cases the service is provided by the in-house Home Assistance Reablement Team
(HART). Shopping is always provided as part of a care package. A review of a range of
providers has indicated prices to individuals for this service vary and on average would be
£12.00 per hour. This is unlikely to generate savings that are required.

Those people currently in receipt of a shopping service would be reviewed and assisted to
utilise other networks to meet their needs. If there were exceptional circumstances shopping
could still be commissioned on a spot contract.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

An equalities impact assessment will be completed for the cabinet report as part of MTFP
proposals

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Ceasing provision of a shopping service unless there are exceptional circumstances could
generate savings of £88k based on current numbers. However, the service could not be
withdrawn until suitable alternatives were identified for individuals so it is likely that only
around £40k of this saving would be delivered in 2014/15.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There would be very limited impact on HART employees given the low number of people they
support.

CONSULTATIONS

A survey was sent to people currently in receipt of discretionary shopping service to gain their
views on the proposals.

124 surveys were distributed, 42 were returned which equates to a 34% response.

Results to questions on shopping service are illustrated below:

Page 24



8.4

If the council no longer provided a shopping service what would you do?
Please tick all that apply.

30

25

20

15

10

B No reply B Milk man/ mobile shop would deliver
[ Family/friends/neighbours would do this for me | Family/friends/neighbours would take me
[ Shop would deliver [ 1 would be unable to get my shopping

Would you be willing to pay for someone to do your shopping or
) éake you shopping?

20
15
B No reply
I Yes
10 B No
5
O 1

In addition 13 further comments were made regarding the shopping service. These cover
both questions for example

e Some people indicated they already paid for their shopping as part of their care package,
and people are happy with the service.

A full copy of the survey responses is available in appendix 1.

Page 25



9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Members of the scrutiny committee are asked to consider the proposal for this discretionary
service to cease and people be sign posted to appropriate options, unless there are
exceptional circumstances.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  To ensure that the views of the Scrutiny Committee are considered on this discretionary
service prior to this matter being referred to Council

1. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 Local Government Act 1972.

Author: Jo Williams, Assistant Director Adults
Consultees: Social Services Senior Management Team
Clir Robin Woodyatt, Cabinet Member Social Services
Adult Services Divisional Management Team
Mike Jones, Interim Financial Services Manager
Shaun Watkins, Acting HR Manager
Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

Background Papers:
Scrutiny Report Shopping Service 17" July 2014
Scrutiny Report Shopping Service 16" October 2014

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Survey Analysis

Page 26



Help us shape your services

Questionnaire for People who use the
Shopping Service October 2014

SURVEY ANALYSIS

124 questionnaires were sent

42 questionnaires returned

This equates to a 34% response rate

Page 27



Q1

If the council no longer provided a shopping service what would you do?
Please tick all that apply.

30

25

20

15

10

B No reply B Milk man/ mobile shop would deliver
[ Family/friends/neighbours would do this for me. | Family/friends/neighbours would take me
[ Shop would deliver [ 1 would be unable to get my shopping

Q2

Would you be willing to pay for someone to do your shopping or
2gake you shopping?

20
15
B No reply
[ Yes
10 B No
5
0 1

Page 28



Q3
Any other comments:

Depends how much

House bound, family member does shopping

Very reluctantly. This is very unfair after working until my illness

| already pay

Will depend on the cost

Got no one to take me shopping or get it for me, if you took this service off me
| would not be able to leave the house, as my legs are very bad and | have to

have someone with me and as | live on my own | have no one

The carers take me shopping once a week, very happy with this service.
Thank you

But | couldn't pay more than | pay now
Crossroads care does my shopping
Bedroom Tax

A carer took me once and I'm unable to go owing to my disability. | am
already paying for my shopping to be done in my assessment

Shopping is done by Care Providers - Thank you

| am very happy with Village Domestic who provide my banking, shopping and
Domestic

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Agenda ltem 9

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COLFNCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
2ND DECEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: DRAFT SAVINGS PROPOSALS 2015/16

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES & SECTION 151
OFFICER

1.1 The attached report was considered by Cabinet on the 29" October 2014.

1.2 The report provides details of the Provisional 2015/16 Local Government Settlement along
with an updated Medium Term Financial Plan for the period 2015/16 to 2017/18. The report
also presents details of proposed savings for 2015/16 totalling £12.208m and a proposal to
increase Council Tax for 2015/16 by 3.9%.

1.3 Following consideration of the report Cabinet:-

1.3.1  Endorsed the proposed package of 2015/16 savings totalling £12.208m, as detailed in
Appendices 2 to 6 of the report.

1.3.2 Agreed that the savings proposals should be subject to a further period of consultation
prior to final 2015/16 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet in January 2015
and to Council in February 2015.

1.3.3 Supported the proposal to increase Council Tax by 3.9% for the 2015/16 financial year
to ensure that a balanced budget is achieved.

1.4  As part of the ongoing consultation on the savings proposals, the Health Social Care & Well
Being Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider and comment upon the proposals in Appendix
4 of the attached report.

Author: Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance
Tel: 01443 863022 E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk

Appendices:
Appendix 1 — Report and Appendices to Cabinet 29" October 2014

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COLFNCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 29TH OCTOBER 2014
SUBJECT: DRAFT SAVINGS PROPOSALS FOR 2015/16

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES & SECTION 151
OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To provide Cabinet with an updated Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) reflecting the
Provisional 2015/16 Local Government Financial Settlement announced by the Welsh
Government (WG) on the 8th October 2014.

1.2 To present Cabinet with details of draft savings proposals for the 2015/16 financial year to
allow for a further more focussed period of consultation prior to a final decision in February
2015.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The report provides details of revised savings requirements for the period 2015/16 to 2017/18
based on the WG Provisional 2015/16 Local Government Financial Settlement.

2.2 The report also provides details of draft savings proposals for 2015/16 totalling £12.208m.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The budget setting process encompasses all the resources used by the Council to deliver
services and meet priorities.

4. THE REPORT
4.1 Headline Issues in Provisional Settlement

4.1.1 Published on the 8th October 2014, the key points of the Provisional 2015/16 Local
Government Settlement for Wales are: -

o There have been three transfers into the settlement totalling £0.346m and three transfers
out totalling £0.200m. Details are provided in paragraph 4.1.2

e The provisional Aggregate External Finance (Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and
Redistributed Non-Domestic Rates) for Caerphilly CBC for the 2014/15 financial year is a
reduction of 3.4% i.e. a cash decrease of £9.087m.

e Asin previous years, WG have, through the RSG formula, placed a requirement on Local
Authorities to include provision of a 1% protection for schools based on the percentage
applied by Central Government to WG’s block grant. For 2015/16 this represents a 0.6%
increase for schools.

Page 33



412

41.4

4.2

4.2.1

422

423

424

¢ No indicative settlement figures have been provided by WG for 2016/17 and 2017/18.
e The capital allocations available to Caerphilly CBC in the RSG and from the General
Capital Grant have increased by £7k from the previous year.

Table 1 provides details of transfers in and out of the WG financial settlement: -

Table 1 — Transfers In/Out 2015/16

£m

Transfers In: -

Local Government Borrowing Initiative — 21% Century Schools 0.133
Integrated Family Support Service 0.173
Autistic Spectrum Disorder 0.040
Transfers Out: -

Student Finance Wales (0.153)
Feed Safety Controls (0.030)
National Adoption Service (0.017)
TOTAL 0.146

Table 2 provides details of other passported grants included in the WG financial settlement: -

Table 2 — Other Passported Grants 2015/16

£m
Local Government Borrowing Initiative — 21%' Century Schools 0.171
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (0.106)
Private Finance Initiative (0.202)
TOTAL (0.137)

It is proposed that the above (both the increases and decreases in funding) are passed
directly to those services that they relate to.

Updated Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP)

Cabinet will recall that the MTFP agreed by Council on the 26th February 2014 identified an
estimated savings requirement of £6.5m for 2015/16 and £6.9m for 2016/17. This was based
on an indicative reduction in WG funding of 1.34% for 2015/16 and, in the absence of further
guidance from WG, an assumed reduction of a further 1.34% for 2016/17.

On the 24th June 2014 the Minister for Local Government and Government Business wrote to
all Local Authorities in Wales informing them that there would be a significant shift in the likely
financial settlement for 2015/16 and beyond. The Minister advised Authorities to consider how
they would respond to a cut in funding of up to 4.5%.

Cabinet received a report on the 16th July 2014 outlining the impact of a cut in funding of 3%
and 4.5%. Cabinet were advised that a 3% cut would increase the savings requirement for the
two-year period 2015/16 and 2016/17 from the current planning level of £13.4m to £22.2m. A
cut of 4.5% would increase the savings target to £30.1m.

Whilst the cut of 3.4% in the 2015/16 provisional settlement is better than the potential worst-
case scenario of 4.5%, it still presents an extremely challenging financial position. It is also
likely that austerity will remain for at least the medium-term and on this basis the MTFP has
been updated for the three-year period 2015/16 to 2017/18 with an assumed reduction in WG
funding of 3.4% for each of the three years. The updated position is attached as Appendix 1
and this shows a total savings requirement of £39m as summarised in Table 3: -

Page 34



4.3

4.3.1

Table 3 — Cash Savings Targets

Year Annual Cash Cumulative Cash
Savings Target Savings Target
£m £M
2015/16 12.866 12.866
2016/17 14.030 26.896
2017/18 12.105 39.001

2015/16 Budget Proposals

The proposals contained within this report would deliver a balanced budget for 2015/16 on the
basis that Council Tax is increased by 3.9%. Table 4 provides a summary: -

Table 4 — Summary

Paragraph Description £m £m
432 Whole Authority Cost Pressures 2.886
4.3.4 Inescapable Service Pressures 2.462
4.3.5 Reduction in WG Funding 9.087
4.4 Draft Savings Proposals 2015/16 12.208
4.5 Council Tax Uplift (3.90%) 2.227
TOTAL 14.435 14.435

4.3.2 The whole Authority cost pressures totalling £2.886m are set out in Table 5 below (cost
pressures for schools are excluded as the full cash pledge growth has been provided): -

433

434

Table 5 — Whole Authority Cost Pressures

£m
Pay excluding Teachers and other school staff @ 1% 1.131
Living Wage increase (assumed at 20p per hour) 0.164
Non pay inflation 1.5% (net of 1.5% fess & charges increases) 1.432
Supported Borrowing (Capital Financing) 0.150
Transfers in/out and other passported grants 0.009
TOTAL 2.886

The updated MTFP includes an assumed pay award of 1% for 2015/16. Cabinet will be aware
that the pay settlement for the current financial year is still subject to agreement and this has
the potential to impact on the level of savings required.

It is incumbent upon Council to set a realistic budget each year. Table 6 provides details of
those 2015/16 inescapable service commitments/pressures that have been identified and
require consideration in respect of funding: -

Table 6 — Inescapable Service Pressures and Other Service Commitments

£m
Council Tax Reduction Scheme additional liability 0.332
Waste Management contingency 0.240
Contact Centre, Bargoed — Running costs 0.075
Meeting the Schools pledge 0.665
Social Services Demographics 1.000
Proposal for Waste Transfer Station (Ty Duffryn) 0.150
TOTAL 2.462

Page 35




435

4.4

441

442

443

4.4.4

445

446

447

The WG Provisional Settlement has decreased the available funding by 3.4% for the 2015/16
financial year, representing a cash reduction of £9.087m for Caerphilly CBC.

2015/16 Draft Savings Proposals

The budget strategy agreed by Council on the 26th February 2014 consisted of 2 main
strands. The first of these was further savings proposals for Members to consider in respect of
up to 3% efficiency savings. These efficiency targets required savings of circa £5m and would
be applied to those statutory and essential services that the Authority has to deliver. The
second strand of the agreed budget strategy was a review of discretionary services with a
view to identifying savings proposals totalling over £8m. A series of Special Scrutiny
Committee meetings have taken place during recent months to consider savings proposals.

Since the announcement by the Minister for Local Government and Government Business on
the 24th June 2014 a significant amount of work has been undertaken within each Directorate
to identify further savings proposals to address the worsening financial outlook.

The work to identify savings has been led by the Corporate Management Team (in
consultation with appropriate Cabinet Members), working with Heads of Service with support
from colleagues in Finance. Service Managers have also been involved to ensure that all
options that are deliverable for 2015/16 have been considered.

For 2014/15, General Fund balances of £800k were earmarked to make good any shortfall
where savings were due to be delivered part way through the financial year. The very late
announcement of the Provisional Settlement for 2014/15 and the significant movement in the
savings target from the original indication left very little option but to set-aside this funding to
support the delivery of savings. This is not now the case, a strong message has been given
by WG that austerity and cuts to RSG are to be expected up until 2020, the Authority should
plan accordingly to address the anticipated budgetary shortfall.

The Authority has determined at Council, in recent years, to keep the General Fund reserves
at a level of circa £10m, which is 3% of the net revenue budget. There could be an opportunity
to release balances for one-off expenditure but the use of balances does not and will never be
able to reduce an overall savings target. Balances can be used to defer a saving for a short
period (less than a year) but this is not a good use of these funds. It is therefore proposed to
maximise the impact of the use of any “excess” General Fund balances by utilising them for
Capital/Invest to Save Schemes. This will ensure a lasting legacy for service users of the
Borough and will improve service provision, rather than defer a saving that will ultimately have
to be taken a short period later. It will also enable the Authority to provide match funding for
grant related capital schemes i.e. 21st Century Schools, convergence and lottery.

Appendices 2 to 6 provide details of the proposed savings for the 2015/16 financial year.
Table 7 provides a summary: -

Table 7 — Summary of Proposed 2015/16 Savings

£m
Whole Authority “corporate nature” 3.957
Education & Lifelong Learning 0.809
Social Services 3.128
Environment 2.852
Corporate Services 1.462
TOTAL 12.208

Cabinet should note that savings proposals that do not have a direct impact on services users
or the public have been categorised into a single line for each Directorate in Appendices 2 to
6. These proposals consist in the main of vacancy management, budget realignment and
minor changes to service provision. Much of the detail of these proposals will have been
presented to the Special Scrutiny Committees held during recent months. Across all

Page 36



448

449

4410

4.5

4.5.1

452

5.1

5.2

53

54

Directorates these savings proposals total £6.627m, which represents 54.3% of the total
savings identified of £12.208m. Members at Special Scrutiny Committees were supportive of
these types of savings proposals.

Some savings proposals will have a part-year impact in 2015/16 but will deliver significant
further savings in 2016/17. The most notable of these are the following: -

Table 8 — Main Proposals with 2015/16 Part-Year Impact

Saving Proposal 2015/16 2016/17
Saving Savings
£m £m
Street Lighting — New technology to achieve 0.100 0.350
energy efficiencies.
Review of Customer Services 0.125 0.125
Reduction in Street Cleansing 0.100 0.200
Closure of Ty Pontllanfraith 0.100 0.600
TOTAL 0.425 1.275

There will be a requirement to fund ‘one-off’ capital expenditure for some of the above and
there will be an opportunity to utilise ‘excess’ General Fund balances.

Cabinet is asked to endorse the proposed package of savings totalling £12.208m as detailed
in Appendices 2 to 6 and to agree that the proposals should now be subject to a further period
of consultation prior to final 2015/16 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet in January
2015 and Council in February 2015.

Council Tax Implications 2015/16

The Medium Term Financial Plan approved by Council on the 26th February 2014 included
indicative increases to Council Tax for 2015/16 and 2016/17 of 2.35%.

The savings requirement to deliver a balanced budget for the 2015/16 financial year is
£12.866m and savings proposals totalling £12.208m are presented in this report. This leaves
a shortfall of £658k and it is proposed that this is met by increasing Council Tax by 3.9% for
the 2015/16 financial year. This would result in Council Tax Band D being set at £992.02 per
annum (an increase of 71p per week).

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

Budget decisions at this level affect every resident in the County Borough, regardless of their
individual circumstances and backgrounds.

A full impact assessment has not been undertaken on all of the draft savings proposals,
however assessments will be made on all individual reports and projects during the financial
year. This is in order to ensure that decisions that affect different individuals and groups are
assessed at an appropriate and relevant level and at the correct stage in the process.

Consultation with residents, when done in accordance with the Council’'s Public Engagement
Strategy and the Equalities Consultation and Monitoring Guidance, also ensures that every
resident, regardless of circumstances, has the opportunity to have their views heard and
considered in the Council’'s decision-making process.

The list of proposed savings appended to this report does contain high-level narrative around

the possible impact of some proposals and this will provide a starting point for assessments
when specific areas are being looked at to provide savings.

Page 37



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

8.3

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As detailed throughout the report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

It is impossible to conceive that savings of £39m over three years could be achieved without
substantial reductions in staffing. The fact is that by the end of year three the Council will have
to become a significantly smaller organisation, in some respects offering a reduced range of
services.

The Council has always prided itself on seeking to avoid compulsory redundancies at all
costs, and this general ambition remains. However, given the new situation in which the
Council finds itself nothing can be guaranteed.

Where staff reductions are required the Council will firstly try to achieve the reduction through
‘natural wastage’ and not filling vacancies. It is unlikely, however, that staff turnover over a
three-year period would be sufficient to deal with the likely numbers involved.

The Council has a policy on redeployment, which would be the next preferred option.
Thereafter, the Council has recently adopted a number of policies, which will enable us to
invite applications for voluntary severance. These will be applied on a service by service basis
to assist with restructuring or ‘downsizing’ within those services rather than on an Authority-
wide basis as this would run the danger of creating vacancies in the wrong areas and with the
wrong skill sets to accommodate those displaced and requiring redeployment.

The budget strategy for the next three years is likely to require a more proactive approach to
restructuring than we have seen in most areas and some difficult decisions will undoubtedly

be needed to prioritise roles and functions, as the Authority itself develops a more focussed

approach to priorities among its various services.

CONSULTATIONS

Appendices 2 to 6 identify where proposals that affect service users have been debated at
Special Scrutiny meetings. It is acknowledged that it is difficult for Members to form a view as
to whether to support a saving or not without an appreciation of the bigger picture. Overall,
recommendations made to date by Special Scrutiny Committees have not delivered savings
that would come close to the required target. Moving forward, the draft budget proposals
included in this report will be discussed at a Members’ Seminar event on the 3rd November
2014 with a further Seminar to be held in January 2015. This will allow an informed discussion
and debate in the context of the whole Authority position. Following Cabinet on the 29th
October 2014 this report will also be scheduled for discussion at the next available Scrutiny
Committee meetings as part of the consultation process.

The extent of the savings required by the Authority in the next 3 years is estimated at £39m
and the majority of frontline reductions in spend will need a lead in time prior to
implementation. Officers will try to minimise the impact of the cuts on the public facing areas
of service adopting more innovative ways of delivering services. It must be emphasised
though that no innovative / different ways of working will bridge the budgetary shortfall. The
Authority’s services will reduce over the next 3 years and staff numbers will also reduce over
that same period.

The Authority has undertaken a public budget consultation in recent months focussing on
those areas that members of the public see as priority services that should be protected from
cuts wherever possible. A total of 1705 surveys were completed and the three service areas
identified as most important were Libraries, Sport & Leisure and Public Bus Services. The
draft savings proposals for 2015/16 have little impact on these service areas.

Page 38



8.4 The draft 2015/16 savings proposals as presented in this report will be subject to a further
period of consultation during the next 3 months. Details of the outcome of this will be included
in the final budget proposals reports to be presented to Cabinet in late January 2015 and to
Council in February 2015.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Cabinet is asked to: -

9.1.1 Endorse the proposed package of 2015/16 savings totalling £12.208m, as detailed in
Appendices 2 to 6.

9.1.2 Agree that these savings proposals should now be subject to a further period of consultation
prior to final 2015/16 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet in January 2015 and to
Council in February 2015.

9.1.3 Support the proposal to increase Council Tax by 3.9% for the 2015/16 financial year to ensure
that a balanced budget is achieved (Council Tax Band D being set at £992.02).

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  The Council is required annually to approve proposals to set a balanced budget, agree a
Council Tax rate and update its Medium Term Financial Plan.

10.2 Council is required to put in place a sound and prudent financial framework to support service
delivery.

1. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003.

Author: Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance

E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk Tel: 01443 863022

Consultees: Corporate Management Team

Clir Keith Reynolds, Leader

Clir Barbara Jones, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
ClIr Christine Forehead, Cabinet Member for HR & Governance / Business
Manager

Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer

David A. Thomas, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)

Background Papers:
Provisional Local Government Settlement (8th October 2013)

Appendices:

Appendix 1  Updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2015/16 to 2017/18
Appendix 2  2015/16 Draft Savings Proposals — \Whole Authority

Appendix 3  2015/16 Draft Savings Proposals — Education & Lifelong Learning
Appendix 4  2015/16 Draft Savings Proposals — Social Services

Appendix 5  2015/16 Draft Savings Proposals — Environment

Appendix 6  2015/16 Draft Savings Proposals — Corporate Services

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Appendix 1

Updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2015/16 to 2017/18 APPENDIX 1

Provisional LG Settlement (08/10/14)

Description 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£m £m £m
Aggregate External Finance (AEF) (9,087) (8,784) (8,491)
Council Tax @ 2.35% 1,569 1,598 1,642
Total Funding (7,518) (7,186) (6,849)
Pay 1.0%, 1.0%, 1.0% 1,131 1,131 1,131
Living Wage (assumes pledge funds schools) 164 164 164
Non-Pay Inflation (1.5% p.a.) 1,672 1,672 1,672
Non-Pay Inflation (1.5% p.a.) - Fees and Charges (240) (240) (240)
Capital Financing 150 150 150
Transfers In/Out 146 0 0
Other Passported Grants (137) 0 0
Sub-Total 2,886 2,877 2,877

Service Pressures/Additional Funding

CTRS Additional Liability @ 2.35% 332 339 347
Welfare Reforms LA Costs 0 100 100
Waste Management Contingency 240 0 0
Contact Centre, Bargoed - Running costs 75 0 0
Schools Pledge 665 628 632
Social Services Demographics 1,000 1,000 1,000
Employer NI Increase (April 2016) - Excludes schools 0 1,600 0
Proposal for Waste Transfer Station (Ty Duffryn) 150 0 0
Other Service Pressures 0 300 300
Sub-Total 2,462 3,967 2,379
Total Shortfall 12,866 14,030 12,105

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Appendix 2

Description Poteptial Impact narrative Impact Committee
Saving

WHOLE AUTHORITY COSTS

General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 2312

users ’

Scrutiny 17/6 supported a phased reduction to £150k p.a by
345]|Minimal impact upon public and service users Low 17/18 using reserves. A review of reduced scheme to be
undertaken prior to 17/18

Apprentice/trainee costs - reduce budget to £150k and
supplement with use of earmarked reserves

Assistance to voluntary sector 30|11% of total budget Low A further report will be presented to Scrutiny and Cabinet.

Project Gwyrdd 1,169|Previously agreed by full council Previously agreed by full council

17 Welsh Local Authorities have already adopted the
101|approved HMRC rate (45p). A further 3 Authorities are
considering this for 2015/16.

HMRC Mileage Rate - Reduction in mileage rate from
50p to 45p. £135k full year saving

Scrutiny 24/9 - Members requested that this be deferred for
one year to April 2016.

TOTAL WHOLE AUTHORITY COSTS 3,957

oy abed




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Appendix 3

Potential

Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING
General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 692
users
Public Libraries - Review of opening hours (tapered . . L L .
Scrutiny 19/6 rted | duct
delivery linked to present banding & population 67|Potential minor impact on public Low/Med hzrslrslny /6 supported in principle a reduction in opening
profiles) - Full year saving £134k ’
R t (SEN Out of County / LAC/ Int
ecoupmen ( ut of County / /Inter 50|Could be a risk due to volatility of placements Medium
Authority)
TOTAL EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING 809

G{ abed




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Appendix 4

. Potential . .
Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
SOCIAL SERVICES
General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 1568
users ’
Scrutiny 16/10 - Clarification was requested in respect of the
Reduction of 3 social workers per division with the "opportunity to consider the future of vacant posts". Officers
. ) . P 219]|This will be achieved through vacancy management. High PP ] Y ) P . \
intention to achieve by vacancy management explained that this related to the recently approved Children's
Services restructure.
Current Social Services revenue budget projections for
2014/15 indicate an underspend. In light of these projections
the £1 million demographic growth funding will not be
Removal of £1m demographic growth for 15/16. 1,000{required for 2015/16. Due to the volatility of demand on Low/Med
Social Services this does present a potential risk. However, if
there are any resulting overspends in 2015/16 these will be
met from service reserves.
Scrutiny 17/7 - Officers to explore options which would
Independent Sector Domiciliary Care - Elderly - Review 40 Alternative services will need to be explored with service Medium ensure the service is delivered where absolutely necessary.
of shopping service. users Scrutiny 16/10 - Members requested further information on
U potential impact on existing service users
=) Scrutiny 17/7 - Proposal supported by Members. Scrutiny
Q
Meals on(fyheels - Increase of £1 per meal. 88(Potential for reduced take up Medium  |16/10 - Members recommended increase of £1.50 which
N would result in a saving of £132k
~ Scrutiny 17/7 - Officers to explore options of a mixture of
Own Day Care - Review of day centre provision. Full service reconfiguration and targeted day services. Scrutin
Y v P 128|Relocation of service provision within the same community Medium & g y ) .y
Year saving £255k 16/10 - Members supported proposal to reconfigure services
to ensure no impact on service users.
Home Assistance and Reablement Team (H.A.R.T.) -
. . . . ( . ) Scrutiny 16/10 - One Member raised concerns that this area
Review of domiciliary care provision. This to include has borne the brunt of savings required in recent vears
vacancy management, shopping, laundry, sitting, single 85(Task and Finish Group to be established to review options. Medium g5 req y :

handed hoisting, telecare options and other community
support etc.

Officers explained that there are plans for options in this area
to be considered by a Task and Finish Group.

TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES

3,128




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Appendix 5

o Potential . .
Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
ENVIRONMENT
REGENERATION, PLANNING & ECONOMIC
General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 530
users
Reduced events availability to local residents that visit the ice
Removal of Bargoed ice rink from December 2015. 20 rink y Low Scrutiny 01/10 - Not accepted
Minimal impact as these schemes are additional to core
maintenance provision. In addition some wards/partnership
Community Regeneration - Area Forum Budget areas do not spend the allocation hence the £162k reserve.
y. . & & 72 P L . Low Scrutiny 01/10 - Not Accepted
removal. Utilise reserves of £162k over next few years Impact would be reduction in small community schemes
delivered and the availability of funds to provide match
funding for community facilities.
TOTAL REGENERATION, PLANNING & ECONOMIC 622

61 abed




Appendix 5

o Potential . .
Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
ENGINEERING DIVISION
General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 179
users
A combination of options will generate £450k saving in full
year. This may require some part-night lighting in residential
. . L . areas. This will require up front investment of £700k + £200k.
Highways Operations - Street Lighting energy reduction ] ) N .

. ] This contributes to Council's carbon reduction targets. . . . .
option - use of new technologies/part management 100 . . ) Medium  |Scrutiny 12/6 - Members requested further information.
lishting. Full vear saving £450k Consultation may not be required if the new technologies

gnting. y & being reviewed can achieve the savings required. The use of
new technologies will reduce the need/amount of part-night
lighting required. No effect on jobs.
Reduction in revenue budget will defer investment in
Highways Operations - Reduction in planned Council's largest asset for future years. No consultation . ) . )
300 Medium  [Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information requested
carriageway resurfacing budget (20% of budget). required, possible reduction in workforce, depends on capital y12/ q
budget support.
Reduction in revenue budget will defer investment in
Highways Operations - Reduction in planned footway Council's largest asset to future years. No consultation . ) . )
60 Medium  |Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information requested
resurfacing budget (12% of budget). required, possible reduction in workforce, depends on capital y12/ q
R budget support.
jaY)
Highway&perations - Gully Reed Bed recycling. Additional promotion with adjoining authorities to increase
Increase MCome by promoting facility to other 10| use of facility needed. Relies on winning new customers. No  [Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Supported
authoriti%}nd private sector formal consultation required. No effect on jobs.
Budget will need close monitoring to ensure reduction in
) ) . ) planned maintenance does not significantly increase reactive
Highways Operations - Reduce highways reactive
g. ys O & y 50[maintenance which could also increase third party claims. No |Medium [Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information requested
maintenance budget by 4%. . ] L . . L
consultation required. This will result in 1 no loss of job within
NCS which will be achieved through vacancy management.
Reduction will slow down investment in the infrastructure
that deals with climate change. No formal consultation
Highways Operations - Reduce highway/land drainage . L ) & o . .
lanned maintenance budget by 11% 30|required. This will contribute to an aggregated reduction in Medium  |Scrutiny 12/6 - Not supported
P jobs within NCS (0.6 FTE). This will be achieved through
vacancy management.
Route optimisation being undertaken to provide an option to
Reduce gritting routes from 9 to 8. 60|reduce routes from 9 to 8 but still keep existing coverage. No |[Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information requested
consultation required. No effect on jobs.
Small reduction in current work levels. Minimal risk. No
. . . consultation required. No direct effect on jobs. However, will
Highways Operations - Reduce 'aids to move budget'b
& vs OP & v 25|add to an aggregated reduction in overall budgets which will |Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Supported

25% (road markings/signs/crossing points).

result in job reductions (0.5 FTE). This will be achieved
through vacancy management.




Appendix 5

o Potential . .
Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
Difficult to assess impact as budget is weather susceptible. No
Highways Operations - Reduction in highways/land consultation required. This will contribute to an aggregated . )
20 Medium  [Scrutiny 12/6 - Not supported
drainage reactive maintenance budget by 4%. reduction in jobs within NCS (0.4 FTE). This will be achieved y12/ PP
through vacancy management.
Only the highest priority work is currently being undertaken.
) ) L This will need to continue and some key priorities may need
Highways Operations - Reduction in structures and . . . ) ) . )
retaining walls budget by 10% 50|to be delayed. No consultation required. This will contribute |Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information requested
’ to an aggregated reduction in jobs within NCS (0.5 FTE). This
will be achieved through vacancy management.
Historic anomalies in amounts of funding to various bodies.
Highways Operations - Remove financial support for 35 No formal consultation required. No impact on jobs. No risk in Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Supported but a list of areas affected to be
Christmas lighting in towns and villages. removing budget. Community councils/town councils will provided
need to arrange their own funding.
Highways Operations - Highways adoption and Raise fees in line with neighbouring councils. No public
8 vs P g Y P 15 . . & g. P Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Supported
agreement fees. Increase in fees consultation required. No effect on jobs.
Transport Engineering - Cease holding events in pay & Either events cover loss of income, are held in other locations . . . .
. P & ) & & pay . . . Scrutiny 12/6 - Supported subject to further liaison with
display car park sites. Events lead to loss of car park 20|or are not held. No public consultation required. No effect on |Low ) .
. ) Planning & Regeneration
income jobs.
. . ) Similar actions are being considered by other councils. Formal
Transporpngineering - Car park tariffs. Increase car e . . ) ) . )
) . 30|notification procedure required. No negative effect on jobs. Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information requested
parking €&rges by typically 10p per hour . . .
D No public consultation required.
Transpor€dhgineering - Management of off-street car Scrutiny 12/6 - Increase supported but further information
p. g & & . 25|No impact on service. No effect on jobs. Low . y12/ . PP
parks - increase excess charge notice penalty required re Sunday charging
Transport Engineering - Management of off-street car No impact on service. No effect on jobs. Public consultation
p. & & & 10 ) P ! Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information required
parks - introduce Sunday charges required.
Passenger Transport - Concessionary pass
replacements. Increase charges - currently £5 for No impact on service. No consultation required. No effect on )
Low Scrutiny 12/6 - Supported
second and subsequent - revise to £5 for first and £10 jobs. y12/ PP
for subsequent replacements
Review of Passenger Transport Services - Full year
& P y 24|No effect on jobs. Public consultation required. Medium  |Scrutiny 12/6 - Further information requested

impact £150k

TOTAL ENGINEERING DIVISION

1,050




Appendix 5

Description P;;i?r:';l Impact narrative Impact Committee
PUBLIC PROTECTION
General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 2
users
Fees will be increased to recover costs as appropriate. This
Licensing - Income - Increase fees. 8|will result in increased cost to the service user and may lead |Low Scrutiny 4/9 -Supported
to a fall in take up of the service.
Fees will be increased to recover costs as appropriate. This
Registrars - Income - Increase fees. 10|will result in increased cost to the service user and may lead [Low Scrutiny 4/9 -Supported
to a fall in take up of the service.
The Health Improvement Team strategically leads and delivers
the local response to Health Challenge Wales and Change 4
) Life Interventions as well as contribution to our Corporate
Heanlth Improvement Officer - 1.vacant post (0. 6 FTE) & Health activities. The Team consists of 5.4 FTE with 1.8 FTE . Scrutiny 4/9 Agenda Item 3(1) Appendix 3 - Further
Senior Health Improvement Officer - 1 vacant post (1 77 . Medium | .
FTE). delivering the Healthy Scboqls I?r.ogramr.ne and funded by information requested.
grant. Deleting 1.6 FTE will significantly impact upon the
capacity of team, as 1 post is the Senior Officer. Alternative
line management arrangements will need to be put in place.
JLY) Reducing the 3 EHOs within the General Environmental Health
g Team to 2 will extend the time taken to deal with and
D investigate service requests. The Team protects public health
1$1 and quality of life by dealing with complaints of nuisances or
Enforcen]s@t - Environmental Health Officer - 1 vacant 45 hazards to health. E.g. noise, defective drains and sewers, Medium  |New saving proposal.
post (1 FTE). investigation of odours, and bonfires etc. They deal with
filthy and verminous premises, and travellers sites, and are
also involved in problems of pest infestations, straying
animals and irresponsible dog ownership. They also enforce in
relation to littering, dog fouling and fly tipping activities.
TOTAL PUBLIC PROTECTION 162




Appendix 5

o Potential . .
Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
COMMUNITY & LEISURE SERVICES
General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 338
users.
Little or no impact on appearance of County Borough but
Parks & Playing Fields - Cessation of summer "Bands in P PP . y _ & o .
i 2[there may be a small number of complaints given the limited |Low New saving proposal
the Park" events programme . ) .
audience that typically enjoy these events.
Residual Waste - Charging for all replacement ) . . . . . . .
containers 60|Provides clarity over existing policy. Generally low impact. Low Scrutiny 30/7 - Suggested cabinet consider further.
Street Cleansing - Reduced cleaning on bank holidays. The only cleansing that will occur on bank holidays will be
. ) & & Y 13 v ) . & v Medium  |Scrutiny 30/7 - Supported
Cleansing will be reduced to same levels as weekends. early mornings in town centres
Street Cleansing - Reduction in weed removal budget. May result in increases in complaints from the public if
Reduced contribution to winter rear lane grubbing out 100 v . P P Med/High |Scrutiny 30/7 - Supported
weather conditions support weed growth
team.
Parks and Playing Fields - 2nd phase of the removal of
.y & P 40|Phase 1 completed in 2014/15 without any real issues Low Scrutiny 30/7 - Supported
flower beds in parks & open spaces.
Officers have considered an alternative option involving
Parks and Playing Fields - Reduction in playing field cessation of regular pitch marking and handing over pitch Scrutiny 30/7 - Could not support without first consulting
maintenance. Remove 2 fertilizer applications & cease 30| marking responsibility to clubs (subject to consultation). The |Medium |with local clubs & Town Councils in order to explore all
end of sea-ijn renovation works saving would be the same but some pitch renovation could avenues & funding options
Q then be undertaken.
«Q
(0]
w The Scrutiny members suggested that Officers examine
options to only increase adult fees while keeping junior fees
at current levels. If this strategy is employed the options are
as follows:-
Parks and Playing Fields - Increase outdoor facilit Scrutiny 30/7 - Members suggested freeze for juniors but
charees b 20{/ & y 20| e Increase of 40% in adult fees = additional £27k income Medium further\?ncr{ease for adults g8 z !
ges by L% ¢ Increase of 45% in adult fees = additional £31k income '
¢ Increase of 50% in adult fees = additional £34k income
¢ Increase of 100% in adult fees = additional £69k income
Consulting with key stakeholders. Negotiations ongoing with
Cwmcarn Leisure Centre - Centre closed - handover of & . y . . & . & g Scrutiny 30/7 - Members supported option not to reopen as a
o 25|school regarding principle, but capital liability issues still to be |Low ]
facility to school o . leisure centre.
resolved. This will be subject to a further report.
Parks and Playing Fields - Review park ranger service to 40 Can be accommodated by not engaging agency staff in the Medium Scrutiny 30/7 - Subject to consultation with Trade Unions and
reduce from 18 to 12. Spring of 2015 Town Councils, Members happy to support
) . Rationalisation of the number of small sweepers will reduce
Street Cleansing - Reduce number of pedestrian . . )
14|the ability to cover the whole borough, other than for specific [Low Scrutiny 30/7 - Supported
sweepers operated by 1. )
periods.
Parks and Playing Fields - Cessation of litter picking at May result in increased littering (particularly in
ying P & 12 Y g (p v Medium  |New saving proposal

14 parks on Saturdays.

spring/summer). Potential for increase in public complaints.




Appendix 5

o Potential . .

Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
Parks and Playing Fields - R | of Barrier Attendant C ks (at parks) will i .M Itini d

arks an | aying Fields - Removal of Barrier Attendants 14 .ar p.ar s (a pali s) v§/| rema|.n open. May result in increase Medium |New saving proposal
at 5 locations littering and anti-social behaviour after hours.
Sport & Leisure - Closure of Bedwas swimming pool on Level of use can be accommodated at Caerphilly Leisure .

10 Low New saving proposal

Sundays. Centre.
Sport & Leisure - Average price increase of 5% on Additional cost of 5% to users e.g.: Swim from £3.05 to £3.20 - )

100 Low/Med |New saving proposal
leisure centre fees Gym from £4.25 to £4.45 / g prop
Waste Strategy & Operations - Closure of Civic Amenity 100 Obvious reduction in availability to public. Closure days Medium Scrutiny 30/7 - This option was suggested by Scrutiny
Sites for 2 days/week + 1 hour on other days would be staggered across all sites. committee.

oThe full year proposed saving represents 7.4% of the total
cleansing budget of £4.075m with the part year saving
representing 2.45%
* The process needs careful management involving Corporate
HR as it will inevitably mean a reduction in the number of
staff.
* There will be a significant impact in the cleanliness of the
Waste Strategy & Operations - Reduction in cleansing county borough. ) )
100 High New saving proposal
budget. Full year impact £300k * An increase in back office and Contact Centre workload & g prop
v could result from an increase in public complaints.
Q * Given the time constraint in identifying additional savings
(@] there has been limited consultation with Trade Unions,
® Contact Centre etc.
(@)] e Contact Centre Service Level Agreement for nappy waste &
A missed collections will need to be reviewed and replaced with
a 7 day response.
TOTAL COMMUNITY & LEISURE SERVICES 1,018

TOTAL ENVIRONMENT

2,852




Appendix 6

o Potential . .
Description Saving Impact narrative Impact Committee
CORPORATE SERVICES
General - Savings that have no direct impact on service 986
users
The majority of Authorities in Wales are proposing to
withdraw this funding for 2015/16. Withdrawal of the fundin
. e . . . . g / . ) . & Scrutiny 17/6 - Further information requested. Scrutiny 24/9 -
Withdrawal of 'additional help for pensioners with their for this scheme may need to be monitored in terms of impact ) . )
. \ ] 246 ] . Low Supported 50% withdrawal of funding in 2015/16 with
Council Tax' funding. and pensioners who fall into arrears may need to be ) ) . ) .
. L remainder of funding being withdrawn in 2016/17.
signposted to other forms of support from sources within the
Council and from external partners in the voluntary sector.
C icati Unit-C to deli twinni
om@unlca ions Unit - Cease to deliver a twinning 5 Low Scrutiny 17/6 - Supported
function.
This will be subject t t t. No significant i t
Review of Customer First - Full year impact estimated at 15 wiil be subject toa sepéra? € repor 0.5|gn| |ca.n impac
. 125|for 2015/16 as part year. Will involve reducing opening hours |Low/Med
£250k, part year impact 15/16 . )
in all Customer First centres but no closures.
The details of this proposal were presented to the Special
Closure of Ty Pontllanfraith - Full year impact £600k, ] prop _ p. P Scrutiny endorsed the principle to begin consultation on the
) . 100|Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee on the 17th June Low
part year impact in 15/16 proposal
2014.
TOTAL CJRPORATE SERVICES 1,462
puv)

GG ob




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



- Agenda ltem 10
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL]Y
>

HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -

2ND DECEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 2014/15

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

41

4.2

4.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform Scrutiny Committee of the position in relation to the performance management
figures for both Adult Services and Children’s Services for the period up to September 2014.

SUMMARY

Members will be aware from previous reports / presentations that Adult Services and
Children’s Services have a range of performance indicators. Some of these indicators are
national indicators determined by Welsh Government while other are local indicators that have
been created by senior managers to oversee areas not covered by the national indicators.

This report provides the position in terms of performance information up to the end of
September 2014.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

The performance indicators attached support the Directorate in meeting the range of
objectives set out in the Single Integrated Plan, Corporate Plan, Improvement Objectives, the
Director Of Social Services Annual report and the Adult’'s and Children’s Service Improvement
plans.

THE REPORT

As previously stated, both the Adult Services and Children’s Services Divisions have a range
of national and local indicators that oversee the work of the divisions. The targets are set at
the start of each financial year and managed via the authority’s Ffynnon system. The targets
are a mix of national indicators set by Welsh Government (SCA’s and SCC’s) and local
indicators (ASPI's). Performance figures for Adult and Children’s Services as at September
2014 are attached as Appendix 1of this report.

Performance against the indicators is monitored on a monthly basis, initially by the respective
Divisional Management Teams and then by the Directorate’s Senior Management Team
before going onto Corporate Management Team. This allows senior managers to identify any
potential difficulties and take corrective action where possible.

In terms the position as at September 2014, this can be summarised as follows.

Page 57



4.3.1 Adult Services

Adult Services have a total of 15 national and local indicators. There are several indicators
where further comment is warranted:

Indicator Comment

SCA /001 Members will be aware that delayed transfers of care has and continues
& to be a challenging area for the authority. The position at September
ASPI 63 2014 is indicating improved performance but it is accepted that we are
now entering a particularly challenging time of year and this will need to
be monitored closely.

ASPI 02 Delays in this area are primarily due to the occupational therapy team
who are currently carrying two vacancies. Other areas are Older People
Mental Health and Substance Misuse. Delays in this area are currently
being examined in more depth.

ASPI 17 & | Members will be aware of the difficulty of validating performance against
ASPI 18 these measures as the Adult Mental Health Teams are putting the
information into Epex (the Health system).

4.3.2 Children’s Services

Children’s Services have a total of 47 national and local indicators. Once again performance
remains. However, there are several indicators where further comment is warranted:

Indicator Comment

SCC/025 This indicator is currently amber due to incorrect recording.

CSPI 01 186 children were 0-4 and were not seen alone. Therefore out of a
possible 519 children, 258 were seen a lone by a worker. This equates
to 69%.

4.4 At previous Scrutiny Committees, Members have asked for All Wales comparators.
Comparators for 2013/14 are attached as Appendix 2 of this report.

5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

5.1 An equalities impact assessment hasn’t been completed at this time as this report is for
information only.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

71 There are no direct personnel implications arising from this report.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1 All comments from consultations are reflected in the main body of the report.

Page 58



9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Members are asked to note the content of this report.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1  The report gives the detail on the actual performance of Adult and Children’s Services against
the national and local performance indicators for the period up to September 2014.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Local Government Act 2000.

Author: Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services
Consultees: Councillor Robin Woodyatt, Cabinet Member, Social Services
Jo Williams, Assistant Director, Adult Services
Gareth Jenkins, Assistant Director, Children’s Services
Steve Harris, Acting Head of Corporate Finance
Colin Jones, Head of Performance & Property Services
loan Richards, Performance Development Officer

Appendices:

Appendix 1 - Adult & Children’s Services PI Table — March 2014
Appendix 2 - All Wales Comparators 2013/14

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



02. Adult Services PI table (monthly)

Social Services - Adult Services

Title

SCA/001 - Rate of DTOC for social care
reasons aged 75 plus

SCA/002a - The rate of older people
supported in the community aged 65 or over
per 1,000 population aged 65 or over

SCA/002b - The rate of older people
supported in care homes aged 65 or over per
1,000 aged 65 or over

SCA/019 - % Of adult protection referrals
completed where the risk has been managed

19 abed

Title

SCA/007 - The percentage of clients whose
care plans should have been reviewed that
were reviewed during the year

SCA/018a - % of adult carers who were
offered an assessment

SCA/020 - The percentage of adult clients
who are supported in the community during
the year

National Performance Indicators

Actual

9.86

120.97

17.38

84.40

Actual

93.90

89.60

92.04

RAG Previous

Target Intervention Month

8.00 11.00 10.32
125.00 135.00 118.00
21.00 22.50 H 17.67
90.00 80.00 84.10

Public Accountability Measures

. Previous

Target Intervention RAG Month
95.00 83.00 92.70
90.00 79.00 89.30

90.00 85.00 E 91.85

Previous
years
Actual

9.32

151.67

19.41

89.30

Previous
years
Actual

93.40

90.00

91.90

Result
12
Months
Ago

11.01

130.52

18.32

81.5

Result
12
Months
Ago

92.6

88.3

91.54

Comment

0 Delays for Social Care Reasons

3738 Service users

537 service users

249/295

Comment

2034/2167

1246/1390

6960/7562

September 2014



02. Adult Services PI table (monthly) September 2014

Social Services - Adult Services

Local Performance Indicators

Previous Result 12

Title Actual Target Interventon RAG Previous years Months = Comment

Month

Actual Ago

ASPI 02 - Number of adults waiting for an 112.00 70.00 105.00 103.00 60.00 153 112 service users
assessment outside of the timescale (28 days)
ASPI 03 - The % of adult services assessments 80.00 85.00 75.00 78.90 72.80 73.3 5730/7160
started on time
ASPI 17 - % Mental Health reviews started on time 74.80 90.00 75.00 78.90 80.20 82.1 244/326
(18-64)
ASPI 18 - % Mental health assessments started 81.50 85.00 75.00 81.90 83.60 85.4 914/1121
on time
ASPI 21 - % Variance spend on allocated budget 0.00 0.50 272 0.90 Reported bi-monthly.
ASPI 24 - % of all adult reviews started on time 77.20 85.00 75.00 77.00 78.50 79.3 2333/3022
ASR}y42 - Number of people awaiting personal care 0.00 0.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 0 O service users
for @apre than 14 days
ASFEP63 - The number of DTOC for Social Care 0.00 8.00 11.00 4.00 19.00 The actual number of delayed transfers of care for
Reﬁns social care reasons.



03. Children Services PI table (monthly)

September 2014

Social Services - Children’s Services

Title

SCC/002 % of LAC with one or more changes of school

SCC/004 % of LAC who have had more than 3 placements
during the year

SCC/011b % assessments - child seen alone by Social
Worker

SCC/033d % of former LAC in contact at age of 19

SCCAER3e % of former LAC in suitable accommodation at 19
SC@?:Sf % of former LAC in educ/training/employment at 19
SCGEW37 Average external qualifications points score for LAC
SC@Ma % of eligible children that have pathway plans

Title

SCC/001a % of LAC that began with a care plan in place
SCC/011a % assessments - child seen by Social Worker

SCC/025 % of statutory visits to LAC due in the year that took
place

SCC/030a % of young carers who were assessed

SCC/045 The percentage of reviews of looked after children,
children on the Child Protection Register and children in need
carried out in line with the statutory timetable

National Performance Indicators

Actual Target Intervention RAG
2.00 13.70 15.00 .:.
3.90 10.00 12.00 E

4130 40.00 38.00 i

100.00 100.00 90.00 .:.

100.00  95.00 85.40 .:.

50.00  50.00 40.00 SN

200.00 158.00
100.00 100.00 89.00 .:.

Public Accountability Measures

Actual Target Intervention RAG
100.00 100.00 90.00 I
7430 60.00 50.00 .:.
82.50  90.00 80.00
100.00  95.00 76.40 .:.
92.00 87.00 78.30 E

Previous
Period

1.90
4.10

40.90

100.00
100.00

54.50
238.00
100.00

Previous
Period

98.00
76.10
96.60

100.00
93.20

Previous

years
Actual

8.30
9.50

42.70

100.00
93.30
60.00

238.00

100.00

Previous
years
Actual

100.00
77.30
95.50

100.00
96.60

Result 12
Months Ago

5.2
4.6

411

100
100
54.5

99.3

Result 12
Months Ago

100
76.7

100
92.5

Comment

4/203
10/258

291/705

However, SWs completed 557 IAs - 150 of
these were not seen alone by a SW and
were children aged 0-4.

Of the possible 407 children they could
have seen alone, 291 were seen alone
=71.5%

14/14

14/14

7114

Annual Indicator
132/132

Comment

54/54
524/705
790/957

Barnardo's Data 13/13
1029/1119



03. Children Services PI table (monthly)

September 2014

Social Services - Children’s Services

Service Improvement and Local Performance Indicators

Title

CSPI 01 The % of initial assessments that were
completed in the year where there is evidence that the
child has been seen alone by the social worker or
support worker

CSPI02 The percentage of initial assessments that took
place in the year where there is evidence that the child
has been seen by a social worker or support worker

SCC/001b % of LAC with a plan for permanence at due
date

SCC/006 % of referrals made within 1 working day.

SCC/007a % of referrals allocated to a social worker for
initigdhssessment

SCE007b % of referrals allocated to non-social
workRrs for initial assessment

SC@@10 % of repeat referrals within 12 months.

scc®3ai % of children with an allocated social worker
- Children on CPR

SCC/013aii % of children with an allocated social
worker - LAC

SCC/013aiii % of children with an allocated social
worker - Children in Need

SCC/013bi % of children allocated to someone other
than a social worker - Children on CPR

SCC/013bii % of children allocated to someone other
than a social worker - LAC

SCC/013biii % of children allocated to someone other
than a social worker - Children in Need

SCC/014 % of initial child protection conferences held
within timescale

SCC/015 % of initial core group meetings held within
timescale

SCC/016 % of reviews of children in need plans carried
out in accordance with the statutory timetable

Actual

46.50

93.00

100.00

99.90
76.90

19.10

22.60
100.00

100.00

72.20

0.00

0.00

27.30

98.60

98.40

86.80

Target

50.00

90.00

100.00

100.00
67.00

28.00

23.50
100.00

100.00
65.00
0.00
0.00
35.00
96.00
96.00

90.00

Intervention

RAG

45.00

80.00

89.90

90.00
60.00

35.00

27.20
89.90

89.90

58.40

10.10

10.10

38.60

89.00

76.80

80.00

Previous Period

48.90

92.90

100.00

100.00
77.90

18.20

22.90
100.00

100.00

71.80

0.00

0.00

26.90

99.10

100.00

89.30

Previous Result 12
years Months

Actual Ago
50.90

93.40

100.00

100.00
79.90

14.60

24.30
100.00

100.00
78.60
0.00
0.00
19.90
100.00
98.00

94.60

49

93.3

100

100
82.2

14.3

23.9
100

100

77.6

100

98.2

86.4

Comment

358/705 186 of these children
were aged 0-4 and were not
seen alone. Therefore out of a
possible 519 children, 358 were
seen alone by a worker = 69.0%

656/705
36/36

849/850
655/850

162/850

192/850
209/209

251/251
868/787
0/209

0/251

215/787
137/139
123/125

472/544



03. Children Services PI table (monthly) September 2014

Social Services - Children’s Services

Service Improvement Data

Previous Result 12

Title Actual Target Intervention RAG Previous Period years Months Comment
Actual Ago

SCC/020 % of LAC who have been to see a dentist 87.00 78.30 85.10 Annual Indicator

SCC/021 % of LAC reviews carried out within statutory 94.00 90.00 80.00 94.00 97.50 96.9 264/281

timescales

SCC/022a % attendance of LAC in primary schools 96.00 86.40 96.00 96.00 Annual Indicator

SCC/022b % attendance of LAC in secondary schools 90.00 80.00 90.80 90.80 Annual Indicator

SCC/024 % of LAC receiving a PEP within 20 school 9520  85.00 76.50 E 100.00 95.20 86.7 20/21

days

SCC/030b % of young carers who were provided with a 100.00  90.00 71.90 100.00 96.90 90.6 Barnardo's Data 13/13

service

SCC/034 % of children on CPR whose cases were 99.70  98.00 88.00 99.60 95.20 99.6 293/294

reviewed

SCC§35 % of LAC achieving the Core Subject Indicator 78.57 59.28 71.40 71.40 Annual Indicator

atK

SCBH#36 % of LAC achieving the Core Subject Indicator 41.66 28.33 42.90 42.90 Annual Indicator

atK

SC@EQ % of health assessments for Looked after 98.00 85.40 92.20 Annual Indicator

children

SCC/040 % of LAC who were registered with a GP 100.00  99.00 80.90 IEN 100.00 100.00 100 124/124

SCC/041b % of eligible children with a personal advisor ~ 100.00 100.00 89.90 EN 100.00 100.00 100 164/164

SCC/042a % of initial assessments completed within 7 97.40 85.00 73.00 97.20 89.20 86.4 685/703

working days

SCC/042b The average time taken to complete initial 18.00 15.00 13.00 17.00 15.00 15.7 321/18

assessments that took longer than 7 working days to

complete.

SCC/043a % core assessments carried out within 35 92.50 87.00 77.00 92.00 95.50 94.4 368/398

working days.

SCC/043b The average time taken to complete core 54.00 50.00 55.00 52.00 53.00 52 1619/30

assessments that took longer than 35 days

SCC/044a % of LAC who were permanently excluded 0.00 10.10 0.00 0.00 Annual Indicator

SCC/044b Average no. of days spent out of school for 5.50 7.50 7.40 7.40 Annual Indicator

LAC



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



APPENDIX 2

Analysis of National Strategic Indicators (NSI) and Public Accountability Measures (PAM)
For 2013/14 - Social Services

Our performance key shows:

- @ Worse than the previous year

Same as the previous year
Current year results

compared to Better than the previous year

previous year results
- X Performance maintained at best it can be

o) Data not available or comparable — see
8 individual comments for explanation
0\7h 2012/13 2013/14
ef Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average

The rate of delayed transfers of care for social

SCAO0 332? rzaﬁgcl))ns per 1,000 population aged 75 or 9.32 20" out 8

days of 22 Days

22" out of

01 29 4.70

Improvement Direction: Lower result is better




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average

There were a total of 158 delays for Social Services reasons in 2013/14 compared to 121 in 2012/13. In 2013/14 our performance
declined to 11.99 days compared to 9.32 days the previous year. Our position in Wales has decreased from 20" to 22". We are
also above the all Wales average of 4.70 days. This indicator is post-populated with information, which is taken from the HOWIS
(Health of Wales Information Service) system, operated by the Local Health Board, and consequently the information cannot be

validated.

The rate of older people (aged 65 or over)

SCAO0 | supported in the community per 1,000 population ot
1% out
aged 65 or over at 31 March (NSI) 151.67 £92 145
;)Uoza Improvement Direction: Higher result is better 0
O
D
o

3 out of
22

74.48

Although the rate of older people has reduced slightly, we continue to be a top performing authority. The service continues to focus
on the signposting of people to community-based services, increasing the use of frailty services, volunteers and community
connectors. The WG guidance for this Pl does not include these services. 3,738 were supported in 2013/14 compared to 4,524 in
2012/13. In 2013/14 our performance declined slightly to 120.97 compared to 151.67 the previous year. Our position continues to be

significantly above the Welsh average.




Ref

2012/13 2013/14

Description

Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average
The rate of older people (aged 65 or over) whom
SCAOQ | the authority supports in care homes per 1,000 71 ut 6" out of
_ 19.41 21 19.84
02b | population aged 65 or over at 31 March (NSI) of 22 22

Improvement Direction: Lower result is better

In 2013/14 there were 543 older people supported in care homes compared to 579 in 2012/13. In 2013/14 our performance has

improved slightly to 17.57 compared to 19.41 the previous year. Our position has improved from 7" to 6" in Wales. We are
-© el
Qv performing slightly better than the All Wales Average.
O
D
A
The percentage of adult protection referrals
SCAO  completed where the risk has been managed (NSI) 18t out 19" out of .
. . . 89.3% 90% 94.45%
19 Improvement Direction: Higher result is better of 22 22




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average

Of the 340 adult protection referrals completed in 2013/14, 308 referrals had their risk managed. The remaining are as a result of the
@ alleged victims, not wishing to proceed with the POVA process, and therefore managing the risks themselves. Our position in Wales
has gone from 18" to 19" in Wales and we are also below the all Wales average.

The percentage of clients with a care plan at 31
SR March whose care plans should have been
th
RY reviewed during the year (PAM) 93.4% 3rd out 95% 4" out of 81.1%
o 07 of 22 22
D Improvement Direction: Higher result is better
\l
-]
® Our position in Wales has gone from 3™ to 4™, and we continue to perform well above the all Wales average.
The percentage of carers of adults who were
SCAO | offered an assessment or review of their needs 13t out 151 out of .
18a | in their own right during the year (PAM) 90.0% of 22 90% 29 85.8%
Improvement Direction: Higher result is better




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average

There were 1,454 carers aged 18+ known to social services in 2013/14 and 1,283 were offered assessments or reviews in their own
right. We performed slightly worse than last year. Our position in Wales has gone from 13" to 15™, but we are still above the all

Wales average.

The percentage of adult clients who are

15t out of
22

86.33%

SCAO0  supported in the community during the year 1st out
(PAM) 91.87% sf g; 90%
20 Improvement Direction: Higher result is better
-
o
¢ Out of the 7,676 adult clients, 7054 were supported either in the community in 2013/14 and performed slightly better than last year.
—L© Our position remains 1% in Wales and above the all Wales average.

SCCO

The percentage of children looked after at 31
March who have experienced one or more
changes of school, during the period or periods
of being looked after, which were not due to
transitional arrangements, in the 12 months to 31
March. (NSI)

Improvement Direction: Lower result is better

6.0%

1st out
of 22

8%

2" out of
22

13.8%




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average

Out of the 218 looked after children of compulsory school age, 18 children experienced 1 or more changes of school in 2013/14
compared to 14 out of 232 children in 2012/13. As a result we have gone from 1% to 2" in Wales, but we are still performing better

than the all Wales average.

SCCO

The percentage of children looked after on 31
March who have had three or more placements

13" out of
22

8.3%

th
during the year. (NSI) 6.9% S f g;t 6.2%
04 Improvement Direction: Lower result is better 0
o
)
«Q
® Of the 276 looked after children 26 had 3 or more placements during the year. Compared to 21 out of the 304 in 2012/13. Although
S performance has got worse there are particular issues regarding WG data requirements. On the 1st April all LAC children are

counted as having had 1 placement move even if they are in long-term placements. A planned return home, or a move to an
adoptive placement are also counted despite ending the child’s period of being looked after. Our position in Wales has gone from
5™ to 13" and we are performing worse than the all Wales average.

SCCO
11b

The percentage of initial assessments that took
place during the year where there is evidence
that the child has been seen alone by the Social
Worker. (NSI)

Improvement Direction: Higher result is better

36.9%

13" out
of 22

45%

13" out of
22

42.9%




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average

Compared to the 1,998 initial assessments completed in 2012/13, 1,804 were completed in 13/14. Of those there was evidence that
770 children were seen alone by a social worker compared to 737 in 2012/13. We remain 13" in Wales and are slightly below the

all Wales average.

The percentage of young people formerly looked

Improvement Direction: Higher result is better

Scco  after with whom the authority is in contact at the 1% out of 1% out of
age of 19. (NSI) 100% gg ° 100% 100% gg ° 93.4%
33d Improvement Direction: Higher result is better
-
3
¢ All of the 19 yr olds formerly looked after, were still in contact by the Authority in 2013/14. We have maintained our position as 1% in
w ¥ | Wales out of the 22 local authorities and we are also above the all Wales average.
The percentage of young people formerly looked
SCCo after with whom the authority is in contact, who
are known to be in suitable, non-emergency 95.8% 11" out of 95.8% 9™ out of 92 7%
33e | accommodation at the age of 19. (NSI) 270 22 o7 22 70




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average

Out of the 30 young people, 28 were in suitable non-emergency accommodation at the end of 2013/14. We performed slightly worse
than last year, but have improved from 11" to 9" in Wales and are performing above the all Wales average. It should be note that
each year, the cohort of 19 year olds change, which impacts on the % figures, reported. In 2012/13 there were 24 19 year olds. Of
those 23 were in suitable non-emergency accommodation. Therefore in 2013/14 the drop in % terms equates to 1 young person.

The percentage of young people formerly looked
after with whom the authority is in contact, who

el are known to be engaged in education, training 259 5% out of 759
33f | or employment at the age of 19. (NSI) 0 22 0
I-DU Improvement Direction: Higher result is better
O
D
1N

9" out of
22

54.8%

Out of 30 young people, 18 are engaged in education, training & employment. The remaining young people are in contact with the
16 Plus Service and are actively being encouraged to engage in meaningful day time activities. We performed slightly worse than
last year and have gone from 5™ to 9" in Wales. However, we are still performing above the all Wales average. Again it should be
noted that the cohort of 19 year olds change on an annual basis thereby impacting the % reported. In 2012/13 there were 24 19 year
olds. Of those 18 were engaged in education, training and employment. It could be therefore, that performance has remained static

in 2013/14.




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Positionin = All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average
The average external qualifications point score
for 16 year old looked after children, in any local
SCCO | authority maln_taln_ed Iegrnlng settlpg. (NSI) 20t out 15 out of
37 Improvement Direction: Higher result is better 157 of 22 198 29 262

27 Looked after children aged 16, received 6,428 points with an average point score of 238.07 (All 2280 pupils aged 15 on the 31st
August attained 1,037,296 points with an average score of 454.95). Our performance has improved compared to last year and we
have moved from 20" to 15" in Wales. However, we are performing slightly below the all Wales average of 262.

Improvement Direction: Higher result is better

-
)
O
v
o
The percentage of eligible, relevant and former

SCCO | relevant children that have a pathway plans in th ot

41, Plce (NS 993% 1O 99% 1houtol | 892y,

All of the 145 eligible, relevant and former relevant children had pathways plans in place as required. In 2013/14 our performance
improved to 100% compared to 99.3% the previous year. Our position in Wales has increased from 11" to 15! We are still above the

all Wales average of 89.2%.




2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Positionin = All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average
The percentage of first placements of looked
SCCO0 | after children during the year that began with a 1%t out 1%t out of
care plan in place. (PAM) 100% fgg 100% Cz’; ° 90.9%
01a Improvement Direction: Higher result is better 0
For the past 5 years 100% of 1st placements for looked after children have began with care plans in place. There has been a
* decrease in the looked after children population with 92 first placements in 2013/14 compared to 122 in 2012/13. We have
maintained our position as 1% in Wales out of the 22 local authorities and we are also performing above the all Wales average.
o
V)
@)
3 The percentage of initial assessments that took
SCCo place during the year where there is evidence
that the child has been seen by the Social 67 5% 20" out 60% 15" out of 78.9%
11a | Worker. (PAM) 70 of 22 0 22 o0

Improvement Direction: Higher result is better

Of those 1,804 initial assessments completed in the year, 1,394 had evidence to show the child had been seen by a social worker.
We have performed better than last year and have gone from 20" to 15" in Wales. However, we are still performing slightly below

the all Wales average.

10



2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average
The percentage of statutory visits to looked after
children due in the year that took place in
accordance with regulations. (PAM) | t
Scco 9 (PAM) Improvemen 74.0% 17" out 90% 2" out of 85,30
25 | Direction: Higher result is better 70 of 22 ° 22 270

There were 1,501 statutory visits to Looked After Children due in the year and 1,434 took place in accordance with regulations. This
is an improvement on last year's performance, as a result we have moved from 17" to 2" in Wales and performed above the all

Improvement Direction: Higher result is better

q) Wales average.
&
)
~
~N
The percentage of young carers known to social
SCCO  services who were assessed during the year. ot
s0n | (PAW) 96.9% | or o 95% houtol | g5.9%

All of the 65 young carers known to social services in 2013/14 received assessments. This is an improvement on last year’s
performance, as a result we have moved from 14" to 1% in Wales and performed above the all Wales average.

11



Improvement Direction: Higher result is better

y 9bed

average.

2012/13 2013/14
Ref Description Our Position in Target Our Position in | All Wales
Result Wales 9 Result Wales Average
The percentage of reviews of looked after
SCCo children, children on the child protection register
and children in need carried out in line with the 90 6% 8th out 879 3 out of 89.6%
45 | statutory timetable. (PAM) =7 of 22 ° 22 270

A total of 2131 children had their care plans reviewed within the statutory timescales. Of those children 2207 plans are due for
review in the year. Of the 2,207 children 649 were looked after children of which 633 had plans reviewed, 523 were on the child
protection register with 519 having plans reviewed and 1,035 were children in need, 979 of those had their plans reviewed. This is
an improvement on last year’s performance, as a result we have moved from 8" to 3 in Wales and performed above the all Wales

Source: Data Unit Wales — How did we do? 2013-14 Performance Information version dated 20/21 August 2014

12



Agenda ltem 11

A Y
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL]Y
>

HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
2ND DECEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: DEPRIVATION OF LIBERTY
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform elected members of the changes in case law involving authorising deprivations of
liberty for people in care homes and in the community.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 On the 2014, the Supreme Court, considered 2 cases concerned with potential deprivations of
liberty. These cases were:

e P (by his litigation friend the Official Solicitor) (Appellant) v Cheshire West and Chester
Council and another (Respondents)

e P and Q (by their litigation friend, the Official Solicitor) (Appellants) v Surrey County
Council (Respondent)

2.2 In the above ruling the Supreme Court clarified the criteria for judging whether the living
arrangements made for a person who lacks capacity amounts to a deprivation of liberty for the
purposes of Article 5 of the European Convention on Human Rights.

2.3 The ruling has many implications for how the Mental Capacity Act is interpreted and used and
for the situations in which people can be lawfully deprived of their liberty.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 Compliance with statutory responsibilities.

4, THE REPORT

4.1 The application of the Mental Capacity Act 2007, and the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
(DOLS) subsequently incorporated into the Act, is complex and complicated, and as such has
been subject to interpretation by practitioners and the courts since its enactment. The Act,
including the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, is currently under review by the Law
Commission, which is due to report in 2017.

4.2 The above judgement, known as the “Cheshire West” case, has introduced a revised test
about the meaning of a deprivation of liberty. The Supreme Court has now clarified that there
is a deprivation of liberty for the purposes of Article 5 of the European Convention on Human
Rights when the following applies when the person is:

Page 79



4.3

4.3.1

4.4

4.5

4.6

47

e Under the continuous supervision and control (and the care provided is imputable to the
state),
Is not free to leave, and

e The person lacks the capacity to consent to these arrangements.

As a result of the judgement the following circumstances are no longer relevant to the test of
deprivation:

e The person’s compliance or lack of objection,
e The relative normality or quality of the placement (“a gilded cage is still a cage”), and
e The reason or purpose behind the placement or restriction.

The latter circumstances influenced previous practice and contributed to low numbers of
individuals considered to have been deprived of their liberty. The low numbers of deprivations
have been highlighted in successive Annual Monitoring Reports on DoLS leading to an all
Wales Inspection of DoLS practice to be conducted by Welsh Government in 2014.

There are 5 guiding principles in considering whether people lack mental capacity:

1. There is a presumption that people have capacity. Capacity is also issue and time
specific.

2. People are empowered to contribute to the process and helped in whatever way possible
to engage.

3. The foolish are not necessarily incapable.

4. Decisions are taken in the best interest of the individual, and

5. The least restrictive options are pursued.

There are different processes when considering deprivation of liberties depending on where
the person lives. For people who live at home or in community settings, e.g. supported living
placements, deprivations of liberty can only be authorised by the Court of Protection. For
people who live in care homes, or are currently occupying a bed on a hospital ward, the
deprivation can be authorised by a Supervisory Body. This authority is a Supervisory Body for
people who now live in a care home setting. Care homes (and hospital wards) are known as
Managing Authorities under the Act and, as the authority has its own care homes, this local
authority is a Managing Authority. Thus this authority is, therefore, both a Supervisory Body
and a Managing Authority under Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.

To respond to deprivations of liberty in care homes Caerphilly is part of a Pan Gwent
Consortium where assessments are coordinated through a small DoLS Team managed by
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (ABUHB). Before the Supreme Court judgement the
team comprised 2 Best Interest Assessors (BIA’s) supported by casual staff and
administration. The original funding for the team was through grant funding for DoLS from
Welsh Government, the responsibility for DoLS resides with each local authority and ABUHB
individually. Subsequent to the judgement authorisation was given to recruit 2 additional
BIA’s from existing resources. Further funding has recently been agreed to increase the
staffing by 6 FTE with agreement for each statutory body to contribute funding for a further
BIA including associated training costs.

The Supreme Court judgement is recognised as having a significant increase in the demand
for assessing for potential deprivations of liberty. Actual numbers are difficult to estimate due
to the individual nature of people’s circumstances and care provided, and there are variations
in estimates across local authority areas in England and Wales. Within Caerphilly we
estimate that potentially 776 people may be deprived of their liberty based on the Supreme
Court ruling (see 4.2 & 4.3 above). This is broken down into 459 people in long-term care
placements, and 132 people who live in supported living type settings and 185 people in the
community.

Page 80



4.8

4.8.1

48.2

48.3

48.4

48.5

4.8.6

4.8.7

4.8.8

4.8.9

4.8.10

4.8.11

The judgement has significant implications for local authorities and Health Boards:

For those people in care homes and hospitals (including Continuing NHS Health Care) who
require an authorised DoLS involves a complex assessment process (6 assessments ranging
from an age requirement to complex needs assessments and best interest assessments and
decisions). This has to be done at least annually for each resident and on each significant
change in circumstances.

For those in community settings — their case would need to go to the Court of Protection.
These cases are currently reviewed four monthly at the Court of Protection for the first year
and then annually if there are no objections; if there are objections then 4 monthly. This has
significant implications for current social work practice specifically in increased complexity and
time management, should numbers increase substantially.

Those people who fund their own care, and lack mental capacity are also subject to the same
provisions if they are resident in a care home and will need to be assessed by social workers
to ensure they have not been inappropriately placed in long-term care by family members or
others who lack the necessary legal decision making powers to do so.

The capacity of Gwent Deprivation of Liberties Safeguarding Supervisory Body is insufficient
to manage the demand. This situation is replicated across all Local authorities and Health
Boards in Wales, and those in England who have responsibilities.

The current waiting list (25/9/2014) stands at 700+ across the Health Board and 5 Local
Authorities to manage the risks a screening tool has been implemented to identify those
individuals at greatest risk in order to prioritise their assessment over those who would
normally not have fallen within the criteria of the safeguards.

The level of required increased advice and activity around cases, particularly those going to
the Court of Protection, has implications for Legal Services.

Taking Court of Protection legal proceedings and defending challenges to these illegal
detentions will be expensive and no budget exists for this volume of work.

There is a risk of litigation, particularly in cases where we may have taken action to protect
people by care arrangements where families are not in agreement with our actions, or has
implications for them e.g. potential breaches of the Convention of Human Rights on the right
to family life.

There is a lack of capacity in the Court of Protection and with the official solicitor’s office to
deal with this many cases coming forward. The fact that the Court of Protection does not
have capacity to deal with issues does not excuse the Council from having to make
applications. The Court of Protection is working on a fast tracked “paper process” for non-
contested cases, although each application will still require the authorisation of a judge.

There are significant issues for the authority in relation to our Managing Authority status as we
provide residential care and the community resources identified above. The ruling will mean
that we will have services for people suffering from dementia where everyone receiving that
service will be deprived of their liberty under DoLS e.g. dementia care homes.

The ruling substantially changes the practice requirements for social workers both in
knowledge, training, and complexity. This is significantly so where applications to the Court of
Protection are involved. Given the numbers of cases identified and the increases in practice
requirements social work capacity and training resources will be required.

Welsh Government has not yet issued guidance in relation to the management of these
increased applications.

Page 81



4.8.12

4.8.13

The Association of Directors Social Services (ADSS) have met with Welsh Government and
agreed to work closely with Department of Health (DoH) and Association of Directors Adult
Services (ADASS), Welsh Government is already represented on the national steering group.

It was agreed to set up Welsh steering group and an expert network group. Who will be
responsible for developing an action plan which training, streamlining process and forms,
mapping needs, advise to care homes using CSSIW web site, risk management and
development of an audit tool.

5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no equalities implications arising from this report.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Financial implications to date are £58,587 per organisation for recruitment of additional staff
with associated training.

6.2 There are other financial implications detailed in the body of the report, significantly around
the provision of an appropriate number of Best Interest Assessors, legal support and court
fees, training for staff on mental capacity as well deprivations of liberty (currently being
arranged with the Workforce Development Team), and on social work resources particularly
those supporting people who live in the community.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

71 There are no personnel implications arising from the report.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1 All consultations are included in this report.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Elected members note the changes in the case law and the implications for practice and
resources.

Author: Stephen Howells, Service Manager for Older People

Consultees: Dave Street, Director of Social Services

Jo Williams, Assistant Director, Adult Services

Senior Management Team

Clir Robin Woodyatt Cabinet Member Social Services
Appendices:

Appendix 1 - A National Review of the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

Page 82



Agenda ltem 13

GWENT MENTAL HEALTH & LEARNING DISABILITY
LOCAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT




CONTENTS

1 INTRODUCTION FROM THE GWENT SERVICE USER FORUM 3

2. INTRODUCTION FROM THE GWENT MENTAL HEALTH & LEARNING 4
DISABILITY PARTNERSHIP BOARD CHAIR

3. HOW THIS ANNUAL REPORT HAS BEEN PREPARED 5

4, PROMOTING BETTER MENTAL WELL-BEING & PREVENTING MENTAL 6
HEALTH PROBLEMS

5 A NEW PARTNERHSIP WITH THE PUBLIC 11

6. A WELL DESIGNED FULLY INTEGRATED MODEL OF CARE 16

Z ONE SYSTEM TO IMPROVE MENTAL HEALTH 28

8. DELIVERING FOR MENTAL HEALTH 32

9. LOOKING INTO 2015 ....EMERGING PRIORITIES 34

APPENDICES
APPENDIX 1 | NATIONAL ACTION PLAN UPDATE 36

Page 84




13 INTRODUCTION FROM THE GWENT SERVICE USER FORUM

Firstly we would like to say how pleased we are as service users of mental health services across
Gwent to be given an opportunity to inform this annual report, where we have been able to share
with you our experiences, thoughts, feelings and ideas. We feel that the Gwent Service User Forums
provide us, and carers of services users, with a safe environment to have our voices heard, each and
every one of us, actively participating in the development and evaluation of the services that we
ourselves receive.

Working in such close partnership with ABUHB and the Councils in Gwent, not only provides us with
opportunities to tell those who provide the services we receive what needs improvement and what
isn’t working, but also a platform to showcase all the good work and support that is being provided
and received across Gwent; supporting service users through recovery and enabling us to live active

and fulfilled lives.

As you read through the service user elements of this annual report, many of the experiences are
negative ones — highlighting what needs to change or be developed. However, as service users we
feel that the very nature of us being able to share these experiences and ideas for development
provides us with a fantastic opportunity to move forward collaboratively and effectively, with service

providers to get services right.

At the end of a productive day at Deri Community Centre, we —service users & carers, had agreed on
a number of key priorities that we felt were emerging themes throughout the day, those that then
provided us with areas that we felt were required to be developed. These were:

° Funding — More services are required such as ‘out of hours.” Concerns were also raised
regarding lack of staff, day centres closing do to funding cuts which are the areas where
people receive peer support.

° Education — To tackle the stigma associated with mental health by providing education to
schools, housing associations, GPs, employers and the media in general.
° Support — more crisis support systems and better coordination of support in Primary care.

As already mentioned, service user involvement & working in partnership with ABUHB and the
Councils isn’t only about highlighting the gaps. We need to regularly let people know what works
well, what we like and what we need more of. Below are three strengths that came from
discussions at Deri, positive areas that we feel work well and are effective contributors to us feeling
supported. They are:

o Third sector support
o Development of early intervention
® Peer support

We are pleased our views are strong throughout this report.

Developed by Linda Williams and Laura Morgan — Service User Development Officers based on the
views shared by service users in Gwent

Page 85




2. INTRODUCTION FROM THE CHAIR OF THE GWENT MENTAL HEALTH & LEARNING
DISABILITY PARTNERSHIP BOARD

On behalf of the Mental Health & Learning Disability Partnership Board, | am pleased to present
our 2™ Annual Report against the National Strategy: Together for Mental Health.

The last year has once again seen a significant amount of work pass through the Mental Health &
Learning Disability Partnership Board that has responded to both the National Agenda and our
local priorities. It is not however been without its challenges, a number of pressures have
presented a challenge for partners locally in considering where to invest their time and priority as
they redesign services for the full population.

It is exciting that this Annual Report has been compiled by Service Users, carers, and staff alike...
through this approach there is a very good reality check, that tells us how it is from the lens of
people both receiving and delivering our services. It is clear as you read this report that there are
times when Service Users and staff share common views on the successes and areas for
development, yet others where there remain very different perspectives. In knowing where these
differences lie, we have a clear focus on the work that needs to be done over coming months and
which will improve experiences and perspectives. The majority of examples cited throughout the
approach are age inclusive.

Last year we committed to undertaking many developments. The production of this Annual
Report has been a useful reflection in assessing whether we have done what we said we would
do. | am pleased to say that for the majority of areas we have, and many examples of good
practice are shared through this report.

I look forward to the year ahead, and know that the new Chair of the Partnership Board Simon
Burch of Monmouthshire Council will continue to steer the Partnership Board with a clear and
firm emphasis on ensuring Service Users are not only at the heart of this Annual Report, but also
at the heart of service delivery and service improvement.

Judrt, Paget

Judith Paget
Interim Chief Executive Aneurin Bevan University Health Board
Chair of the Mental Health & Learning Disability Partnership Board

Page 86




3. HOW THIS ANNUAL REPORT HAS BEEN PREPARED

This Annual Report has been co-produced between people who have a mental health issue and
people who provide services that support good mental health/well-being. Whilst it looks like a
traditional Annual Report, it has not been developed in a traditional way. We are proud of the
approach we have followed and want to share that with you.

On the 19" August 2014, approximately 80 Service Users and carers from across Gwent, met in a
community hall in Deri, Caerphilly to discuss what they thought had been particularly good about
mental health in Gwent in the past year, and what they believed should be priorities for the next
year.

The approach that was used to gain views was one of World Café, where discussions were held
about each area within the National Strategy. Service Users and carers had the opportunity to
visit each table, and were asked to draw or write their views that could be captured within the
Annual Report. This session was also recorded and there was opportunity for individuals to speak
individually if they wanted. A DVD that illustrates the process followed to inform the report is
currently being finalised and will be shared on completion.

A number of Service Users also came forward to assist in the writing of the Annual Plan. All of the
information was considered by a small group, and Service Users alongside the service user
development officers then wrote sections for each chapter within the Annual Report. It is clear
that Service Users and staff do not always share the same perceptions of their services and this
gives us some further areas of focus for the coming year.

As this Annual Report covers the whole of Gwent via 6 statutory organisations and 5 Unitary
Authority areas, it does not mean to be exhaustive but simply highlights some aspects of the
work of the Mental Health & Learning Disability Partnership Board over the past year. It offers a
range of updates from a variety of perspectives, and responds to Welsh Government’s request for
updates in particular areas. It reflects the priorities and areas of preferred updates from people
who use the service and their carers and finally it presents areas of good practices that staff have
selected to be included within the Annual Report. A more detailed update on progress with each
of the areas contained within the National Strategy is attached at Annex A.

Page 87




4. PROMOTING BETTER MENTAL WELL-BEING & PREVENTING MENTAL HEALTH
PROBLEMS

4.1 SUMMARY

Well-being is positively associated with a range of positive health and social outcomes.
Individuals who report higher levels of well-being tend to be more involved in social and civic life,
to have better family and social relationships and to be more productive at work

The Gwent Mental Health and Learning Disability Partnership Board has adopted a broad
approach which emphasises the importance of positive mental health as an integral part of overall
health and well-being.  Action is therefore focussed on building resilience, protecting and
promoting mental health at an individual and population (community) level, at each stage of the
life course. Emphasis is also placed on ensuring the early identification of those at risk of poor
mental health and early identification of and intervention for those with a mental iliness.

This approach will support resilient communities which help people to ‘feel good and function
well’, the two elements of well-being as defined by the New Economics Foundation (2008).

With this in mind, there is an emphasis to ensure that as much activity as possible related to
community well-being takes place in communities. Our vision is one which sees the wide range of
community activities that are already underway through communities first, housing associations,
voluntary activities etc, including aspects of mental well-being (e.g. 5 ways to well-being, tackling
stigma) or indeed just recognising how being an active member of the community and meeting an
individual’s own aspirations for this has a significant contribution to make to individual well-being.

4.2 WHAT SERVICE USERS HAVE TOLD US ABOUT WELL-BEING

Page 88




4.3 WHAT WELSH GOVERNMENT WANT TO SEE

Specifically Welsh Government has asked for an update in the following areas:

e Promoting mental well-being in the broader population- including resilience in children
and dementia prevention lifestyles in the elderly.
e Improving the physical health of people with mental illness.

4.4 REGIONAL RESPONSE

4.4.1 PROMOTING MENTAL WELL-BEING IN THE BROADER POPULATION- INCLUDING
RESILIENCE IN CHILDREN AND DEMENTIA PREVENTION LIFESTYLES IN THE ELDERLY.

e  Community wide initiatives

The Gwent Mental Health and Learning Disability Partnership approach to community resilience is
the Five Ways to Well-being programme.

Five Ways to Well-being provides a framework for mental health promotion in the Gwent area:

Connect

Give

Keep learning

Take notice of the world around you
Be active

® & @ o e

Page 89




Work/progress throughout the past year has built on that previously reported and includes the
development and expansion of the Five Ways to Well-being network (a virtual network initially
with a focus on adults but now including children and young people). It also includes the
development and implementation of a Gwent wide training programme. A workshop is planned
to be held in each Unitary Authority area in the coming year. Over 250 individuals from a range of
statutory and third sector organisations have been trained and are members of the network.

In the last year, primary care professionals in Gwent have undertaken training on brief
intervention that included the Five Ways to Well-being component.

In order to raise awareness, the Gwent Five Ways to Well-being website has been promoted and
resources widely distributed, the link is: www.publichealthwales.org/gwentfiveways .

e Suicide and Self harm Prevention

During March 2014 and in preparation for the new suicide and self harm prevention action plan
for Wales (Talk To Me 2), the Aneurin Bevan Public Health Team organised a workshop to
consider how partners can best work together to take forward the suicide and self harm
prevention plan. The workshop was attended by over 30 individuals from a range of services
including staff from Accident & Emergency, Welsh Ambulance, third sector providers and Welsh
Government. A further workshop is planned for Autumn 2014 (depending on the release date of
the plan) to consider next steps.

A specific example of work aimed to increase community resilience can be seen in the Caerphilly
County Borough through the Communities First Mental Health Service. It is the only Community
First structure in Wales that includes Communities’ First Mental Health officers and works with
people of all ages, who present with low level mental health issues to promote their well being.
This is not a 'one to one' service but a 'self help' service encouraging people to establish networks
in their own communities, these groups include:

Bereavement and Loss

Anxiety and Depression

Gardening

Ladies Singing sessions

Mothers with young children (post natal depression)

Advice and Information and sign posting for Mental Health Services

e & & o o

e Children

Aneurin Bevan Public Health Team are working with key partners including ABUHB and Healthy
School leads in Gwent to implement the School Children’s Health Improvement Programme
(ScHIP). The programme (based on the model being implemented in Cardiff and the Vale of
Glamorgan) aims to ensure that children and young people have the necessary knowledge, skills,
values and attitudes that equip them to lead safe, healthy lives. Key elements of the programme
include the development of health profiles describing the health needs of children and young
people in Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and Torfaen and supporting
schools and partners to adopt an evidence based approach to promoting the health of children
and young people across a range of issues (consistent with the Welsh Network of Healthy Schools
Scheme National Quality Award).

Page 90




The South East Wales Safeguarding Children’s Board has also undertaken some useful work in
respect of suicide and self harm in the last year. Interested parties may wish to consider more
detail by accessing: http://www.sewsc.org.uk/professionals/protocols-guidance-and-useful-

documents/

SET - The SET (Safe Exercise Together) programme was adapted from the LEAP project
(Loughborough Exercise Activity Programme) for adults. The aim of group is to provide youngsters
with both a practical and theoretical knowledge base to help them overcome
unhelpful/compulsive exercise and provide them with positive coping strategies. The group
programme runs for 10 weeks and each session lasts 2.5 hours. The age range is 11-18years.

e Dementia

Partners in Gwent have established the first Dementia Board in Wales. One of the priorities of the
Board is a focus on community based Dementia initiatives. Some of these are highlighted here:

Monmouthshire Local Area Co-ordination Scheme - This is an approach that originated in -
Western Australia and has been implemented in parts of England and Scotland. The approach is
based on establishing local co-ordinators within communities who work with people who may
have required social services. By connecting with people early-on, building on their strengths and
helping to form and build local connections, they help people find their own lasting solutions.
The approach has been piloted in Abergavenny and Caldicot and includes working with people
with dementia.

Healthy Lifestyle choices as a means of preventing Dementia - Vascular Dementia is the second
most common form of dementia (following Alzheimer’s disease). It is caused by reduced blood
flow to the brain. Unlike other forms of dementia, many cases of vascular dementia can be
prevented. It is important that this work starts at childhood and early adulthood and should aim
to increase fitness, avoid obesity- cardiovascular disease and risk factors for vascular dementia.
The Living Well, Living Longer programme being implemented in Gwent, is a cardio vascular
disease screening programme. The programme aims to tackle inequalities in health, targeting the
areas of greatest need to identify people at greatest risk of cardio vascular disease, to support
them to stop smoking and to commence appropriate treatment interventions at the earliest
opportunity. A number of smoking cessation programmes are currently being planned and/or
implemented in Gwent (in addition to those provided by Stop Smoking Wales), including the
delivery of Community Pharmacy Smoking Cessation services and a Hospital Smoking Cessation
Service for in-patients at the Royal Gwent Hospital and Nevill Hall Hospital.

In addition to the Living Well Living longer work, the Gwent Substance Misuse Area Planning
Board has also undertaken an alcohol needs assessment and has recognised the need to consider
as a priority, alcohol use and its contribution to dementia.

4.4.2 |IMPROVING THE PHYSICAL HEALTH OF PEOPLE WITH MENTAL ILLNESS

Within the Gwent area, there are a number of examples of good practice that we would share in
respect of improving the physical health of people with a mental illness.

Improving the physical health of mental health Service Users Toolkit: The evaluation of the use
of a Toolkit to promote the physical health of mental health Service Users has been carried out
during the last year. As a result, a bespoke brief intervention training programme for mental
health and learning disability professionals is currently being developed for implementation this
year. It is envisaged that the programme will include a train the trainer element to ensure
sustainability.

2

Page 91




4.5 SUMMARY OF CHAPTER.

Partners have made steady progress in this area in the past year. It is clear too from service user
feedback that this is a very important area and is where there are many ideas at both individual and
group level. A key issue for Service Users appears to be the provision of day time activities. This is an
area which will be considered further in the coming year.

10

Page 92




5. A NEW PARTNERSHIP WITH THE PUBLIC

L § SUMMARY

We know that the environment in which we live and the way that we connect with our community
is a factor in good mental well-being. We know too that people with a mental health need and
those that surround them are experts in their own lives. Our vision has been to see mental well-
being as a shared responsibility, that sees a strong voice from people and their loved ones who
have used our services, and one which is truly committed to real involvement from all who have a

stake in good mental health.

5.2 WHAT SERVICE USERS TOLD US ABOUT THIS THEME

Al

Page 93




5.3 WHAT WELSH GOVERNMENT WANT TO SEE
]
L ]
L ]
L]

5.4 REGIONAL RESPONSE

Local approaches to service user and carer engagement
Welsh language provision

Addressing issues of equality and diversity.

Tackling stigma and discrimination

5.4.1 LOCALAPPROACHES TO SERVICE USERS AND CARER ENGAGEMENT

Partners in Gwent have agreed an approach of engagement and involvement that spans the
following 4 areas:

12

Page 94




Giving Information

< Obtaining Feedback

Research

Real Influence

This model will form the basis of the service user engagement strategy that will be developed in
Gwent in the coming year. During the last year, the following are examples of activities in each of

these areas.

e Giving information - The Eating Disorder Service in ABUHB have developed a DVD to
share information with Service Users. This has been very positively received and includes
information from a service user themselves. Information is also routinely provided to
patients re their right to service re-entry under part 3 of the measure.

e Obtaining feedback - A Service User satisfaction questionnaire has been undertaken using
the All Wales NHS experience questionnaire. A total of 121 responses were received with
the overall position being that of those who took part, the majority of Service Users are
positive about the care they receive and how decisions regarding their care are made.
They reported good experiences in respect of care planning and decision making, and
areas for improvement in the environment and communications.

e Real influence - The Gwent Forensic strategy (1% in Wales) undertook extensive
consultation with stakeholders including service holders in order to inform the priorities
of the forensic service in coming years. This enables Service Users, staff and broader
stakeholders to have real influence on the shape and priorities of the forensic service.

- Service Users have been part of the recent recruitment process for the Service User
Development Officer, holding real influence on what kind of skills and abilities the post-
holder should have.

e Research- a research project has been undertaken, and supported by the University of
Glamorgan and the mental health research network. The aim of the study was to
consider whether Service Users were actively engaged in mental health delivery and
development, and was a specific case study in the Blaenau Gwent area. The findings from
the research will be incorporated within the overall service user involvement strategy
being developed within Gwent.

Service Users are of course always included in decisions regarding their care due to the care and
treatment planning process. Research undertaken to consider Service Users perspective of the
effectiveness of this reported very positive findings.

During the past year, the capacity to properly engage with Service Users has been much reduced
within Gwent due to high levels of sickness in our service user development officers. This has now
been addressed and in recognition of the need to increase activity in this area, a further Service
User Involvement Officer has been appointed. The small team will seek to implement a wide
range of service user activities linked to both the national work program and local priorities as

13

Page 95




they emerge. Central to this approach will be the development of a service user and carer
engagement strategy and the development of an expert reference group. The Reference group
will aim to ensure that that the voices of those who engage through various fora across Gwent,
are not lost. The reference group will enable a strong and infomed voice into both the National
and Local Partnership Boards.

5.4.2 WELSH LANGUAGE PROVISION

All organisations that comprise the Mental Health & Learning Disability Partnership are compliant
with the requirements for Welsh language.  Partners in Gwent however recognise that the
number of people identifying themselves as having a first language as Welsh is relatively small,
moreover that there are many other languages that will need to be recognised, particularly in the
Newport area which is the distribution centre for people seeking asylum, and where other
languages may be dominant. Also we should consider the needs of people who may be for
example deaf and where British Sign Language (BSL) may be their first language. Partners will
seek to respond to the language needs of individuals as they arise, drawing on expertise across
the area to support this (ie local translators).

5.4.3 ADDRESSING ISSUES OF EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

By the very nature of mental health, it could be assumed that those experiencing a
mental health issue are vulnerable within our society. As such we have sought over the
last year to build consistency of service delivery across all areas in Gwent.

Some examples of good practice we would share through this Annual Report are:

e Mental Health and Deafness Steering Group - Partners in Gwent have also established a
mental health and deafness steering group. The group are developing an action plan to
take forward a variety of local issues, and have within the last year undertaken an audit
across all mental health teams in Gwent (children, adult and older adults to establish the
baseline of awareness and practice within teams).

e Community Inclusive Activities - There are also examples of good practice in respect of
tackling stigma and discrimination, which includes the Inside Out Art and Performance
project. Inside Out Cymru is a voluntary organisation that provides community art
experiences across Gwent, and seeks to ensure that people with the mental health issue
are included and indeed positively targeted as part of their programs, ensuring that
people with a mental health issue are supported within the activities, yet the broader
community are too fully engaged. The approach seeks to reduce stigma and
discrimination and aids the ability of people to connect with their community.

e Shana Bashana Event - Over 120 people from a range of Newports diverse communities
attended an event aiming to end the stigma surrounding mental illness in June of this
year. Activities at the unique event included singing, dancing and hearing from people
living with mental health problems, as well as guest speakers, workshops and information
stands. The event was organised as part of the Shana Bashana project - Urdu for
'Shoulder to Shoulder', which is funded by Time to Change Wales, the first national
campaign to end the stigma and discrimination faced by people with mental health
problems, and delivered by Newport Mind's Ashianna women’s group the Ashianna
women's group, based at Newport Mind. The Ashianna group aims to increase discussion
and awareness of mental health issues, particularly among Newport's black and minority
ethnic communities.

14

Page 96




5.4.4 TACKLING STIGMA AND DISCRIMINATION

Implementation of Time to Change Wales is ongoing and work is building on that reported in the
first annual plan. Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Gwent Police, Torfaen County Borough
Council and other members of the Local Service Board have signed the Time to Change Wales
organisational pledge this Autumn. Work is still being progressed in Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly,
Monmouthshire and Newport councils.

5.5 SUMMARY OF CHAPTER

Partners locally place strong emphasis on the co-production of good mental health and well-
being. Service Users clearly demonstrated the sustained challenge of discrimination and stigma,
and the ability to build relationships with people who understand them and their needs.

15

Page 97




Lﬁ. A WELL DESIGNED FULLY INTEGRATED MODEL OF CARE

6.1 SUMMARY

As a Partnership Board, we have been consistent in our aspirations that services that we provide
should have Service Users truly at the centre of their own care, receiving evidence based
interventions at the earliest possible stage which are easily accessed and delivered in a timely,
flexible and responsive manner. In fact we believe and have previously cited that services by all
providers in the Gwent area, should be simplified and integrated, arranged around people and not
organisations, and therefore provided across the public, third sector and independent
organisations, utilising the assets that exist in the communities that people live. Our design
principles are worth repeating:

e recognise the dignity of individual Service Users, respecting and valuing their diversity
as well as acknowledging their major role in the process of planning and developing
services.

e be grounded in respect for all those people who engage with these services, not
only those using them but also their supporters and carers.

e provide practical advice and information for Service Users and their carers need as
well as developing a consistently high quality, comprehensive package of care and
support which minimises bureaucracy.

e make sure that the best and most effective treatments are widely and consistently
available.

e be open to everyone providing age-appropriate care and support. It responds to
people on the basis of need not age, ensuring that people with mental health
problems are not discriminated against and have their mental health needs met.

e be delivered through a person centred approach. This value base will be consistent
across all service areas.

e be based on the best evidence and be informed by (as well as informing) relevant
research and development.

e be of high quality, safe and with clear processes for safeguarding.

e be focussed on interfaces between parts of the service to ensure this is smooth for the
service user accessing them.

We see the provision of services to people with poor psychological well-being or mental illness as
a single system, regardless of provider. We also aspire to enhanced collaboration between
organisations at a population level that have an impact on good mental well-being ie housing,
education etc, and therefore position our services in the wider system of community health and

development.

Our model is developing all of the time, however as the basis for development we utilise the
national service model for the mental health whole system:

16

Page 98




Highty
specialist
inpatient. high
secure and
resicdential
services

Tier Four
Services

Specialist inpatient services
€e.g. low and medium secure
care specialist community
teams

Tier Three
Services

Tier Two Community mental health, including CRHT
Services Assertive Outreach, Early Intervention functions,
Acute inpatient care. Supported accommodation

services, general services

The Primary health care team. iocal primarny mental health support

services andrelated services, Third sector services, Low support

and mainstréeam accommodation services. Mainstream leisure,
Education and recreational services

Tier One
Services

Foundation
Tier

Services Self help resources, mental health promotion and education

Whilst though the remainder of this chapter is structured in a way that responds to the areas that
Welsh Government have requested, it is worth while considering some of the developments and
areas of good practices that have been undertaken along these tiers in the past year:

Foundation Tier o Wide availability of Five ways to Well-being resources.
Services e Development of model (on paper) as to what a super group self
help programme may look like.

Tier One Services o Secured funding for computers to increase access to community
based CBT in a variety of settings

e Changed contract voluntary sector providers to ensure they can
roll out broader than the unitary authority areas that they
originated in.

e (Consistent use of recovery and beyond model (anxiety
management, stress management, anger awareness and
counselling) in all five boroughs in Gwent.

¢  Workshops run with primary mental health services and third
sector providers in their area in each of the unitary authority
areas in Gwent to facilitate increased joint working and
awareness of available services.

o Excellent “market” place event in Blaenau Gwent bringing
together a number of partner organisations that contribute in
some way to mental health services (majority of which were
related to support and help in a much broader arena than just
mental health).

Tier Two Services e Review of Community Mental Health Services demand, capacity
and service user experience.
® Review of assertive outreach team in respect of its efficiency and

17

Page 99




effectiveness.

Use of Vanguard methodology to develop a new team and
approach to work with people with a mental health issue- LEAP.
Development of a tool to assist clinicians and managers to
manage their case loads in community mental health teams.

Tier Three Services

Development of safe ward initiative within PICU.

Development and consolidation of a new female ward
(Belleview).

Together for a safer future and integrated forensic mental health
strategy for Gwent- the very 1* forensic strategy within Wales.

Tier Four Services

Within the year an outline of how services for people with a
complex need has been undertaken and will be progressed as a
needs assessment and workshop within the coming year.

6.2 WHAT SERVICE USERS TELL US

18

Page 100




6.3 WHAT WELSH GOVERNMENT WANT TO SEE

Welsh government specifically requested update on:

Service innovations to improve quality and safety

Access to psychological therapy

Ongoing implementation of the measure

Out of hours/ crisis services

Action to respond to the WAO/HIW report on CAMHS and transition.
Early diagnosis of dementia (response to the Andrew’s report)
Progress towards a co-morbid substance misuse pathway

6.4 REGIONAL RESPONSE
6.4.1 SERVICE INNOVATIONS TO IMPROVE QUALITY AND SAFETY

There are a number of service innovations that have been developed within the last year to
improve quality and safety. This Annual Report will not have the potential to present all of them
however the following are shared as examples of developments that have been achieved.

e [ntegration

One of the main areas of focus of the Mental Health & Learning Disability Partnership Board in
Gwent during the last year has been on integrating care. The partnership has remained
committed to the following description of integration:

‘integrated care is one in which | can plan my care with people who work together to understand
me and my carers, allow me control and bring together services to achieve the outcomes
important to me’

The Partnership Board has over the past 3 years been exploring the best model to pursue
integration. It had originally pursued an ambitious programme where integration would have
been enabled at three distinct levels (service delivery, management structure and governance). It
has however more recently decided that it will pursue the service delivery level in the first
instance. It has therefore featured in the last year heavily on a whole system review of mental
health services, applying the Vanguard Methodology.

15

Page 101




e LEAP Team - A New way of working with people with a mental health need

This spring, over 70 senior directors, operation and service / team leaders from multiple
stakeholders took part in a full service review facilitated through Vanguard Whole system
management methodologies. As part of the review, participants spoke to Service Users, carers
and staff, and also observed our existing systems by taking part in multi disciplinary teams or
working within the duty desk. They also considered patients files and looked at the processes that
were running within the existing mental health system.

Through doing this, they then designed new systems principles on which mental health provision
should be based putting the service user at the centre of support, pulling teams and services in
around them where appropriate.

A team called LEAP (Listen, Engage, Act and Participate) has been established in the North of
Caerphilly County Borough and is currently working with 3 GP practices to test a new way of
working with people with mental health needs. The team comprises of a group of differing roles
and skills and includes a Support Worker, an Occupational Therapist, a Social Worker, a Mental
Health Nurse, a Psychologist, and rapid access to a Psychiatrist. The team is taking all referrals
from the GP practices and piloting what a team without boundaries could achieve if it were to
work with patients in a different way. From the pilot thus far, it is clear that the majority of
people that are presenting to primary care (GPs) with a mental health need appear to have an
underlying structural or social need. As such the new team has worked with people to address
the issue sitting behind their presentation (e.g: depression, anxiety) and has facilitated the
individual to access services that deal with the underlying cause as well as to the presenting
factor.

It is hoped working in a more integrated approach, listening to the service user will see a decline
in numbers of Service Users entering into secondary care and provide a more medical-social
model to service user practice and support.

The pilot has helped us to learn a considerable amount about the primary/ secondary care divide
and indeed the interfaces between our existing secondary care services. This is an area we would
like to share with Welsh Government in respect of the development of further guidance around
community based mental health teams. Our approach has been one of recovery and person
centred outcomes. It appears to be having a significant effect and has the potential to change the
way in which we deliver services, how responsive we are in the delivery of those services, and
indeed the skill mix of teams that support people with a mental health need.

e Safe Ward Initiative

A specific example of where services have been modified to improve quality and safety is on the
intensive care unit within St Cadocs Hospital. Staff within the unit have developed a safe ward
initiative as follows:

20

Page 102




PATIENT COMMUNITY

Patient-patient interaction
Contagion & discord

Patient modifiers

Staff modifiers
Exptanatonfnformation: Role

Pﬂieriemmﬂu';nva%ulm;

WAL 44v1S

Two examples of specific note are a discharge message tree and the getting-to-know-you folder.

The discharge message tree enables Service Users that have had a stay in the intensive care unit
to offer messages about their care, about the unit and a variety of other issues. The tree itself has
been painted and developed by a service user and is used regularly by patients leaving the Unit.
Staff on the ward are collating the information that comes from this tree as a means of continued
service improvement.

The getting-to-know-you folder has information about every staff member that works or visits
PICU, along with their picture and some general information about them (eg a favourite football
team, or TV programme). The basis of this initiative is one of mutual disclosure and exchange.

e Liagison Service

A Nurse Liaison role, has been developed as a vital link between District General Hospitals,
medical wards and Community Mental Health Teams. The service has been developed for adult,
older adult and learning disability clients. The approach has helped staff across the varying
disciplines to recognise issues of delirium, mental health and has improved communication and
planning across service areas.

e Children

A Childrens Partnership Board made of representatives from each of the Statutory Organisations
in Gwent has been created in order to develop integrated physical and mental health care
services. The Partnership is currently working through its joint priorities, however is likely to

o i

Page 103




include a model for integrated children centres with Local Authority and child health to ensure a
service that has emotional well being and mental health as a fundamental component of services.

The Skills for living service, focuses on the mental health needs of looked after children. Evidence
suggests that young people leaving care are more likely than their peers to:

e Engage in substance misuse (DoH, 2009)

e Spend time in prison (Social Exclusion Unit 2002)

e Be unemployed and living in poverty (Barn and Mantovani, 2007)
e Be homeless within six months of leaving care (Coombes, 2004)

e Be ateenage parent (30 per cent are parents by the time they leave care, Richard and
Lelliott, 2003)

The service has recently been successful in obtaining project funding, supported by Local
Authority and Health Board funding to continue to deliver the service.

e  Older People

Reduction of Anti-Psychotics - Good work has been undertaken in the last year in respect of the
reduction of antipsychotics in older people’s care. Efforts have been made to review the use and
ensure that antipsychotics are only prescribed when other approaches have failed. There has
been training and education across residential nursing homes in order to ensure that the risks of
prescribing and administering antipsychotics are understood. A number of homes within the
Gwent area have reduced the use of antipsychotics following the series of training and education
sessions and found other ways to manage behaviours that challenge.

Dementia Friendly Environments — Gwent has a Dementia Friendly Environments group which
focuses on building knowledge and skill across the area in relation to dementia friendly
environments. Key issues include understanding of sensory difficulties that co-exist with dementia,
build a knowledge base in relation to developing physical environments, reducing the potential for
unnecessary spending, improving patient safety and increasing the quality of in-patient stays.

Technology & Well-Being — Money has been secured to develop a range of resources to deliver
'failure free activities' on in-patient units, in-line with target 5 of the Dementia Intelligent Targets. A
pilot pack of technology resources including ipads, ipods, light projectors, reminisence DVD packs,
and aromatherapy equipment has been developed and will initially be piloted on one ward with a

robust evaluation framework as to its impact and outcomes for patients. Subject to a successful

evaluation, a Gwent wide and South Powys roll out programme will be enabled.
e Dementia

A Dementia training package has been developed to support the care of people with dementia on
in-patient wards. This training includes specialist courses and one day workshops. Examples of
these are:

e Palliative care for people with dementia;
e The development of the “Butterfly Scheme”

e A staff toolkit that is been cascaded right away across the Health Board’s wards.

22

Page 104




The training has given clinicians across a range of professions increased skill, which has enabled
them to improve the quality of care that they provide for individuals.

Improvements in memory services have been seen in many areas of Gwent. The work is being
collaboratively led between the Alzheimers Society and the Aneurin Bevan University Health
Board. The joint approach ensures an increase in the amount of people with memory problems
who are able to be assessed and enables a faster response to accessing evidenced based

treatments.

The “Butterfly Project” has been adopted in all Older Peoples Residential EMI Care Homes in
Caerphilly and Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council areas. This helps to focus on cultural
change across the whole system in order to develop a person centred and relationship focused
approach. In addition all managers within this service area are currently undertaking the
Dementia Matters training. This training is also actively underway within Monmouthshire County
Council.

6.4.2 ACCESS TO PSYCHOLOGICAL THERAPIES

During the past year, it has been a challenge within the Gwent area to achieve the Tier 1 targets
relating to primary mental health services. This is been due to a variety of factors:

¢ The different models of care across Wales resulting in measurement of target times not
been consistent across the varying models.
e A need for increased access to psychological therapies within Gwent.

This section therefore outlines work that has been planned within the current year that is likely to
be achieved in the forth coming period and relates to how access to psychological therapies
would be increased.

o Building therapeutic capacity at Tier One to reduce demand at Tier Two
We will be making a significant investment in training PCMHSS staff in trauma and
mindfulness based approaches (EMDR and MBCT) to reduce demand on Tier Two services

e Building capacity to deliver psychological therapies in the wider workforce
The PTMC is committed to improving access to psychological therapies by increasing the skill
base of the wider workforce across mental health services. It will be coordinating a
workstream to ensure that training of the wider workforce leads to implementation and is
delivered with appropriate quality safeguards (eg regular supervision).

» Increasing the availability of NICE recommended psychological therapies
People using psychological therapy services across ABUHB are able to access the majority of
NICE recommended interventions. However, the investment in training has enabled us to
address gaps where these have been identified.

e Taking a cross sector approach to training
It is hoped that some of the training initiatives (for example, introductory workshops on DBT
skills and Acceptance and Commitment Therapy) can be offered to our cross sector
colleagues, building links with and capacity within our foundation tier services.

6.4.3 ONGOING IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MEASURE- INCLUDING CO-PRODUCTION OF
CRITICAL TREATMENT PLANS AND QUALITY ISSUES

The four parts of the measure continues to be implemented within the Gwent area. The following

outlines some of the key achievements and areas for improvement in each part over the past
year:

23

Page 105




Part 1: Development of Primary Mental Health Services- Gwent was ambitious in its model for
the development of Primary Mental Health Services and sought to ensure that there were teams
of primary care practitioners working alongside General Practice delivering services in clusters
that were aligned with locality network models.

This service has seen significant demand and as a service that sees everybody that is referred to it
(unlike some models in Wales where clients have to opt in and then engage in telephone triage) it
has been overwhelmed by the extent of demand. As such there is the need to better manage
demand and also use existing capacity within the rest of the system (example: Third sector
provision). There is also potentially the need for partners to pause and reflect on the model that
it put in place and how this fits with the overall system. Whilst partners in Gwent remain
committed to the model that they developed and believed this to be truly in the spirit of the
measure, the focus and pressure on the achievement of Tier 1 targets may mean that this needs
to be revisited.

Part 2- Care & Treatment Planning The number of people with a Care and Treatment Plan in
Gwent has increased. The emphasis in Gwent in the last year and indeed in the forth coming one,
is on the quality of the care and treatment plan. The LEAP project has tested a new way of
working in respect of care and treatment planning, It has not used the assessment process that
sits before the care and treatment plan, however has used the recovery STAR and outcomes
model through which it has a meaningful conversation with Service Users. The care and
treatment plan is then only developed from a meaningful conversation and reflects what the
outcomes would be for the individual that has been stated through their words and not related to
a structured form.

Part 3- Re-entry to the service. The number of Service Users re-entering mental health services
across Wales has not been excessively high. As such there has been increased attention paid to
cascading information relating to how Service Users can have access to service. One example of
good practice within the Gwent area relates to multi-agency partnership which is in place in the
Caerphilly County Borough, and seeks to support secondary care Service Users with re-entry to
the service, where necessary but also preventing relapse and promoting recovery in order to
prevent unnecessary demand in this area.

Part 4- Extending Independent Mental Health Advocacy. The introduction of Part 4 has been
received positively by patients and professionals.  The Measures provides a continuum of
advocacy support when patients move from formal to informal status and vice versa. This has
resulted in an 100% increase in activity for the service. Aneurin Bevan University Health Board
has recently undertaken a re-tendering process for this service. As a result a new Provider has
been commissioned to provide this service. This means that a further exercise of awareness
raising and training will be carried out across the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board foot print
which will prove beneficial to both patients and professionals in understanding their rights and
obligations under this measure.

6.4.4 OUT OF HOURS/ CRISIS SERVICES/ SECTION 136-SAFETY AND RISK MANAGEMENT

e Section 136 - Safety & Risk Management
During the past year, the use of police custody suites as ‘a place of safety’ to detain individuals
who appear to the police to be mentally disordered and in a public place has come under

increased national scrutiny across England and Wales. Welsh Government required the Health
Board and its partners ( LA’s , Police, ambulance, third sector ) to consider the findings in ‘A

24

Page 106




Criminal Use of Police Cells’ and to refocus efforts to understand the regional ( Pan Gwent )
context and performance in respect of $136. The section 136 Suite is an all age facility.

The Gwent $136 group was refreshed with a new chair, revised membership and a revised terms
of reference; reporting to the Gwent Mental Health & Learning Disability Partnership Board. A
work programme is in place that identifies the strategic priorities that will enable partners to
develop a better understanding of performance in respect of 5136 and to collaborate across
partners to deliver improved performance. To date the group have:

e Engaged with ABCi Team who are supporting a piece of work to better understand the
Gwent data.

e Piloting a solution to a place of safety for children and young people so they are not
detained in police custody suites, this has involved providing clinicians with appropriate
training to meet the needs of C&YP and commitment from CAMHs clinicians to support
adult clinicians in the assessment process.

e Developed and delivered training on the $135 & 136 MHA (1983) to senior staff across
partner organisations.

e Commenced development of a training package for frontline police officers to raise
awareness of mental distress, mental disorder , access to information to assist with
decision making and risk assessment, information on alternative options of support in the
community, it is intended that this will be ready in the Autumn.

Work of the group in the coming year will include a review of the Gwent multi agency procedure
for $135/136 to ensure it remains current and fit for purpose. A formal information sharing
protocol (WASPI) will also be developed and consideration given to a single point of contact.

e  Out of hours (OOH’s)

The Division currently operates a centralised OOH’s service which is based at Talygarn Hospital.
There are also three crises Home Treatment services; they are based in Torfaen, Caerphilly and
Newport (these cover the whole of Gwent between 9am and 9pm). Feedback from patients has
resulted in the need to once again review this service. A wide ranging stakeholder group has
been established in order to consider a review of the service with a view to finding a sustainable
solution moving forward. A preferred option for the future will be presented early in 2015.

e (Crisis Services

The Health Board has consistently met its Crisis Resolution Home Treatment Team Targets in the
past year. It continues to strive to sustain this level of performance throughout 2015.

6.4.5 ACTION TO RESPOND TO THE WAO/HIW REPORT ON CAMHS AND TRANSITIONS

One of the two main priorities for the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board and its Mental
Health & Learning Disabilities Board is the transition/interface issues. CAMHS is
represented/organised alongside Heath Board Partners in sub-groups to address Emergency
Liaison responses, this includes Eating Disorders and Deliberate Self Harm and the associated
transition from CAMHS to Adult Learning Disabilities or Adult Mental Health Services.

25

Page 107




6.4.6 EARLY DIAGNOSIS OF DEMENTIA/ DEMENTIA IN THE GENERAL HOSPITAL SETTING
(RESPONSE TO THE ANDREWS REPORT)

ABUHB has undertaken an assurance check in respect of Trusted to Care (the Andrews report)
which was a review into the quality of care for older people at the Princess of Wales and Neath
Port Talbot hospitals, and developed a framework of assurance and on-going audit as a result.
The approach has brought together many differing teams and directorates with peer audit across
clinical areas taking place. A number of audit tools have been developed and implemented
focussing on the 4 key areas of continence, nutrition and hydration, medicines management and
dementia.

6.4.7 PROGRESS TOWARDS A CO-MORBID SUBSTANCE MISUSE PATHWAY

Senior consultant representation has been made in all Wales discussions on the development of a
co-morbid in substance misuse pathway. A workshop has also recently been held within the
ABUHB area which was facilitated by Phil Chick and focussed on co-morbidities within substance
misuse. Following the publication of the framework, its implementation will be part of the
complex needs sub-group of the Area Planning Board.

6.4.8 VOLUNTARY SECTOR AS EQUAL PARTNERS IN THE DELIVERY OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL
CARE SERVICES.

It is widely recognised that Third Sector Organisations in Gwent play a significant role in the
delivery of community focused mental health services that are vital in supporting the recovery of
people experiencing symptoms of poor mental well-being. Consequently, the Health Board and
Local Government Partners commit a significant amount of funding to commissioning the Third
Sector to provide a range of services, such as information and advice; counselling and skills
focused therapeutic activity, to support the implementation of the Integrated Mental Health
Strategy for Gwent.

To respond to increasing demand and changing needs the Local Mental Health and Learning
Disability Partnership Board are committed to working collaboratively to review and redesign the
provision of Third Sector Mental Health services across Gwent to:

e Ensure a comprehensive and co-ordinated range of high quality community focused
service provision

e Provide equitable access to services across the Health Board footprint

e Use scarce resources in the most effective and efficient way possible

e Respond to changing demands, priorities and policy (for example, implementation of the
measure and responding to the impact of welfare reform)

e Ultimately ensure we have the right services are in the right place at the right time to
meet the needs of those experiencing poor mental health.

Adopting a partnership approach, the Local Partnership Board secured additional resources (via
the Regional Collaborative Fund) allowing the strengthening of the multi-agency Commissioning
Work-stream to support the progression and development of collaborative opportunities for the
commissioning of third sector mental health services across Gwent. Committed to the principles
of co-production, workshops with third sector organisations, commissioners and practitioners
have been held to develop a shared understanding of mental health needs and evidence across
Gwent, and identify priorities and gaps in service provision to shape proposals for the future of
third sector mental health services in Gwent.

26

Page 108




Responding to community needs, a number of organisations have started to provide services in
wider areas than the locality in which they were originally commissioned and have taken the
opportunities to develop new and innovative programs as a result. Some examples of this are

shared below:

L ]

Open Spaces, Open Minds (OSOM) is an innovative project providing green space and
environmental activities for a diverse range of community members living with mental
health conditions, throughout Newport and Blaenau Gwent. The project’s unique selling
point will be access to and engagement of forensic referrals via the Aneurin Bevan
University Health Board. One of the hardest to reach communities within the mental
health spectrum, forensic referrals represent mental health Service Users with learning
difficulties, or associated disabilities, who have a history of, or are at risk of engaging in,
offending behaviour. Growing Space and project partners will proactively engage
participants in planning and delivering community-led environmental projects. The
primary aim being to build the capacity of marginalised communities affected by mental
health. This will be achieved through increasing physical activity, improving personal
resilience, building community networks and tackling real barriers to social inclusion,
participation and reducing reoffending. The secondary benefits include the regeneration
and revitalisation of community spaces for all. Effecting a positive impact on mental well-
being through communities feeling more secure and being more sustainable.
Furthermore, taking ownership and developing pride in your locality has been directly
proven to increase community cohesion.

6.5 SUMMARY OF CHAPTER

Partners locally, continue to progress an ambitious programme of development and redesign
across all four levels of the national service model for mental health. There is still much further to
go, with many developments being further driven by Service User views.

27

Page 109




7. ONE SYSTEM TO IMPROVE MENTAL HEALTH

b % § SUMMARY

It is clear that a number of environmental factors have an impact on an individual’s mental well-
being and often contribute to the breakdown of an individual’s mental heaith

7.2 WHAT SERVICE USERS TELL US ABOUT THIS THEME

28

Page 110




7.3 WHAT WELSH GOVERNMENT WANT TO SEE

* Housing .
* Education.
* Employment- meaningful day for older people.

7.4 REGIONAL RESPONSE

7.4.1 HOUSING

There are a number of areas of good practice in the housing arena that we would wish to share
with you within this Annual Report:

e [n One Place

There is a growing expectation from the Welsh Government that public services will work in a
more collaborative way, identifying and exploiting opportunities to work together to improve
services for the people of ways. This challenge was set down by ministers at the Healthy Home,
Healthy Lives conference in November 2011. The In One Place programme seeks to respond to
this challenge and is a collaboration of 5 Local Governments in Gwent, the Aneurin Bevan
University Health Board and the 9 Housing Associations. A Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) has been
developed that enables a collaborative approach to responding to the accommodation needs of
people with complex health and social care needs, enabling procurement processes to be
streamlined where appropriate. It is a multi-agency program board and many discussions relate
to accommodation needs of people with a mental health or learning disability.

The first professional network meeting was held on the 7" April 2014 with the first project being
outlined soon after. In One Place programme currently has 15 projects underway, the majority of
which are seeking to support individuals with a mental health issue.

e Getting to know you sessions

The Mental Health & Learning Disability Division of ABUHB has recently taken the lead on 5
getting to know you sessions, one in each Unitary Authority area in Gwent. The purpose of the
sessions was to bring Housing Association Staff together with Community Mental Health Teams,
to strengthen relationships, share knowledge and make contact that will benefit Service Users
onwards. The sessions will hopefully support the views shared by Service Users that ‘my housing
people don't get my mental health’.

e Housing Developments in Caerphilly (Ty Oborne & Ty Iscoed)

An eight bedded unit with 24 hrs support for Adult Mental Health Service Users has been
developed in the Caerphilly County Borough. Ty Oborne House, developed with a view to
achieving independence, and supporting people to move onto obtaining their own tenancies is a
collaboration between Caerphilly County Borough Council and Gofal.

Ty Iscoed in Caerphilly County Borough has successfully commissioned 3 assessment beds for
Older People with Dementia, following a period of iliness, hospital discharge or family breakdown.

It brings together a multi disciplinary team to assess the needs with a view to optimising their
ability to live independently. This is done in safe, comfortable environment away from a hospital

29

Page 111




setting, to enable them to gain back their confidence and readjust to a more formal setting,
before returning home or to establish the most appropriate placement.

7.4.2 EDUCATION

The Widening Access, Research and Mentoring (W.A.R.M.) learning group is an established
approach for working with mental health service user groups. The model developed from the
early widening participation work by the University of Wales, Newport, in 2008, and is a peer led
(or co-produced) initiative which engages existing Service Users through a combination of
recovery and widening participation models. This combination uses flexible research led
curriculum alongside a multi-partnered and supported learning environment. This combined
approach supports a strength’s based model which in turn encourages groups/individuals to
explore their learning — thus working with their existing skills — while still being able to access
clinical/pastoral support. The main aims for engagement are to raise confidence, opportunity and
aspiration through learning while developing supported pathways for progression across
community — including into higher level learning — one of the key actions in the Together For
Mental Health Delivery Plan (2012-2016). Central to this approach is the support of service user
groups as well as key service and education providers.

W.A.R.M. currently works with approximately 25 students where benefits have been significant.
This includes improvements in their mental health and well-being with some moving into
employment, voluntary work and into higher education (both at an undergraduate level and local
study). All those students who remain at W.A.R.M. suggest that their positive sense of well-being
increases as a result of continued engagement as well as an increase in their aspiration for a
future. There have been research papers published which evidences not only the work of
W.A.R.M. — these research papers are also co-authored by those who are typically Service Users.
What makes W.A.R.M. all the more interesting — is the group is an independent and formally
constituted group and as such receives no formal funding.

7.4.3 EMPLOYMENT/ MEANINGFUL DAY FOR OLDER PEOPLE

Ash Park is a centre catering for adults with age related mental health needs providing respite for
carers and day care for people with dementia. The Centre is operated by Community Options and
based at Ysbyty’r Tri Chwm Community Hospital in Ebbw Vale supporting up to 10 individuals each
day. The small enthusiastic team are committed to providing a high quality reliable service and
have excellent links with the Community Mental Health Social Work Team, Community Psychiatric
Nurses and the Day Hospital.

Those who attend are supported to participate in whatever activities they choose to, including;
¢ Reminiscence, both in groups and individually ( e.g. making life story books)
* Gentle exercise;
* Craft activities (including themes appropriate to seasonal events)
* Musical activities and entertainment;
e Mental stimulation (e.g. Crosswords and quizzes)
* Sports activities (e.g. skittles, boccia)

e Qutings to local pubs/restaurants and regular user consultation;

30

Page 112




An independent review of the service highlighted a range of responses from those who access the
service. Enjoyment was the most common theme.

Family Employment Initiative Pilot

Growing Space have set up the Family Employment Initiative (FEI) pilot project in partnership with
the Coalfields Regeneration Trust and Tai Calon. It is designed to help the hardest to reach
workless residents with mental health issues in the most deprived wards of Blaenau Gwent.

The FEI project works with families and individuals who have been affected by mental illness to
break down barriers to employment. The project targets specific areas in deprived communities
and provides support and links to existing services which offer advice and support through
engagement on Green space improvement projects.

The Pilot project will proactively work with families and individuals in developing a green space
improvement project in the Community, Growing Space will work alongside the local Community
in selecting and developing a green space project by developing a supportive co-working
relationship, making them aware of the opportunities that are available in the area, particularly
the potential new jobs at the Circuit of Wales. It will provide a ‘menu of support’ tailored to
specific needs and requirements of the community.

Working with people in a different way

In July 2014 a joint experiment between CCBC and ABUHB to establish a pilot team called Listen
Engage Act and Participate Team (LEAP) consisting of: CPN, Social Worker, Psychologist,
Psychiatrist and Support Worker to look at using a different approach to respond to referrals from
GP's in a defined area. The objective is to break down barriers between services, professionals
and Service Users providing a collaborative approach with a speedier and better outcome for the
service user. Feedback thus far from all involved, has been very positive and an evaluation will be
undertaken during October 2014.

What has been clear is that majority of presentations in the North Caerphilly area during this
period have been presentations of distress or crisis often with a structural or social issue at the
base of the individual’'s need. To this end team members have worked with individuals in a
person centred way and sort to identify within the issue behind the presenting need and support
them to access the relevant support to address these issues as opposed to been pulled further

into the medical system.

The approach was commissioned by the 5 Local Authorities and the Health Board, and is now
being considered for roll in other areas of Gwent.

7.5 SUMMARY OF CHAPTER
Recognising the environmental factors that impact on individuals" well-being such as housing,

leaving and connecting is a key factor in avoiding crisis. There is a lot of good work underway, yet
clearly from our Service User feedback, still some way to go. This is a clear area of focus in 2015.

31

Page 113




(8. DELIVERING FOR MENTAL HEALTH |

8.1 SUMMARY

It is important that services (whether statutory or voluntary) work together to support better
mental well-being and provide services when people need them. Our infrastructure therefore

needs to be strong.

8.2 WHAT WELSH GOVERNMENT WANT TO SEE

e Early Learning from the Core Data set pilot
e Prudent healthcare within mental health

e The work of your Local Partnership Board
e |nnovations within the workforce

8.3 REGIONAL RESPONSE

8.3.1 EARLY LEARNING FROM THE CORE DATA SET PILOT

No significant progress has been made in this area in the last year, however partners are ready to
respond to the need to develop an outline plan for implementation by the October deadline.

8.3.2 PRUDENT HEALTHCARE WITHIN MENTAL HEALTH

The LEAP team are very much guided by the principles of prudent healthcare. The team’s working
principles encourage Service Users to self manage their illness, whilst ensuring that the service
user is not drawn too deep into secondary mental health care. The Leap team want to encourage
Service Users to manage their own recovery and look for pathways to recovery where there is
more of an emphasis on the social model of mental and physical wellness with less reliance on a
medical solution to recovery.

With growing awareness of evidence based interventions there have been further efforts to
ensure that treatment is appropriate, effective and offers good value for money. For example,
ensuring the appropriate investigations are carried out before treating memory problems. Also,
use of evidence based generic prescribing, watchful waiting, cognitive interventions rather than
medication, education for carers, respite to avoid inpatient admissions, use of befriending etc.
These interventions are designed to use existing resources more effectively and only when other
interventions have proved ineffective, or are unavailable.

8.3.3 THE WORK OF YOUR LOCAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD

The Gwent Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Partnership Board has now been in existence
for over three years. The last year has proved challenging in respect of securing attendance
across all partners to the partnership board however work on both the National Strategy and
Local Strategy continue to be progressed. There has been a recent ‘refresh’ session of the Local
Partnership Board and a number of new members have been invited. The Partnership board is
clear in its priority for the coming year which is the integration of mental health services at a
service delivery level.

32

Page 114




8.3.4 INNOVATIONS WITHIN THE WORKFORCE

There are a number of areas where innovations have been shown within our workforce model
over the past year. These include:

e The creation of new staff roles.

s Flexibility within role and scope

The Development of new staff roles — There are a number of good examples of where roles have
been extended or modified to respond to emerging needs within Gwent:

An advanced nurse practitioner role has been established to work within the Caerphilly
county borough, the role was developed in response to an inability to recruit sufficient
levels of medical staffing. The person will be competent to cover out physical health
examinations, mental health assessments and will also often is prescribing. The person
will also be developing links across the community and mental health adult directorate
and also spend time working in the medical assessment unit developing relationships and
offering mental health expertise.

An Occupational Therapist role has been developed in Monmouthshire, working within
Monnow Vale to work across both re-enablement services and the day hospital. This is
proven to be very effective and the Occupational Therapy (OT) services are looking to
create similar roles within the Royal Gwent Hospital as opportunities arise.

Responsible Clinician - A Nurse Consultant within our personality Disorder service has
become the responsible clinician (RC) for our Personality Disorder service.

Flexibility within role and scope - Teams have been flexible and keen to adjust their roles
according to the needs of patients. One example is the close liaison between adult and older
people’s team in South Powys and community teams supporting the memory service, liaison and
inpatient wards when necessary. There is also a rotation now approach to OT provision in adult
physical, adult and older adult mental health that seeks to develop practitioners with dual skills
who can deliver holistic interventions to people with a dual diagnosis. There has been a
commitment from the care of the early teams to begin job planning consultant roles with sessions
within old age psychiatry.

33

Page 115




LQ. LOOKING INTO 2015 ......EMERGING PRIORITIES

The Partnership Board’s fixed priorities for the coming year are:

e Integration at a service delivery level using the Vanguard approach.

e Increase in access to psychological therapies.

e Further developing the service user and carer involvement approach.
Priorities shared from the Service User Forum are:

e Better resources for GP’s to effectively support Service Users & the need to look at
increasing the capacity of specialist services (talking therapies) making them more
accessible.

o Emergency care & crisis response — the need for an emergency service for mental health and
better Out of Hours provision.

e Housing & Finance — More understanding in services that support wider parts of their life
(le housing and finances)

® Increase advocacy support

e Much better communication/collaboration between services (eg housing)

e Increased support for carers

The Partnership Board remains committed to hearing the views of service users and using this to
drive quality and service improvement. We look forward to reporting further progress in 2015.

34

Page 116




‘N. i’

EA A
hd,.% ;‘ﬁ..: ‘

pieog diysiaujied

|e207 Adljiqesiq Suiusea 13 Y3|eaH [ejudin Juamo

m —I— Z o lraunag ytinosog Aaunog
Qh b Dcmw\_“w%ﬁmuﬁmm_

D d

pieog yijeay
IR IEEr- E) o] ueaag uLnauy

PAYd3| ppimg

TIDINMOT HONONOR ALNOS

ATIIHdMIV I
w

?ﬁb@ .ﬂm z,.w%mmm.& WWHMMWN SYNIQ HOONAD
Dﬁwﬂuﬂoaﬂoa JAUISTIqNG NIVIHOL  VPNNOD AL

L




Page 118



iy

elnyjeg ehAaig

a|npow awwedlboid
Buiuies| yjeay
|[ejusw |euajewl
Ajisianiun gipien

ISTB EIVEEEIT
I JO @sn ainsua

0} siauped pue (sgH1)

spJeog yjjesH 207

a|doad BunoA
pue uaip|iyo Jo aousljisal sacidwi 0] |L'g

SISIID JO saw) je pue a)i] AepAiaAs ul S8SSa1}S 8y} Y)IM |[eap 0} J|qe Ja)jaq puk Jual|iSal d10W aie SaIuUNWWOod pue ajdoad :Z awoong

uajy Yyeles

dnoub Buleq
-llem Ajunwwon

‘s|euolissajoud
as1019%8

pue siojeulplo
-092 0} paiayo
Buiuiel) yueasjal
ainsua 0} M\Hd

'€10Z Iudy Aq ssau|!
|ejusw yjim sjusijed jo
s|euayal Jo eouepoduwl

@0Jo4ulas 0} (SH3AN)
awayosg |elisjey
9s|0JeX] |euonepn

ay} uo aouepinb
anIb o} (MHd)
so[ep\ Y)eaH o1jqnd

"Ssau|ji
|[ejuaw yym sjdoad jo yjjesy |eaisAyd
pue Bulagjiem |ejuaw ay) arosdwi 0] €71

‘a]qissod se Buoj se 10} 9|qissod

se Ajjuapuadapui se pue yjjeay Jayaq ul ‘4ebuoj aal] ajdoad ‘paroidwi si Buiagjjom [ejusw pue jeaisAyd apim uonejndod | awonQ

pea] AlaAleQ

juswdojaaaq pue
Buluiel] jyoeoiddy
jJuawaao.sduw|

uonisod

paiinbay uonoy

ealy

SW3180¥d HLTVIH TVLINIW ONILNIATHd ANV ONIFETT13IM TVLNIAN ¥31139 ONILOWON¥ 1 Y3LdVHO

Page 119



8¢

dnoub Buleq
-ll]em Ajlunwwon

uayily yeles

dnoub Bujaq
-llem Ajlunwiwo?)

"SI0JBUIPJO-09 S|00Y2S
AulesH Bunuoddns
wes) Hd [e207

(MHd) Aljeuoneu
pa ‘Bulobup

uosyoer qag

louuon,Q suyn

SIMaT uoslly

‘SB[B A\ SSOJOE pasn
8Q 0} SOAIMPI|\ 10}

|ooyos Aujjesy
|[E20]| 8Insu8 0} AM\Hd

‘102 1oquisydag

Aq sdiysuoijejas

pue Buleqiem ‘yjeay
|euoijows pue |[ejuaw
10} BlBJIO pleme
|euoljeu ay) aAsiyoe
aweyas jooyas

-8.d ejqeurejsns

pue AyjesH

ay} ul paajoAaul sbuijes
alnsua 0} MHd

"‘aoge|d

Ul S]|020}0.1d ‘S8l

Ul S82IAJBS 21}8)Sq0
Jo} @oe|d U] $90IAISS
Isi|eloads 10 sS4 wol)
SOIAPE 10} |B1ia)al 10}
s|oo0}o.d aoe|d ul ind
pue dojeasp 0} SgH

2102 12q030Q woly
BulobBuQ ‘sisoyoAsd o
uoissaidap |ejeuisod
10 ¥SI Je usom
Ayjuspl 0} p1oosy

Page 120



6€

uayjiy yeleg

uay)y yeleg

‘BuiobugQ

"awsyos (VY4HINA)
PIY 1sd14 YjleaH [ejus|y
yinoA ay} puedxs pue
Hoddns 0} nuwAn puiy

YHM H1om 0} M\Hd

"G10Z 4aquiasa( Aq
(VON) piemy Ajjend
|BUOlBN S8W8aYyoS
jooyos AuyjeeH

40 Yi0M)8N YS[8pA 8y}
1o ped se siojedipul
Bulaq ||lam pue yjesy
|euonows pue |ejusw
ay) Bunuawaidwi

ul S|ooyos

poddns sawayos

Page 121



ov

sauof ayn7

malpuy zi7

‘Bujobugp

(SSHINT) sedinies
Hoddng yjjesH
|ejuapy a1en) Alewud
[ED07] Ulm sHuUl|
ysigeisa sawweiboid
}sdi4 seniunwwo)
Jey} ainsua 0} HAA

sSadlAleg
|e190g jo si0323.1Qq

asuodsal Buijiemy

‘Buiobug

‘@oIn8g poddng
Ajiwe 4 pajeibaju) »
I1sli4 saljlwe .
vels Buihl4
Ajgejou

Jsow ‘Buieq|em
pue yjjesy |ejusw
olqnd paaociduwl
JBAI|9p SuolusAIB)UI
pasnooy Ajiwey

Jey} ainsus 0} 10}08g

PaIyL pue sy ‘gH

Page 122



14%

dnoug
Buiuoissiwwo)

Buipaey aae|n

*BuiobugQ 'uoisinoid
Aiojnjels uswa|dwoo
Jayuny ueo Buppom
juiol moy Japisuod

0} pue aoual|isal

pue Bulaq|iem

[ejusw uo 10)08Ss

p4iy} JO uoNgUuod
Anuapi o} seouabe ||y

"S$8IJIUNWWOD JO 8oudl|Isal aAoidwi 0] €°Z

uaxily yeleg

‘BulobuQ
"awayds (V4HIN)
‘pauten PIY 3s414 y)esH

usaq ey ajdoad | |ejus| ay) puedxa pue
€62 ‘10z ydeg pue | poddns 0} nuwAD pupy
€102 100 usemjeg UM >Jom 0} MHd

"S)Npe 1ap|o
pue s}npe Joj aoual|isal anosdwi 0] Z°Z

Page 123



(44

ueMIy Yeieg

Buiures)

inojjoJ | SISY pue
V4HWN weansuiew
pue paquwa

0} Sy PuUE sgH1
‘ueld

uolRy wiey-jlss
pue aping 8jy 0}
Jel 30 mainal MHd
102 34} JO }Xajuod
ul Bupjiom anuijuos
0} salouaby aonsnp
|Jeulw) pue 1ojoag
PAYL 'Sy 'sgH

‘Buiobup

"SO|EAA Ul wiey jes
snouas Jo saposide
Jo Jequinu ay)
aonpa. pue abeuew
0} sesuodsal pasjuad
uosltad dojaasp

0} S9JIAI8S UOoSld
pue 8921j0d ‘10}08S
paiyl Isnil SHN
‘80IAI8g |oue|nquy
Ysiem ‘sgH1 sy

"wJey j|@s snouss
puUE 8pIoINS JO S|9A8| 8onpal Jayunj o] #'2

Page 124



134

v

Y}IM s1as() 80IAI9S
yum Buiesp

uo sy pue sgH
Jo} uoneuwloul
Bunsodubis

pue aouepinb
apiaoid 0} MHd

slaquia|py pieog
diysiauped |y

‘goljoeud

poob ejeulwassip
pue sjowo.d
‘Ajpuapl 0} pue joy
Ayjenb3 ayj Jepun
soljsuejoeleyd
pajosjoud

Uiim asou}

JO spaau yjjeay
|ejusw ay} uo
pesiel s| ssaualeme
Jey} ainsua 0}

yun Ayenb3z SHN

apinoid 0} sy pue sgH

‘BulobuQ

‘'sue|d AiaAljap 921A18S

uo sjuaussasse

joedw) Ayenb3 ysignd
pue jno Aued o0} sgH

‘Buiobugp
‘Bujuolssiwos
pue ubisepal

89lAJ8s Ul suole|ndod

[e20] JI8y} JO spasu

asJanp ay) Buissaippe

(seiepn) senng

oy1oadg J0josg 2liqnd
ayj Jepun suonebiqo

llayy 1esw Ajgunnol
0} Sy] pue sgH

"S90IAISS Y)|esy

[eyusw jo uoisiaold pue sseooe ajgejinba
Buunsua ‘spasu Yjlesy |eyusw ypm sdnoib
a|qeJau|nA Joj seijenbsul 8oNpal 0] L'y

‘uone|ndod Ysjopn 9S19AIP B JO Spasu 3y} 0}

aAlsuodsal alow ale S8dIAI9S pue SS9k d|qelinba soualiadxa ‘sdnoub sjqelauna pue soljsiIeloRIEYD pajasjoid Yjim ajdoad iy swoang

211qnd 8y} ypm diysiauped meN v :g 10ydeyn

Page 125



147

OAVD
WO} PauoISSIWWOY

‘9102

Aq V4HIWA pue
V4HN Ul pauiel)
a|doad ul esealoul
ue alnsus 0} NIWAD
ANIA Yim joenuod
s} ybnouy) ‘sejepn
YieeH a1qnd

peseq gam ajep 0} dn
urejurew (sQANSHIN)
S190140 Juswdojeaa
JasM 9oIAJeS y)esH
|ejus|y jeyj ainsua

0] ‘siaujed Jojoesg
PAIYL Yim Jayjabo)
'Sy pue sgH7

‘a|qejieAe Bulaqg uonewIoyu|

ajeudoidde abe yym ‘ssauj|l [Bjusw

pue yjeay |ejuaw jnoqe pawJojul Jajjag
ale sabe ||e jo ajdoad jey} ainsus 0] |°Q

Jlos pue yjjeay |ejusw 119y} aAoidwil pue uiejsns o} paau Aay) Joddns pue uonew

"swajqoud yjjeay jeyuaw abeuew
ojul oy} aAeYy sajepp ul ajdoad 9 awodnQ

v

‘'swa|qoud yjlesy
|ejusw yym ajdoad
Y}IM JOBJUOD O)Ul
Buiwoo yeis ||e 104
Buiuiel) ssausieme
abenbue| Jonljep

0} SgH7 Pue sy

‘Buiobugp
VETNEEToR=RIINET

O}ju| pawealjsulew

ale JaJj0 aAljoe, 3y}
Buipnioul yiomawel
oibejens abenbue
ys|epn @yl Jo sajdiound
1By} aInsus 0] S89IAIeS
|EI00S pue SHN

"90.10p10M By} ul Ajoeded

abenbue| asealiou| 0} pue pepesu usym
Us|oM\ 40 winipaw ay} ybnouy) seolnies
aAl908l siaxeads YS9\ Jey) @insus 0] |L'G

‘0S Op 0} paau

Aay) a1aym aied pue juswiess) yjjeay |ejuaw ajedosdde AjjeanysinBul] ssasoe o) ajqe ale Sajepp Ul sia)eads Ys|app :§ awodnQ

v

‘€ 1L0Z 1aquiadsaQg
Aq sonsusloeleyo
pajoajoud

‘BujobuQ

‘Spaau uolje|sued}

pue UoI}esIuNUWo? 0}
Buipuodsau ‘juswssesse
ajeudosdde Ajjeinyno

Page 126



Sv

yjleaH 211qnd

7102 NI M3IINTH
JNAVHO0Hd

40 dN3 ONIMOTT04
a3i4ILN3al 39 O1
Sd31S IX3N ‘310N

‘¥10C 01 2L0T
"SalllAioR AJlunwiwoo

pue sajos diysiepes) ul
sias 8o1aleg Buiulesy
‘elpaw a8y} jJo esn

pue Bupayiew |e1oos
'sweass yom (MOLL)
sa|ep) abuey) o)
8wl ] 9aiy} ayj pes| 0}
[eJ09 pue |ejeH ‘pully

'swa|qo.d yjesy
|ejuaw yim sjdoad Ag paoe} UoiBUILILIOSIP
pue ewbiis ay} eonpal A|geuieisns 0} Joya

PalIeou02 B SI 8Jay) Jey} @insus o] |/

‘Papioe)

Bulaq aie swajqoid asay) jey) |93} pue uoneuiwLIISIp pue ewbiys ssa| asuauadxa yjjeay || [eyusw yym ajdoad :/ awoayng

‘€102 1290320

wouy BulobugQ
‘S9jBAA 108410

SHN PuUe “17v0

se yons suoyjesiueblio
ajelidoidde yum asay)
aleys 0} pue s|ge|ieAe
uonew.oul pue
S92I1AIBS Y)|eay |ejusw
[BO0| JO SBLI0}08IIP

Page 127



17

Rapjuag uuy

2102 18quieda(g
Aq yels ysbuowe
ewbis ssaippe pue
UOIJBUIWILIOSIP N0
oAlIp ‘suoljesiuebio
118y} sS0uoE Y)esy
|ejuaw jo ajjoid ayy
asiel 0} suoidwey)
MOLL Ausp!

0} sy pue sgH

asuodsay Buijiemy

BuiobuQ

‘AIaAl|ap 821A18S JIay)
Ul UoljeulWwIdSIp pue
ewbys Buipjoe} pue
Jejs 0} Joddns Jiay)

ul seoe|dyiom Ayjeay
Ajleyusw Buipiaroad
siehojdwe Jejdwaxs
SE JOB 0} SY'] puE SHN

Page 128



Ly

sauop aynT

Malpuy zi

lleH eng

supjdoy maipuy

pue asuepinb
9o1j0e1d poob
Juswsadwi 0} sgH1

‘Juswijeal |

pue alen

J1ay) Jo Juaswdojsasp
ayj ul1 8|01 |} B
Ae|d 0} way) s|geus
0} S19sS 99IAI8S
Joy Buiuiely apinoid
0} S8|e A UolOY
UjjeeH [ejusiy

Jo ued se Bupjiom
Jojoes Asejunjop

syuyguo Ajjey

"£10Z pua Aq
SJi0jeulpio-09) aie)
||e 0] AjsiaAiun
ujooui] Aq paonpoud
s|eusjew paquosald
ayj Buisn Buuued
juawjesJ) pue

aled uo Bujuies |

‘BujobuQ "suondo
Sjuswjeal} pue a2IAI8S
aalbe pue ssnosip

0} sanjiunuoddo

UM staied Jiay)

pue sies 921AI18S
apinoid 0} sgHT

'zLoe

aunp woJy bulobugQ
‘010 @inses|y
(selem) yieeH
[BJUSIN 84} JO ¢ Hed
Ulm Bul| ur) Juswieal |
pue ale) Jisy}

JO malAal pue AuaAlsp
‘juswdojensp ay}

Ul S1aJed pue slas
92188 jo uonedoied
BAI}oB 8Insua

0} sy pue sgH

"81e0 UMO JIay} JNoge Suoisiosp
Ul paAjoAUl Ajjn} e pue 0} pausjsi|
|98} SI8S() 92IAIBS JBY) BINSUB 0] |'Q

paiaAl|ap Si }1 MOY pue juawjeal) 419y} Jnoqe Bunjew uois|oap ul sisuped se [013uU09 a1ow Ui |99} 9|doad :g swonQ

Page 129



8

salne( Asjlanag

€Loe

wouj bujobup
‘0102

alnseal (selem)
UllesH [Bjusiy

Y} UIym sy

pue sgH7 uo sannp
Alojnjels mau ay)
}88W 0) S8}e00ApE
pauieJ) Ajgjeudoidde
0 Ajjiqejieae ay)
ainsua 0} siapirod
Aoeoonpy yjesH
|ejus|y Juapuadapul|

‘BulobuQ

‘sjuaijed a|qibije Amau

10} 0L0Z @insealy
(selep) uyesH
[BJUSIA 3U} JO ¢ Yed
juswajdw 0} S8JIAI8S
YHINI Yim sayjebo)
SY1 pue sgH

(WHWI) Aoeoonpy
yjieeH |ejus|y juspuadspu| sseooe
sjuaned JueAs|al Jey} 8iNsus 0] Z'Q

‘BulobugQ ‘(so30g
buioqg ‘llem buroqg 6
piepueig) ‘s|qe|ieAe

suondo Jusweal)

puejsiapun

wayj djay 0} s1esn
921198 Yym Bupjiom
Jejs 1o} Buluiesy

Page 130



6t

OAVO
WOJ} PpauoISSIWLWOoY)

8 aouepinb

183388 buioq flem
burog g piepuess)
"'£10Z Atenuga4 Aq
sabe ||e jJo a|doad
1O swsjueyosw
Buiuue|d

|eoo| ul Juswabebus
BAI}OB 8INSUd

0} swsiueyoaw
dojansp

0} SOdNSH

‘€10z ¥dag Aq seoinies
|e2o] jo Buuojuow

pue AiaAljep

‘uBisap ayj ul sebe

[|e JO SJaled pue sias
aoinIeg Buibebus oy
sjuswabuelle }snqo.
aoe|d ui }nd pue aa.ibe

0} Sy] pue sgH']

"JusWdoaASp 80IAIBS Ul PBA|OAUY
A|Iny 8le sieled pue saijiwe) Jisy) pue sabe
|le JO SJas) ©2IAJeS Jey} ainsus 0] L0l

JO uopen|eAs pue

"S92|AI3S Y}|Bay |ejuawi |e20] 119y}

Aianljep ‘Buiuueld ay) ul pabebua Ajaaljoaya ale SaepA Ul Saljiunwiwod pue sabe |je jo ajdoad :gl 2woa3nQ

AioBalg aunayien

Wbug uss|l0n

cLoe

18qo32Q Aq selbejens
uole)nsuon)

pue uoljew.oju|
siale) |eao)

dn meup 0} sy Jeupned
yum uonounfuoo

ul sisni) pue sgH

"L LOZ @inses|y (sajepn) sieie)
8y} Jo uonejuaws|dwi ybnoldy) siaied

pue sal|iwey} Joj Joddns ainsus 0] |6

*s9jo4 Bunieo J1ay) 4oy poddns 10) S)UBWISSASSE U] PAAJOAUI 21k sabe ||e Jo siaied pue saljiue ;g awoang

Page 131



0s

"€1L0Z 1290300
wou} BulobuQ woly
uonedioijue Jaieo
puUE Jasn 89IAJ8S UO
@oualajuo9 Buipue)s
|enuue ue ajejijioe}

0} MVYHIN pue
asiueblio 0} HY|IN

‘BujobuQ

'spieog diysisuped
|e207 pue |euonen
Ul PaAJOAUI SJBJEeD
pue siss() 82IAleS
Joj poddns epiaoid

0} (MYHIA) HYIN

‘€102 ydiep

wouy BulobuQ — sjaAs|
|e20| pue jeuoljeu

je spieoq diysisuped
UlieaH |ejusiy

UO SloJed pue sies
99I1AI9G JO Juswabebus
SAI}OB 9INSUd

0} sgH1 pue OM

Page 132



5

pienBuep

BuipaeH aine|n

"uoneonp3
|euoIssajo.id
sSnonuiuoy) 1o}
spJepue]s |euoneu
0} M3IA B Y}IM
SJ9)JOM |e120S 10}
Buiurely Buikyjenb
-}sod JOo malAal

B 8)euspun 0} O
"ylomjau
Jjuswdojenrsp

B ysl|qeise 0} Y|SS
‘SJoyJom aled

|EI00S 10} YJomauel)
uoneoiienb

S}l MalAB) 0)

S8|BAA [I2UNOD) 31eD

'€10¢ J12quiada(g

Aq yyresH |ejusyy Joy
Jayjebo o suonesndse
ay) jsuiebe sAemyjed
810 M3IABI 0}

pue uoisianoid sa82IAI8S
pajeibajul dojaasp
Jayuny 0} 10}08s

pAIy) pue sgH1 sy

‘yoeoudde
pajeibajul ue apiaoid o) Jaylabo)
oM sa2iAJes dlignd Jey) ainsua o L1

"S@21A19s Bulaaljep asoy) woly yoeoidde pajesBajul alow e asusuadxs s1as( 92IAISS 1L} dWodNQ

JUVI 40 YHOMLIN A31VUOILNI A1INd ‘dINDISIA T1IMV : € ¥ILdVHD

Page 133



<S

ssuo aujuep

SIMaT UoSI|yY

supjdoH maipuy

€102 Ul (HYITN)
a|doad BunoA Joj

$S990E pPasealdul
pue uoljualaul
Ajes 1o} sjuswyesal)
paseq a2uapIAg

Jo Aianijap poddns
0} sieplosiq Buiegy
pue s|soyoAsd
aposid3 jsJi4

10} 8AleIOgE||09
awweiboud

SaAll +0001

SadIAIag
|e100g jo Jojoaliqg

‘€102 19quiaAoN

Aq Ajeaijoaye

a|doad BunoA

Joj uonisuel} ebeuew
0} sueid dojanap 0}
'10J08G pJIy| pue sy
yim Bupjiom ‘'sgH

'S90IAI8S SHINYO PUE J|npe ussmiaq
UOIJISUBJ) SAIJ0BYS 8INSUL 0] Z'LL

asuodsay Buniemy

‘uonje|nbai

Japun pawyuod

aq 0} ajeasawl]

"JOy S99IAI8S |Be100S
ay} jo uonejuswaldwi
W0l salnp mau
joBUS O} SHN @y} yim
Jayjaboj) yiom 0} sy

Page 134



Page 135

53



Page 136

54



85

wbug ussljon

uospJeyory [I19

supdoH maipuy

simen
BlINr SINSSO /adV

pawuijuod aq o]

€102 Yyotepy

Aq swejqoid yjeeH
|ejUB) pue asnsip
aouejsqns buLuna20
-09) e YIm sjdosq

Jo spesp ay) bunssyy
3JOMBWEIH 90IAIBS BY)
Ylm aul| Ul ‘seolales
asnsiw adueisqns
pue yjjesy |ejusw
usamiaq shemyjed
pejeibajul pue
s|0o0j0.d Jesjo aoe|d
ur aAey o} (adHNT)
pieog diysieuyued
YjjeeH [ejus|y D07
pue (gdvINS) pieog
Buluue|d ealy asnsi
aouelsqng yoeg

‘AjoAnjosye pebeuew
s| swa|qoud yjjeay [ejusw ypm Buiinooo
-00 9SNS|W 9oUeISqns aINsua 0] ¢°1|

Page 137



9%

sauor aujuep

speaT ainses|
JUOISIAIP S,UBIP|IYD
puE USWOAA

"€10¢ Yyoley wouy
BulobuQ 'SHAVD
0ISUBI0} 0} SSOJ0E pue
[euoissajoid SHAVD
ajeldosdde ue

woJj sawlj pajeubisap
aney (S1OA) swea |
BuipusyO YinoA

[l 1Y} 8Jnsua 0O} sgH"

'swes | BuipusyQ YinoA ui asipadxs
SHINVYD 0} ssedoe anoidwi 0] #°L L

WbLg uasjjon

uospieyory |19

supjdoy maspuy

simaT elne

'€Loe
yosep Agq abesn Bnip

10 spuaJ) Buibiswe
puUE MaU 0} S8DIAIeS
sns|W aouejsgns
pue yjjeay |ejusiu

Aq esuodsal aAljoaye
ue pue uoljeaijuapl
Ajjes ainsus

0} @ouepinb dojaaag

Page 138



IS

llempy Auiag

louuo),Q suy9

sajiepp euuag

SIMa7 uosl|y

‘Jaw ale
sBuiies yjjesy |ejusw
ul spasu aleoy)jeay
|eoisAyd ainsse 0}
uosiel yjeasy |eoisAyd
apiaoud 0} sgH1

‘viL0C

judy wouy BulobuQ
‘Jow aJe Bues

HOQ @y} ul swajqoud
yiieay |ejusw

yyum ajdoad 1oy} speau
2INsSse 0] SaoIAIeS
uosiel| 8088
ainsus 0} sgH

‘swa|qoud

yjjeay |ejuaw Buipnjoul SUOIpUOD
2UOJYD Y}IM 8S0Y] 10} 81ed U)jeay
|eyusw pue |eoisAyd sroidwi o] G'LL

Page 139



89

BuipieH ale|n

sauopr ayn-

SMalpuy zi7

abuel ay} buusAllep
0} pauiel} 8210p oM
jusladwoo

ainsus 0} gH1 yoeg
‘€L

-Z10Z pus Jeak Aq
SMHINDOd SI83I0MN
UileaH [ejusiy

alen Aeuwd

10} WNNDLIND

e dojaaap 0} Hy|IN

wouy BulobugQ

"0L0Z 24nsea|y
(selem) yiesH
[EJUSIAl 84} JO | Med jJo
sjuawalinbal ay} yum
aul| ul pue ajedoidde
alaym 10)098s

PAIY} yum uonounfuo
ul sewayog alen
Aewlid juswsajdwi

0} SgH] PUE sy

"'S9OIAISS Y}|eay |ejuaw aJed
Arewid jo uoisuedxe ay} ainsus 0] |°Z}

‘seidesayy |eaibojoyosAsd o) ssadoe

paaosdwi woiy pue s|qissod se Aliea se palaAljap SUOIJUIAISIUI PASE(-32UBpPIAS WOy Jijauaq sabe |je jo ajdoad :Z| awoa3nQ

Page 140



65

"$J0}08S JBY}0 WOy
PaUOISSIWLIWOD 9SOy}
Buipnjoul ainjonas
uoisialadns

|ewloy) B ulyim
SUOUBAIBIUI JO

'Z10Z 4290390

Page 141



09

1ayep ulayjey

sajiep| euuag

'€10Z aunr Aq

sisAjeue deb ayeuspun
pue saidelsay)
|eoibojoyoAsd
Bunsallap

ul sapusladwod yels
10}09S $S0I0 MBIAS

O}sypuesgHT 9

synguo Aoy

cioc

Jaquaoa( Ag sajepn
Ul Malnay saidesay ]
|eaibojoyohsd

AqQ ssaooy
Buinoidw| uoisSIWIWOD ‘saidesay ] |eoibojoyodAsd Jo
0)OM B uolsinold pue 0} sseooe aaoldwl 0 €21
"Z10Z 1390320 Aq
010z @inseay (solepn)

yijesH |ejusiy sy}

J0 € Hed yum aul| ul
Juswissassead 0} sjybu
118y} 10 aieme aie
sjuaned a|qibije jey)
ainsus 0} ajeldoidde
alaym 10099

PAIYL yim uopounfuod
ul swajsAs ysijgejsa
0} Sy pue sgH

‘paJinbal uaym ‘00z ainsesiy

(selepn) yyesH [elusiy 8y} o} prebal yyum
Juswissasse-al 10} sjybu Jiay) sseade 0}
pauoddns aJe sjuaijed jey} ainsus o] Z'Z1

Page 142



19

SUIUD Yie|

sauor auluer

JeiiN

uels pue syoIH Aieg
‘JUSWIUIBAOL) |ED07
ul peaT s,ualpiiyp

pue juaijedul
}sijeoads usaq aAey
9jendoldde apianoud
0} sAemyjed aoe(d ul
aAey Aay} 1ey) ainsus

0} Sy pue sgH

"SOOIAISS
SHINYD 0} ojdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo
10} SS90 BA[}080 8INsSus 0] $'Z1

BuiobuQ

'8JnjonJ}s uoisialadns
[ewuo) B uiyjm
suofjuaAIalul jo abueu
By} JoAl|op 0} paulel)
9010I0M 10}08S SS0ID
jusjedwod ainsus

o) gHIYoe3 p

'€1L0Z sunp
wouy BuloBu ‘mairal

auljeseq ay) Junodoe
O}ul 9)e) 0} pue
aouepinb Ao1j0d HM
YlM BUI| Ul S8OIAISS
Adeiayj |eaibojoyoAsd
dojeAsp pue piemioy
9)e} 0} swsiueyoaw
[E20] UO aSIApE

0} (OW.Ld) @spiwwo)
juswabeuey

Adesay ] |eoibojoyohsd
B 9)N}i}suod
OjgH1yYoeg O

Page 143



L

supjdoy maipuy

llempuy Auad

SUNHUD Yew

cLoe

29 Ag suoissiwpe
a|qeploaeun

Jo} @oe|d ul $)o8Y2
Buipsenbajes Bujuiesy
yejs sjeudoidde

yum plem e ajeubisap
0} gH1 ‘peonpal spiem
}inpe 0} g| Jepun
@S0y} JO suoissiwpe
ajelidoiddeul

}ey} ainsus 0} sgH

'2L0C 1390320
wouy BulobuQ
‘swa|qold yijeay
[ElUBW Y}Im ualIp|iyo

104 (S10V4 111D 'B9)
SHNYD Alunwiwod

Page 144



e

njsuewbiag xep

uojsuyor qoy

pee
asns||\ soueIsgng
PUB UOJSUYO[ qoy

‘€102 ydiepn

Aq saol1nles asns|w
aoue)sgns ssed9e 0}
sueJs}on Joj shkemyjed
aleo dojeraQ

‘BulobuQ 'eale

4oea Ul SUBISJOA 10}
saoIneg Bulag |l
pue yjeeH Ajunwwod
}sijeioads apiaoid
JO/puUe uoISSIWWOD

0] aNuUUo 0} SgHT

"'Spaau yjjeay |ejusw Jiay} Joj ajeudoidde

SOOIAIOS BAIB08] SUBIS)OA BINSUS 0] G'Z|

Page 145



¥9

jog Aqqog

sSMalpuy z17

8y} Y}Im aoueplodoe
ul sadIAles SHINVO

/ Yleay |ejuswi
uosud apiaoud Jo/pue
UOISSIWWO 0} SgH

‘Apoisno ul 8jdoad 10} suonuaAialul
Kjpwi} pue ajeudoidde ainsus 0] 9°Z1L

‘Buiobug

"S92IAISS Y)|eay |ejusw
Bulnnbal sueiajan

10} Aemyjed Aousbe
-i}jnw e juswsa|dw pue
dojenep o} sieuped
J3Yj0 puE SgH

Yum xJom 0} dnolb
Buusals (SGMHAMY)
aoInIag Buleq|iapn

pue yj|eaH sueislap
S9|BM IV @Y L

2102 19quisda(g
wouj Bulobug
"SHIOMISN [EDd1UlD
UileeH [ejusiy pue
SWNJo4 $82104 pauly

ysijgesse o} sgH1

Page 146



95

SJ9UOISSIWIWO)
1\

"ME| 8W022a(q ||Ig
SB[\ SB2IAIBS [BI00S
8y} se sjusweabueLe
MBIABI 0} S90IAISS

"HSION pue ufis3
‘MISSO ‘MIH 'DYM
AQ smalnal Juenas|al

pue sased YAQd
‘smains ao130eud
PIIYy2 paysiiqnd
wolj Buluses)
aleys g jdope

0} SY'1 pue sgH

‘BuiobuQ

'salo1jod pue uone|siba|
Buipsenbajes
juswa|dwi 0} J0}08s
PAIY) yIm Jayyaboy
310M 0O} ST pue sgH]

"$90IAI9S Y}jeay |ejusw Buissaooe
8llym wiey wolj papienbajes ale
sabe ||e JO si8s() 92IAI8S BINSUB O] L'El

"S80IAIaS 9|qRUIR)SNS U] pappaquia pue painsusd aie AJubip pue uoijoejoid ‘Ajojes ‘parosdu s1 aduaLIadxa J8Sn 221AISS (€] SWONO

sunjdoy maipuy

sBujjjon ueug

sauor aujuep

SUNHUD e

‘€Loc

Aq eale |e20| JIay)
wouj Aeme ‘uoisinoid
81n2as 10 aied

BA19084 0} paau oym
asoy} Joj Aemyjed aled
e dojeaap 0} sgH1

71L0Z 1390100
Aq aouepinb paysignd

Page 147



99

supjuap |9zey

swea} BuisnoH pue
8Je) |eloos ‘yjesH
apnjoul 0} buiuueld
juswieal) pue

aleo uo Buiuiesy yuiof
ayepapun 0} J0}0as
Py} pue sgH1 sy

‘SJUBLUIUOIIAUS
asodind 1o}

}j ‘ulspow ui papiaoid
aJe saljl|1oe} Juanedul
ainsua 0} aoe|d Ul
sue|d ainsus 0} SgHT

"'S80IAI9S Ajlunwwod pue

Jusnedur usamjaq paouejeq Ajejeldosdde
s| aJeo Buunsus ‘sadIAIes yjjesy |ejusw
Ul JuswiuodiAug Juaned-ul saoidwi 0] €€

pieog
diysiauped

‘BuloBuQ sopeg
buioqg ‘ilem buiog yum
aul| Ul sJas) 9oIAIeS
||e Jo @ousladxa

ayj} anoidw

0} 9AL)S Jey) SooIAI8S
apinoid 0} 10j08S
PAYL pue sy ‘sgH

j0adsal
pue Ajubip ‘Ajajes uo paseq palaaljep pue
pauue|d aJe SedIAI8S Jey} ainsua 0] Z'El

‘pawLuod
8 0} ajeasawi]

Page 148



L9

[wer ejyeN

supjdoH maupuy

IleH 3tine

pue asiubodal Aoy}
ainsus 0] Buiuien
aAl@0al 0} ‘a|doad
Jap|0 YjIM JoBju0D Ul
BWO0D OYM SI9XI0M
UileeH [ejusiy ale)
Aewud Buipnjoul
‘Hejs 10j0eg

P4IYyL pue ¥ ‘SHN

lleH sinre

supjdoH maipuy

1aBeuepy

|elauan) yjjesy
|eJuUS\ @ S921AI8S
J0 s1039311Q

"v10Z udy

Aq sAemyjed aieo
ulyyum sassasoid
abieyosip

pue uoissiwpe
aAlj0aye Juawa|dwil
0} Jayjeboy Bujuiesy

‘Joadsal pue

aleo Ayubip Buunsus
‘posU |edIulD uo
paseq sassado.d pue
swajsAs Juswabeuew
21ed pue Juswssasse
pajeibajul aoe|d ul
9ABY 0] SgH] Pue sy

‘AloAjoaye pabeuew suonisues)

yym ‘ebe ueyj Jayjel paau [BoIulD Uuo
paseq ale Aay) Buunsus ‘saoialas yjeay
|ejuaw s ajdoad Japjo ancidwi 0] €L

'¢Loe

Jaquaoa Aq sinoy Jo
N0 pue uiyym sabe ||e
Jo g|doad 10} a|qe|ieAe
Hoddns uonuaalalu|
aAIsuaju| Ajunwwon

/ Juswieal |

QWOH uolnjosay
SISO ainsua

O} V1 pue sgH

asuodsal Buniemy

7L0C

judy Aq sAep gz uiyum
- suolssiwpe jeadal
Buipnjoul - spaq yjeay
[ejuaw 0} uoISSiWpe Jo
sejel ‘a1ed Jo silajsuel)
u| sAejep aonpal

0} saibajel;s |eoo|

juiol dojaasp 03 si0}0es
Py} pue sgH1 sy

Page 149



89

yny suned

‘€Loe

judy Aq e|doad
Jap|o ul SuoIpuod
pigJow-09 pue
eluawsap ‘ssau|l
|euonouny Jayjo
pue uoissaidap se
yons ssau||l |ejusw
Jo swojdwAs pue
subis 0} puodsal

Page 150



69

yIny auined

spunwp3
aulelon

supjuap |azey

lIeH elnr

ufjjame|] asiuag

‘€Loe

Aienuep Aq Auep|e
8y} Ul suonIpuoo
yiiesy |ejusw

UOW WO pue sso|
Kiowsw Joj ssasse
0} paulel) yejs
SHNOd | ¥ed IV

‘Burobup

‘BaJE JI9Y] Ul SBWoY
aleod ||e 0] o|ge|leAe
92IApE }sijeloads

0} SS920B 8INsSua

0} sy pue sgH'

‘Buiobu "sxyoed
uoljewlojul ejuaswaq
Ke100g s Jawidyz)y
Uim papiaoid sjdoad
pesoubelp Aimau ||y

‘BuiobuQ

‘sjabie | juabijjeyu)
Blluswap + S8All 0001
juswa|dwi 0} sgH

‘ButobuQ

S82IAISS BljusWSp
josuo BunoA Buipnjoul
‘JuBswIN20p UOISIA
eljuawa(] |euonen
DM 8y Juswa|dwi

0} siauped pue sgH

"S9|e A Ssoloe
sbuijies ||e ul ‘sjenpiaipul JabunoA 1oy
Buipnjour ‘a1ed eiuawap aaoidwi 0] G'¢L

Page 151



0L

uebBio eluiBap

Uy yeles

Buiobup

‘BuiobuQ ‘sajep
uonduosaud yoog
ybnouyy Areaql ongnd
Aians ul s|qe|ieae

ale eljuawap uo s)}00q
}ey} ainsus 0} MHd

Page 152



EL

ybejnoopn
pleiss

"€10Z Bbuunp
sJomawel Japiosiq

Bunye jo Aieaijep

ul sjuswaaoldwi
aAlLp 0} swwelboid
S8All +0001
dojansp 0} HYIIN

€102 pus Aq s@o1al8s
sobe ||e ssoloe
juswijesal; JopJosip
Bunes jusnedu

JO SSBUBAIJ0BYe

1s092 pue uisjed ay)

J0 maiAal 8)e|dw oo pue
UOISSIWWOD 0} SgH

‘sabe ||e 1o}
S@2IAIeg Japiosi Bune maiaal 0] 9°'¢l

Page 153



L

'51L0Z pue Aq
wm_m>> ._ODF Jiomauwlel u_

v\ :sieplosiqg Bune]
PUB M3IASI JO BWO2IN0
Y}IM BUl| Ul SBDIAISS
dojarsp 0} sgH

Page 154



€L

SR WA )Y

pue aie) jo ued

9102 B 8Wo029q Way} 0}
suesw A1aA0oal Jeym
JO SMBIA JBSN 92IAI8S
[ENPIAIPUI JBY) 8Insus

0} sy pue sgH1

‘abueyo

|ednjno poddns

0} Jels |euoissajoid
1o} siauiel) se

JoB 0} sias() 891AI18S
‘s|elejew
AjIsiaAlun ujoour]
Buisn ‘Buiuies;
Buluue|d juawieas |
pue aie) ybnouy)
S|IMS JUBAS|Dl

Jayjo pue Aianoosal
Buisn uj Jusyedw oo
ale siojeulplo

-0Q ®Je] ||

‘2102 1290320

wol} ‘syeudoidde
aJoym ‘Juswas|geus
-al pue Alanooal

Jo so|diouud ay)
paquia SIas 92IAI8S
10} sue|d Juswijeal |
pue aie’) jey} ainsua

0} Sy pue sgH1

"SBAI| JIBY} JOAO
|osju02 aiow uieb o) ejdoad Buipoddns
yoeoudde juswe|geua-al pue Alanooal e
UO paseq ale S82IAISS JeY} 8inNsus 0] 'y

*sayoeoudde jJuswajqeus pue A1aA02a1 ybnoiy) jenuajod ||nj J1ay) asijeas o) wayj Buljqeus
pue uonelidse pue adoy jo s|aA?] 18y} aseasoul 0} ajdoad Bunuoddns ‘ysii Buibeuew AjpAisod ale siapiAoid 7L awodnQ

Page 155



vL

(spean
uaip|iy9) sasinieg
|e1o0g jo si030aiiQ

SUIPUO Yiey

sauor auluep

asuodsay Buniemy

BujoBuQ "swajqoid
|ejuawdojaasp pue
juswyoeyje Jo sanssi
Buissaippe ul usipjiyo
Joj yoddns apiaoid

0} Sy7] pue sgH1

'€10C 41990300
wou} Bulobup
‘Buiuue|d juswiealy

Page 156



SL

S9IAIRG
|e100§ jo si032341Qq
pue smopea\ SUYy9

‘BuiobuQ "8y

Jo Ayjenb Buiuieysns
‘s|qissod se Buo)

Se 10} @ouspuadapul
ulejurew

0} way) poddns

jey) saoiaies apiaoid
0} Sy pue 10)o8s
Py} ‘'sgH ‘enuswsep
yyim ajdoad 1o4

Page 157



9L

gaHNnayvy

‘Anpqesig Buiuiea
pue yjjesH [ejusy
‘1030341 |eUOISIAIQ
pue sasiAleg
|eI20S JO SI0}28iI]

"€10Z |udy woyy
BuiobugQ "seoueuly

Jiey) Buibeuew

ul ajdoad jsisse

0} S92IAJaS 82IApe
199p yim sjoejuoo
pue s)ul| ysijgejse
0} JElS Y] pue gH1

sia)jew |eioueul) uo yoddns pue
22IApE 0} SS820B aAeY swa|qoid yjjeay
|ejusw yum sjdoad jey} einsua 0] L'GlL

*19je60) Buiyiom S10)03S ||e 0} JUSWHWIOD

JUSWILIDA0S)-SSO0ID JO }jnsal e se Bulaqjjom pue yjjeay |ejusw J1ay) o) Juswaaoidwi paujeysns asuasuadxa sabe |je jo ajdoad G| awo23nQ

pean AiaaljeQg

juswdojanaqg pue
Buiuieu ] ;yoeoiddy
juawanosduw|

uonisod

paiinbay uonoy

ealy

HLTV3H TVLINIW 3AOHdINI OL W3LSAS INO ¥ 431dVHO

Page 158



L

uebaay uyor

uebaay] uyor

‘€L0¢ sunp

Aq Ayuoud e se yyeay
|eyusw Bunelodiooul
S80IAJ9S pajeloosse
pue Buisnoy

uo sjuawdojaasp

pue Bunpjom

juiol Joy sueld dojaasp
0} SgH"1 pue sy

0202

Aq piepueig Ayenp
BuisnoH ysiepa eyl
Buinsiyoe Agq sswoy Jo
SUOIIPUOD 8y} aAoidul
0} spJojpue| |e1o0s
paJajsibal pue sy

‘Buisnoy jo uoniipuod ay} Buirosdwi
Aq Buiaqg|em |ejusw aaoldwi 0] “Z'GL

Page 159



8L

UOUIAA 813

2997 ejabuy

‘ButobuQ ‘spasu
yjjlesay |ejusuw Jo
JUNO22E 8)e)} SUOoISIDap
Buluoissiwwos

1ey} Buunsua
aoueping swwelbold
a|doad Bunuoddng
juswa|dwi 0} Sy

"S8louBUS) Ulesns
swa|qo.d yyeay |ejuaw yym sjdoad
djay pue ssaussajpwoy aonpal 0] €6l

Page 160



64

1abeuely swwelboid
aoe|d auQ u|

‘€L0Z aunr

Aq Ajuoud e se y)eay
|eyusw Bujeiodiooul
‘S92IAISS pa)eInosse
pue Buisnoy

uo sjuswdojeAap

pue Buiyiom

juiof Joy suejd dojaaap
0} SgH pPue sy

Page 161



08

uebaay| uyor

BuipieH ale|n

‘Buiobup

'suoljouny piojpue|
J1eyy buibieyosip
uaym swajqoud yjesy
|ejusw yym ajdoad

JO spaau ay} Junodoe
O}ul 9e) (spiojpue|
[e1oos palejsibal pue
Buisnoy umo J18y} umo
IS ley} ssyloyine
|e20|) spiojpug| [Blo0S

2102 18quiada(

AQ seaiwwo)
uoneloqge||oD

|leuoibay swwelboid
a|doad Buipoddng

uo uonejusasaidal
Joluas apinoid 0} sgH

Page 162



18

uebasy uyor

JO pue (enuswap
Uiim asoyj

Se |yons) s|enplalpul
a|geIau|nA

1o} s||e} Jo auly swoy
10} s pauayybiay
S| @18y} alaym

JO ssaualeme yejs

‘Bulobug

"seAleniul sduy

pue sdijs pue A}ajes
aJiy ybnouy) sewoy
ajes ajowoltd 0) sgH
pue Sa2IAIeg aNJsSaYy
pue all{ ‘s|euoisssjoid

salwloy Jajes 0) ssaooe 9|qelinba
aAeY sdnoub s|qelauinA 8insus 0] #'GL

Page 163



8

Asjjuag uuy

Joddns pue

Ajijuapi 0} pue s|[iys
JOS, JO JuswanaIyoe
Slaulea| ainseaw 0}
oIoed] JO 8sn ay) ul
pauiel) sswwelboid
diyseauiel |

SIBAI|ap oym Jeis

asuodsay Buniemy

JI3S Ul s|ys ul
sjuswanoidwl yoed} 0}
OM Ag padojaasp |00}
010e1 ], Aiojepuew ay)

asl|in 0} swweiboid
diyssasuies|

Bulutes| peseq

3IOM 8]} JO SI8pIAOId

‘JuawAojdwae
ojul ssalboid sjdoad BunoA djey
pue juswAojdwa 1o} s||iys sAaosdwi 0] GGl

"a|qissod

alaym sysu

ay} ajebijiw o) usye)
S| uonjoe sjeldosdde
aInNsua ||Im SIYy |
‘salousbe jueas|al
Jay}o pue a9lAI8g
@nosay pue a4
aU} Yim sjenplAlpul
89S0y} Uo uoljewlojul
aleys 0} pasu ay)

Page 164



€8

uebioy eiuibBup

'SQOIAIBS
uoddns ejeudoisdde
JO uoisiaoid spnjoul
pue yjjesH |Bjusiy
Joy 1eyyebo] jo
so|diound sy} o84l
0} suejd @8} uoinin}
SaljIsianlun alinbau
0} (MO43H) selepm
Joy [1ounog Buipung
uoijeonpg JaybiH

yum Joeju09 ul sidoad 4oy

pajsodubis aie saaijeniul
Bupowouid yjeay
|[eJauab jey] ainsus

0] MHd PUe sgH

‘Jew Jeyeq pue
pasiubooal ale ssau||l [ejusw e yym ajdoad jo
spaau yjesy |eoisAyd sy} jey} ainsus 0] g'Gl

‘no Buiddoup
JO )SU Je siaules)

"'swajqoud

asnsiWw aouejsqgns

/ Uifeay [ejuawl yim
siaules| 10j poddns
apnjoul uoieaNpa
1aybiy o} ssaooe
Buiuapim Joy sueid jey
8INsus 0} SaljISIaAIuN

‘uoneonpa Jaybiy ui swajgoid
asnsiw aduesSqns pue yjesy |ejuaw
yim ejdoad 1o} poddns aaosdwi 0] /Gl

‘ButobuQ

"uoljeAljow pue siayjo
yim Bupjiom waslsa
J|9s ‘@ouspiuod

Page 165



8

S92IAISG
JeIo0g Jo siojdaliQ

‘sjeuolssajo.id
pue oygnd
0} pajowolsd pdg

asuodsal Buiemy

"BulobuQ "Mmdg
ajowold 0} MAHd Yim
3Iom 0} salelql algnd
pue saolnles Aleiql| v

"awinayl| Jisy} Inoybnouy} snjejs yyesy
Jiay} aAaoidwi pue abeuew ‘sjowo.id 0}
sallelql| WoJij uoljewsoyul sseooe o0} ajdoad
Buljgeus Aq sajepn jo ejdoad ayj jo Bulaq
-||om pue yjjeay ayj ejowoud o] 0L'GL

Ksjuag uuy

alowljjiyd auuy

‘JuswAojdwa

uiejas pue

uieb o} ejdoad jsisse
0} sjuawjisnipe
8|geuoseal ayew

0} salo1jod Buipnjoul
saoe|dyiom

Ayyeay Ajjejusw
ajowoud o0} seloljod
JO uolje|nNwIo4

asuodsal Buljiemy

7102 yaiepy woly
BuioBuQ Aq ‘ssau||l
|ejuaw Jo @ousuadxs
paAl| yum ajdoad
ulejal pue jinioal

yjog pue ‘Buisqem
|[ejuaw poddns ey}
saoe|dyJom Buidojaaap
ul siahAojdws Jejdwaxas
SE JOoB 0} Sa|epA

SHN 8y} pue sy ‘'OM

‘'swa|qold
yjjeay |eyusw yum ajdoad Joj saniunuoddo
yuawAojdwe sjowoid 0] 6°GL

"€10Z |Hdy
wo.y BulobuQ wouy

S80IAISS Y)|eay [ejusu

Page 166



58

spes ¥H

‘BuiobugQ

'}l paau Aay] usym
Joddns )sijeloads
126 0} moy mouy
pue uolBUIWLIOSIP
pue ewbys
Buissalppe ‘Buisies
ssaualeme yjjeay
|eyusw ui Bujuiesy
9AI1908) 8210pJoMm
Japim ayj ul jejs
JuBA3jal | Jey) ainsua
0} siauped Jay)
UM Sy pue sgH

‘ButobuQ "1oadsal
pue Ayubip jo ainyno
B paquwa Sa2IAIaS JIay)
||e 8Insua 0} 10}08S

PilYyL pue sy ‘'sgH

‘Buriemodwa se paousiadxs
pue |njoadsal si jey} ainjno e ajowoid
0} J0J08s 21|gnd 8y} ssoJoe Jels ||V L9l

‘eljuawap

pue ssaujji jejuswi jo swoldwAs pue subis 0} spuodsal pue sasiubooal 9210)IOM 19PIM B} SSOIIE JJB)S (9] aWwodng

Page 167



98

‘BulobugQ
"ssao0.d |esieidde
[EnUUE Yylm

gess ||e oy (sddd)
ue|d Juaswdojenraq
Asjjuag uuy |euosiad

SIMa7 uoslly

‘BuiobuQ

‘YiresH [ejusiy

Joj ssyjebo] jo Aleniep
8y} poddns o} sueid

82J0pJIOM B|qepIoye SSOUYOIS Jeal) Se ||om Se yjjeay
pue s|geureisns anoidwi ajdoad sdjay jey} adi0pJom
dojeasp 0} sgH pa||IMS 8|geulelsns B ainsua 0] |/

‘Buniamodwia pue [njjoadsal ‘onpnadesay) ‘ajes

SI Y2IYM 81N}|ND B 3INSUS SIaqINU JUaIdIYNs Ul 821010M Juajadwiod ‘pauieli-jjam e pue diysiapes] [euonesidsu) : L awoa3nQ

Page 168



L8

pieog diysiauped

JUBWILIBAOY) YS|apA

‘¥10¢ ul jno

[lo4 [eUClEU JOL €102
ul sebe ||e ssolioe
sa)ls jo|id pejos|es
ybnouy) pajse)

aq 0} si0}edipu|

"G10Z wouy Buiobug
$80IAI8S JO AtaAlep
pue Buiuueld ayj ul

peau jJawun JapIsuoo
A[aunnol 0} spieoq

diysiauped |Bo0T

JUSWIUIBAOL) US|BAA

€102

Jagquiaosa(g Aq sus|
Jasn 99IA18S B wolj
$J0}EDIpUl SBWO0I)NO

Jo 18s e dojaAsp 0] sy
pue SHN “1030ag paiy L
BY} UM 3J0M 0} O

‘Yjes |ejusyy Joj eypebo |

Jo suonoe Aay ayj Buusaliap ul ssaiboud
ainseaw 0} aoe|d ul SI 8injonJjseljul
a)eudoidde sy) jey} einsus 0] Z'6l

BuipieH aie|n

"€10Z Atenuer

Aq s|@n8| Juludjooy
gH7 uo sjuswsbue.le
diysisuped
Kouabe-jjInw |eoo|
aoe|d ul ind 0} sgH1

'S|9AS| |ED0| pUB |BUOIJBU JB Yj/esH
jejuspy Joj Jeyjabo jo uonejusws|duwil
8y} @aslan0 0} aoe|d ul aJe sjuswabuele
ajeldoldde jey) ainsua 0] L6l

:paiaaljep Bulaq aie yjjesy [ejusyy 10} 49y}abo ] Jo swie ayj Jey) adueINSSe apiAcid ||IM SUOI3OE BUIMO[|O} 8y} ‘“UCHIPPE U]

Buipiey aure)n

‘saibojopoylaw

ul paulel} pue saAl
0001 uil pabebua
HEJS B2l ||y

‘'Sweo)

Ajeoo| pue s)iomjau
[eoiul2 uo siseydwa
ue yjm Bupjiom
wes) paseq aouUspire
jdope 0} Jojoeg

PAYL pue sy 'sgH

Page 169



Page 170

88



Agenda ltem 14

N
CAERPHILLY

COIINTY BOROUIGH COLFNCIE
CYNGODR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY

4

HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -

2ND DECEMBER 2014

SUBJECT: SUMMARY OF MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE — 1ST JULY 2014 TO

30TH SEPTEMBER 2014

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES AND SECTION 151

OFFICER

1.1

21

3.2

3.3

3.4

41

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To report Members’ levels of attendance at scheduled meetings of Caerphilly County Borough
Council.

SUMMARY

The report details the attendance of Members at scheduled meetings throughout the Quarter
1st July to 30th September.

THE REPORT

Appendix 1 details Members’ attendance for quarter 2 (1st July 2014 to 30th September
2014), at the following meetings:

- Council;

- Cabinet;

- Scrutiny Committees;

- Planning Committee;

- Audit Committee;

- Democratic Services Committee; and

- Sustainable Development Advisory Panel.

The information is compiled from attendance sheets signed by Members at these meetings. .
The appendix also allows for a comparison with the same period in the preceding two years.
When making comparisons to previous quarters/years, please note that overall averages
given are the weighted average to reflect the number of meetings in each quarter.

Details for the next quarter (1st October 2014 to 31st December 2014) will be reported to the
next appropriate meeting of the Scrutiny Committee.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report.

Page 171



5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report.

6. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.

7. CONSULTATIONS

71 None.

8. RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 That Members note the content of the report.

9. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 To inform Members of attendance levels at scheduled meetings of Caerphilly County Borough
Council from the Annual Meeting of Council, 2014.

Author: C. Evans (Committee Services Officer)

Background Papers:
Member attendance sheets

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Schedule of Members’ Attendance 2012 to 2015

Page 172



£/ abed

Quarterly Summary of Attendance Levels (Percentages)

APPENDIX 1

AGM to AGM
2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015
Q1[({Q2({Q3[Q4]|Total]Q1[{Q2[{Q3[ Q4] Total] Q1| Q2| Q3| Q4] Total
Councll 89| 88| 85| 81 84 | 87 (82)82(88] 85 | 84| 84 84
C & Disord 38 59| 59 69 94| 82 81 81
rime isorder _ % _ % _

Education For Life 7517866 |69 72 | 72| 75|69 |75] 73 | 66 | 65 66
Health, Social Care & Wellbeing

The Living Environment

Regeneration

/////////////////

/////////////////%

Regeneration and Environment

Policy & Resources 81188 71|79 77 |69 (78|84 (85)] 79 | 78| 77 78
Planning Committee 7518380 |74 78 | 7582|8589 83 |85 |75 80

v
Audit Committee 58150 (42)]| 48 | 83| 75|67 |83 77 | 58| 83 71
Democratic Services Committee 44 [ 63 |1 69] 60 | 69 / 69|75 71 88 | 75 82
_ _

Sustainable Development Advisory Panel 73145 (64| 45 61 64 | 64 / 64| 64 82 82
Average Attendance per quarter 78 | 67 (71 | 71 74 |74 | 72 81 76 77 | 86 82
Cabinet 90 [ 94 [ 93 [ 88 | 91 95829293 91 93 | 93 93




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



	Agenda
	3 Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee held on 21st October 2014 (minute nos. 1-12)
	7 CSSIW Annual Performance Evaluation for 2013-2014.
	Scan2Email

	8 Shopping Service.
	shopping survey Questionnaire - 10 11 14  (2) (6)

	9 Draft Savings Proposals 2015/16.
	06 Draft Savings Proposals for 2015-16
	06 Draft Savings Proposals for 2015-16 App 1
	06 Draft Savings Proposals for 2015-16 App 2
	06 Draft Savings Proposals for 2015-16 App 3
	06 Draft Savings Proposals for 2015-16 App 4
	06 Draft Savings Proposals for 2015-16 App 5
	06 Draft Savings Proposals for 2015-16 App 6

	10 Performance Management 2014/15.
	AS Performance Indicators Sept 2014 - Final v1 0
	CSPIs Final results Sept 2014 v2 0
	Performance Management - App 2

	11 Deprivation of Liberty.
	13 Annual Report for Mental Health.
	Annual Report 2014 (Annex)

	14 Summary of Members' Attendance - Quarter 2 - 1st July 2014 - 30th September 2014.
	Appendix 1


